
 

 
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF 
COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
GWŶS I GYFARFOD PWYLLGOR 

 
C Hanagan 
Cyfarwyddwr Materion Cyfathrebu a Phennaeth Dros Dro’r Gwasanaethau 
Llywodraethol 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Y Pafiliynau Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian 
Cwm Clydach, CF40 2XX 
 
Dolen gyswllt: Julia Nicholls - Gwasanaethau Democratidd (01443 424098)  
 
DYMA WŶS I CHI i gyfarfod hybrid o GYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL RHONDDA 

CYNON TAF sydd i'w gynnal ar DYDD MERCHER, 12FED GORFFENNAF, 2023 am 
5.00 PM. 

 
Bwriedir i’r cyfarfod yma gael ei weddarlledu’n fyw, mae rhagor o fanylion am hyn yma 
 

AMSER EITEM TUDALEN(N
AU) 
 

5 
Munud  

EITEM 1. DATGAN BUDDIANT 
 

 

Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol gan Aelodau yn 
unol â'r Cod Ymddygiad. 

 
1. Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr agendwm 

y mae eu buddiant yn ymwneud ag e a mynegi natur y 
buddiant personol hwnnw; a   
 

2. Lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i 
ddatgelu buddiant sy'n rhagfarnu, rhaid iddyn nhw roi 
gwybod i'r Cadeirydd pan fyddan nhw'n gadael. 

 

5 
Munud  

EITEM 2. COFNODION 
 

3 - 16 

Cadarnhau cofnodion o gyfarfod hybrid y Cyngor, a gynhaliwyd ar 
14 Mehefin 2023, yn rhai cywir. 

 

5 
Munud 

  

EITEM 3. CYHOEDDIADAU 
 

 

 LLYWODRAETHU AGORED: 
 

 

10 
Munud 

EITEM 4. DATGANIADAU 
 

 

https://rctcbc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


Yn unol â Rheol 2 o Weithdrefn Llywodraethu Agored 
Cyfarfodydd y Cyngor, derbyn datganiadau gan Arweinydd y 
Cyngor a/neu Gynghorwyr sy'n Aelodau Portffolio o'r 
Cabinet: 
 

20 
Munud  

EITEM 5. CWESTIYNAU GAN YR AELODAU 
 

17 - 24 

Derbyn cwestiynau'r Aelodau yn unol â Rheol 9.2 o 
Weithdrefn y Cyngor.  
 
(Nodwch: Caniateir hyd at 20 munud ar gyfer cwestiynau.) 
 

 RHAGLEN WAITH Y CYNGOR – ER GWYBODAETH I 
AELODAU 

Rhaglen Waith y Cyngor 2023/2024– er gwybodaeth i 
Aelodau 

 

 ADRODDIADAU'R SWYDDOGION 
 

 

 15 
Munud 

EITEM 6. ADOLYGIAD BLYNYDDOL CYLCH RHEOLI’R 
TRYSORLYS 2022/23 
 

25 - 36 

Derbyn adroddiad y Dirprwy Brif Weithredwr a'r Cyfarwyddwr 
Cyfadran - Gwasanaethau Cyllid, Digidol a Rheng Flaen; 

 
 

15 
Munud  

EITEM 7. CYNLLUN DATBLYGU LLEOL DIWYGIEDIG 
2022-2037. Y DIWEDDARAF AM FATERION 
CYNLLUNIO CENEDLAETHOL A 
RHANBARTHOL A CHYMERADWYAETH AR 
GYFER CYTUNDEB CYFLAWNI A DIWYGIAD I'R 
AMSERLEN AR GYFER GWAITH PARATOI 
PARHAUS Y CYNLLUN DATBLYGU LLEOL 
DIWYGIEDIG. 
 

37 - 118 

Trafod adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Materion Ffyniant a Datblygu. 

 

10 
Munud  

EITEM 8. NEWID AELODAETH 
 

119 - 122 

Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu. 

 
  EITEM 9. MATERION BRYS 

 

 

Trafod unrhyw faterion sydd, yn ôl doethineb y Cadeirydd, yn 
faterion brys yng ngoleuni amgylchiadau arbennig. 

 

Cyfarwyddwr Materion Cyfathrebu a Phennaeth Dros Dro’r Gwasanaethau 
Llywodraethol 
At: Pob Aelod o'r Cyngor  

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/CY/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/RelatedDocuments/workprogrammes/20222023/CouncilWorkProgramme202223.pdf


 

 

 
PWYLLGOR CYNGOR RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

 
Cofnodion cyfarfod hybrid y Cyngor a gafodd ei gynnal ddydd Mercher 14 Gorffennaf 2023 am 5pm.  

 
Cafodd y cyfarfod yma ei ddarlledu'n fyw, ac mae modd gweld y manylion yma 

 
 

Y Cynghorydd G Hughes (Cadeirydd)  
 

Y Cynghorydd S Evans Y Cynghorydd B Stephens 
Y Cynghorydd L Addiscott Y Cynghorydd R Bevan 
Y Cynghorydd S Bradwick Y Cynghorydd J Brencher 

Y Cynghorydd G Caple Y Cynghorydd J Cook 
Y Cynghorydd A Crimmings Y Cynghorydd E L Dunning 

Y Cynghorydd R Davis Y Cynghorydd L Ellis 
Y Cynghorydd V Dunn Y Cynghorydd D Evans 

Y Cynghorydd J Edwards Y Cynghorydd S Emanuel 
Y Cynghorydd D Grehan Y Cynghorydd S Hickman 

Y Cynghorydd B Harris Y Cynghorydd G Holmes 
Y Cynghorydd W Hughes Y Cynghorydd K Johnson 

Y Cynghorydd G Jones Y Cynghorydd G O Jones 
Y Cynghorydd W Jones Y Cynghorydd C Leyshon 
Y Cynghorydd W Lewis Y Cynghorydd M Maohoub 
Y Cynghorydd C Lisles Y Cynghorydd A Morgan 

Y Cynghorydd N H Morgan Y Cynghorydd S Morgans 
Y Cynghorydd M Norris Y Cynghorydd D Parkin 

Y Cynghorydd A Roberts Y Cynghorydd C Preedy 
Y Cynghorydd J Smith Y Cynghorydd S Rees 

Y Cynghorydd L A Tomkinson Y Cynghorydd G Stacey 
Y Cynghorydd J Turner Y Cynghorydd S Trask 

Y Cynghorydd M Webber Y Cynghorydd G L Warren 
Y Cynghorydd R Williams  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Roedd y Cynghorwyr canlynol yn bresennol ar-lein: 
 

Y Cynghorydd M Ashford 
Y Cynghorydd P Binning 

Y Cynghorydd S J Davies 
Y Cynghorydd A Dennis 
 Y Cynghorydd S Evans 

Y Cynghorydd J Barton 
Y Cynghorydd J Bonetto 
Y Cynghorydd J Elliott 
Y Cynghorydd A J Ellis 
Y Cynghorydd A Fox 

Tudalen 3

Agendwm 2

https://rctcbc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

Y Cynghorydd G Hopkins 
Y Cynghorydd C Middle 

Y Cynghorydd S Powderhill 
Y Cynghorydd A O Rogers 

Y Cynghorydd W Treeby 
Y Cynghorydd D Wood 

                       Y Cynghorydd R Yeo               
  

Y Cynghorydd H Gronow 
Y Cynghorydd W Owen 
Y Cynghorydd R Lewis 
Y Cynghorydd D Owen-Jones 
Y Cynghorydd G E Williams 
Y Cynghorydd T Williams 

 
 

Swyddogion oedd yn bresennol 
 

Mr P Mee, Prif Weithredwr 
Mr B Davies, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cyllid a Digidol 

Mr C Hanagan, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth, Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 
Mr A Wilkins, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 

Mr R Waters, Cyfarwyddwr – Gwasanaethau Rheng Flaen 
 
 

 
 

12   Croeso ac Ymddiheuriadau  
 

 

 Croesawodd y Cadeirydd yr Aelodau i'r cyfarfod a derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau 
am absenoldeb gan Gynghorwyr y Fwrdeistref Sirol P Evans, R Evans, K 
Morgan, M Powell, K Webb a D Williams. 
 

 

13   Datganiadau o Fuddiant  
 

 

 Yn unol â Chod Ymddygiad y Cyngor, cafodd y datganiadau o fuddiant canlynol 
eu gwneud ynglŷn â'r agenda: 
 
Eitem 9 ar yr agenda - SEFYDLU BWRDD GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS 
AR GYFER CWM TAF MORGANNWG - TREFNIADAU TROSOLWG A 
CHRAFFU AR Y CYD 
 
 Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol S Bradwick – “Fi yw Cadeirydd 

Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub De Cymru” 
 

 Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol D R Bevan – “Rydw i'n aelod o’r 
Cydbwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu” 
 

 Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A Crimmings – “Rydw i'n aelod o’r Bwrdd 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus” 
 

 Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol B Stephens – “Rydw i'n aelod o’r Bwrdd 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus” 

 

 

14   Cofnodion  
 

 

 PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfodydd hybrid o'r Cyngor a 
gynhaliwyd ar 29 Mawrth 2023 (am 4pm a 5pm) a 10 Mai 2023 yn rhai cywir. 
 

 

 

 

15   Cyhoeddiadau  
 

 

Tudalen 4



 

 Cafodd y cyhoeddiadau canlynol eu gwneud: 
 
 Talodd Arweinydd y Cyngor, y Cynghorydd A Morgan OBE, y deyrnged 

ganlynol i'r diweddar Tyrone O'Sullivan OBE a fu farw ar 27 Mai, yn 77 
mlwydd oed. Ganed Tyrone i deulu glofaol yn Abercwmboi, ac roedd yn 
ymwybodol iawn o beryglon y pyllau, gan iddo golli'i hen dad-cu yn y 
Maerdy, a'i dad yng nglofa'r Tŵr pan oedd Tyrone ddim ond yn 17 oed. Er 
gwaethaf hyn, cafodd Tyrone swydd trydanwr dan hyfforddiant yn y pwll glo, 
a chyn bo hir daeth yn ffigur blaenllaw yn y mudiad Undebau. Daeth yn 
enwog am beidio â cholli'r un bleidlais dros weithredu diwydiannol mewn 22 
mlynedd pan oedd yn Ysgrifennydd Cangen tanddaearol mudiad NUM. 
Chwaraeodd ran flaenllaw yn streic 1984-85, gan drefnu protestiadau yng 
Nghymru, de Lloegr, Essex, a de Swydd Efrog. Ei gamp fwyaf adnabyddus 
oedd perswadio'i gydweithwyr yng nglofa'r Tŵr i ymrwymo £8,000 yr un o’u 
harian diswyddo er mwyn casglu blaendal gwerth £1 miliwn i gymryd y safle 
drosodd. Ychwanegodd yr Arweinydd fod llawer yn cofio gweld y 239 o 
lowyr yn gorymdeithio yn ôl i'r gwaith ym mis Ionawr 1995 – flwyddyn ar ôl i'r 
pwll glo gau - yn dilyn y pryniant llwyddiannus. Arhosodd y Tŵr ar agor am 
13 mlynedd arall, a heddiw mae atyniad Zip World poblogaidd ar y safle. 
Soniodd yr Arweinydd am ei atgofion gyda Tyrone yn ystod taith i Ogledd 
Cymru ac, ar ran yr Awdurdod Lleol, dymunodd gydymdeimlo ag Elaine, 
gwraig Tyrone, a'r teulu. 
 

 Ychwanegodd y Cynghorydd A O Rogers, y mae ei ward yn cynnwys safle 
Glofa’r Tŵr, deyrnged i’r diweddar Tyrone O’Sullivan OBE hefyd. Cyfeiriodd 
at y teyrngedau a'r sylwadau caredig niferus sydd wedi dod i law yn ystod yr 
wythnosau diwethaf. Ychwanegodd y byddai llawer yn cytuno y byddai'n 
cael ei gofio am ei arweiniad a'i waith o ran brwydro i gadw glofa'r Tŵr ar 
agor a helpu'r glowyr i brynu'r pwll yn llwyddiannus. Siaradodd y 
Cynghorydd Rogers am weledigaeth Tyrone o ran rhoi cyfleoedd i bobl 
ifainc ar gyfer y dyfodol a'u helpu i adeiladu a datblygu'r cymunedau glofaol 
drwy brosiectau megis Zip World, sy'n cyflogi nifer o drigolion lleol. 
 

 Roedd y Cynghorydd R Lewis yn dymuno llongyfarch Clwb Rygbi 
Abercynon ar dymor llwyddiannus o rygbi ar ôl i'r tîm yn gael ei goroni'n 
bencampwr Adran 2 Canolbarth y Dwyrain a sicrhau dyrchafiad. Mae'r holl 
dîm, ei staff a gwirfoddolwyr yn destun balchder i'r gymuned gyfan. Ar ran y 
Cynghorydd Dennis, dymunodd y Cynghorydd Lewis yn dda i'r tîm ar gyfer y 
tymor nesaf. 

  
 Ar ran y Cynghorydd W Jones, llongyfarchodd y Cynghorydd S Emanuel 

Maggie Davies o Flaenrhondda a redodd marathon Llundain er cof am ei 
diweddar ŵr Paul. Mae hi wedi codi dros £4000 i elusen dementia Brain 
Bank. 

 
 Fe wnaeth y Cynghorydd Ros Davis longyfarch Mr David Ferns, sy'n byw yn 

y Porth. Cwblhaodd Farathon Llundain ar 23 Ebrill, mewn 3 awr a 40 
munud, gan godi mwy na £600 i Tommy's, elusen sy'n ariannu ymchwil i 

 

Tudalen 5



 

gamesgoriad, genedigaeth farw a genedigaeth gynamserol. Roedd yn 
gyflawniad personol eithriadol i David ac yn newyddion gwych i’r elusen. 

 
 Roedd y Cynghorydd K Johnson yn dymuno llongyfarch trigolyn ifanc o 

Lanilltud Faerdref, Coral Brush-Davies, sydd wedi’i gwahodd i fod yn aelod 
o Dîm Prydain Fawr i gystadlu fel amatur unigol yng Nghwpan y Byd 
Dawns Elitaidd 2023, Tsieina. Coral fydd y dawnsiwr unigol cyntaf o fewn 
ei grŵp oedran i dderbyn gwahoddiad i fod yn rhan o garfan Prydain Fawr, 
a hi fydd yr unig gystadleuydd o Gymru. Bydd hi'n cynrychioli cymuned 
Efail Isaf a Dance Crazy Studios yn Llanilltud Faerdref, lle cafodd ei 
doniau eu meithrin. Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Johnson i'r maer anfon 
llythyr i longyfarch Coral ar ei chyflawniad a gofynnodd am ganiatâd y 
Llywydd i rannu manylion ei thudalen Just Giving â'r holl Aelodau yn dilyn 
y cyfarfod. 
 

 Llongyfarchodd y Cynghorydd Sheryl Evans Clwb Rygbi Abercwmboi ar 
ei ddyrchafiad diweddar i Adran 1 o Gynghrair Canolbarth Dwyrain 
Undeb Rygbi Cymru. Dyma gamp haeddiannol i’r tîm cyfan, gan gynnwys 
chwaraewyr, hyfforddwyr a phawb sy’n ymwneud â’r Clwb. Dymunodd y 
Cynghorydd Evans bob lwc i'r Clwb ar gyfer y tymor nesaf. 
 

 Roedd y Cynghorydd A S Fox yn dymuno talu teyrnged i drigolyn ifanc 
arbennig o Benrhiwceibr sy'n mynychu Ysgol Gynradd Penrhiwceibr. 
Ganed Oliver Wilson gyda pharlys yr ymennydd 11 mlynedd yn ôl ac 
mae'n ymgymryd â phob her gyda gwên ar ei wyneb. Cymerodd ran 
mewn treialon ar gyfer tîm parlys yr ymennydd Lloegr ac mae bellach 
wedi cael cynnig lle ar y tîm mawreddog hwn. Roedd y Cynghorydd Fox 
yn sicr y byddai pob Aelod yn hoffi ymuno ag ef i ddymuno pob llwyddiant 
i Oliver ar gyfer y dyfodol. 
 

 Roedd y Cynghorwyr G O Jones ac E Dunning yn dymuno cyflwyno 
deiseb ar ran trigolion yn galw ar fesurau arafu traffig yn Heol Bronllwyn 
a'r strydoedd cyfagos yn y Gelli. 

 
16   Cwestiynau gan yr Aelodau  

 
 

 1. Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol G. E. Williams i 
Arweinydd y Cyngor - Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan OBE: 

 

“Cyn y gaeaf a’r paratoadau ar gyfer tywydd garw, a fydd cyfle i Aelodau 
ymgysylltu â swyddogion a dod i sesiynau briffio ynglŷn â'r paratoadau?” 

Ymateb gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan OBE: 
 
Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd A. Morgan fod y Cyngor yn cynnal sesiwn briffio ar 
gyfer Aelodau Etholedig cyn cyfnod y gaeaf bob blwyddyn. Cynhaliwyd sesiwn y 
llynedd ym mis Tachwedd a bydd y sesiwn eleni yn cael ei chynnal yn 
gynharach, o bosibl ym mis Hydref. Dywedodd yr Arweinydd mai prif ffocws y 

 

Tudalen 6



 

sesiynau yma yw cyflwyno Cynllun Cynnal a Chadw'r Cyngor ar gyfer y Gaeaf. 
Mae hwn yn amlinellu manylion o ran pa gamau y mae’r Cyngor yn eu cymryd i 
baratoi ar gyfer tywydd garw dros fisoedd y gaeaf, rolau a chyfrifoldebau'r 
Aelodau a Swyddogion, sut i rannu gwybodaeth, y rhif cyswllt y tu allan i oriau, 
sut i gofnodi materion trwy'r ganolfan gyswllt a pha gymorth sydd ar gael i 
gymunedau, gwasanaethau'r Cyngor a staff. 

Pwysleisiodd yr Arweinydd bwysigrwydd sicrhau cymaint o ymgysylltu a 
chyfranogiad gan Aelodau â phosibl – eglurodd fod y sesiwn yn un gwerth chweil 
ac anogodd yr holl Aelodau i gymryd rhan. Daeth yr Arweinydd i'r casgliad y 
byddai dyddiad yn cael ei gadarnhau a'i ddosbarthu drwy'r Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd maes o law. 

Cwestiwn Ategol gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol G. Williams: 
 
“Ni allwn warantu na fydd Pentre’n gorlifo eto ond mae’r gwaith a wnaed i’r 
cwlfer a’r systemau draenio yn rhoi tawelwch meddwl y mae mawr ei angen i 
drigolion Pentre. Oes modd i'r Arweinydd roi rhagor o fanylion am yr opsiwn 
gwaith a ffafrir gan y Cyngor?” 
 
Ymateb gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan OBE: 
 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod Pentre yn amlwg yn un o’r cymunedau a gafodd ei 
tharo galetaf yn ystod Storm Dennis, ac digwyddiadau tywydd garw dilynol, ac 
mae dros £1 miliwn wedi’i wario ar ddiogelu'r ardal hyd yma. Cadarnhaodd mai’r 
opsiwn a ffafrir yw agor chwlfer newydd drwy’r strydoedd. Er y byddai hynny’n 
tarfu ar drigolion (mater a gafodd ei gyfleu yn yr wybodaeth ymgynghori a 
ddosbarthwyd), byddai'r Cyngor hefyd yn lleddfu eu pryderon trwy sesiynau 
wyneb yn wyneb ac ar-lein gyda Swyddogion.  
 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod y cynllun yn fuddsoddiad gwerth miliynau o 
bunnoedd mewn seilwaith lleol, a gyflwynir fesul cam. Mae'r Cyngor wedi 
sicrhau cyllid sylweddol ar gyfer y cynllun eleni.  Bydd y cynllun yn angenrheidiol 
yn wyneb newid hinsawdd ac yn diwallu'r angen i ddiogelu cartrefi a thrigolion. 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod gwaith paratoi yn rhan allweddol o'r cynllun, a dyna 
pam fod hyfforddiant yn fater hanfodol i Aelodau. 
 

 
2. Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol J. Cook BEM i 

Arweinydd y Cyngor - Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan 
OBE: 

 

“Pa gymorth sydd ar gael i fanciau bwyd a chynlluniau lleol tebyg yn ystod y 
flwyddyn i ddod?” 

Ymateb gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan OBE: 

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd ei fod wedi cynnal cyfarfod allweddol yn ddiweddar i 
drafod pa gymorth pellach mae modd ei ddarparu i fanciau bwyd lleol a chlybiau 
bwyd/pantris, lle mae llawer o waith rhagorol yn cael ei wneud ledled y 
fwrdeistref sirol i gefnogi grwpiau o bobl hŷn a theuluoedd. Mae amrywiaeth o 
grantiau ar gael, er enghraifft mae modd i grwpiau cymunedol wneud cais am 

Tudalen 7



 

grantiau bach o hyd at £500 (hyd at dair gwaith y flwyddyn) er mwyn defnyddio’r 
arian yn lleol.  

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod disgwyl i gyfanswm gwerth ariannol y cymorth fod 
yn fwy na £160,000 a bydd y carfanau perthnasol yn gweithio i ryddhau’r 
cronfeydd hyn, megis y Gronfa Fwyd sydd werth £500, y mae modd i unrhyw 
sefydliad cymunedol wneud cais amdani - yn ogystal â chronfeydd cymunedol 
eraill sydd werth hyd at £1,000. 

Roedd yr Arweinydd yn dymuno canmol yr holl grwpiau yn y gymuned sy'n 
gweithio'n galed i gefnogi teuluoedd a thrigolion trwy gyfnodau anodd. 
Pwysleisiodd fod y Cyngor unwaith eto'n edrych i ddarparu cefnogaeth 
uniongyrchol yn ystod y flwyddyn ariannol hon, gyda dyraniadau pellach yn cael 
eu gwneud yn y dyfodol. 

Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiwn ategol. 

3. Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol S. Emanuel i 
Arweinydd y Cyngor, Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan 
OBE: 
 

“A oes modd i'r Arweinydd wneud datganiad ar fuddsoddiad cyfalaf yn Rhondda 
Cynon Taf os gwelwch yn dda?” 

Ymateb gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan OBE: 

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod lefel y gwariant Cyfalaf yn fwy nag erioed, ac ar 
gyfer 2022/23, roedd yn dod i gyfanswm o £135 miliwn.  Fel cymhariaeth, yn 
2015/16, roedd cyfanswm gwariant cyfalaf y Cyngor yn cyfateb i £66.9 miliwn. 
Mae'r rhaglen gyfalaf 3 blynedd newydd arfaethedig ar gyfer 2023/24 i 2025/26 
yn cynrychioli cyfanswm buddsoddiad o £187 miliwn. 
 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod y Cyngor yn derbyn symiau mawr o arian Cyfalaf 
drwy gydol y flwyddyn, yn ddiweddar wedi derbyn dros £5 miliwn gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer materion teithio llesol (gyda manylion pellach yn cael 
eu cyhoeddi'n fuan). Mae cais pellach am fwy na £10 miliwn wedi'i gyflwyno ar 
gyfer gwaith sy'n gysylltiedig â'r tomennydd, yn ogystal â chais am grant gwerth 
£5 miliwn ar gyfer prosiectau lliniaru llifogydd. Ychwanegodd fod cyllid sylweddol 
ar gael ar gyfer ysgolion hefyd, naill ai ar gyfer cynlluniau wedi'u hariannu'n llawn 
neu ar sail model buddsoddi a rennir. 
 
Eglurodd yr Arweinydd fod y rhaglen hefyd yn cynnwys buddsoddiadau penodol 
ychwanegol mewn meysydd sy'n cynnwys Priffyrdd, Strwythurau, Parciau, 
Mannau Chwarae ac Ardaloedd Chwaraeon Amlddefnydd, yn ogystal â meysydd 
buddsoddi eraill sy'n cyd-fynd â Chynllun Corfforaethol y Cyngor. Ychwanegodd 
fod y rhaglenni cyfalaf dros yr 8 mlynedd diwethaf wedi bod dros £100 miliwn y 
flwyddyn ar gyfartaledd – felly mae hyn yn dangos y lefel di-baid o fuddsoddi 
cyfalaf sydd wedi bod yn mynd rhagddo yn ein cymunedau, gan wella isadeiledd 
lleol, hybu gwariant lleol i’r economi a buddsoddi mewn costau cynnal a chadw 
yn y dyfodol lle mae’r gyllideb refeniw dan bwysau. Daeth yr Arweinydd i'r 

Tudalen 8



 

casgliad ei fod yn falch o'r ffordd y mae'r buddsoddiad cyfalaf yn mynd i'r afael â 
blaenoriaethau'r gwasanaethau. 

 
Cwestiwn Ategol gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol S. Emanuel: 
 
“Mae Parc Blaenrhondda wedi elwa ar fuddsoddiad yr oedd mawr ei angen. Oes 
modd i'r Arweinydd amlinellu pa fuddsoddiadau pellach fydd yn mynd rhagddynt 
yn y Parc lleol poblogaidd yma sy’n cael ei ddefnyddio’n aml ac sy’n boblogaidd 
iawn?” 
 
Ymateb gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan OBE: 
 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod pob parc ledled y fwrdeistref sirol wedi cael ei 
asesu, ac eleni mae'r Cyngor yn bwriadu gwario £1 miliwn ar ei barciau. 
Eglurodd fod dealltwriaeth wirioneddol o ran beth yn union sydd ei angen, ac 
mae'r arian yn cael ei rannu rhwng y gwahanol gategorïau, megis isadeiledd (fel 
llwybrau troed, draeniau, ffensys), y pafiliynau (ystafelloedd newid). 
Ychwanegodd yr Arweinydd fod cynnal a chadw'r pafiliynau yn gostus felly dim 
ond nifer benodol sy'n cael eu hadnewyddu bob blwyddyn. Mae rhaglen arall yn 
ymwneud â draenio ar leiniau a bellach mae gwaith yn mynd rhagddo ar naw 
llain ledled y fwrdeistref sirol bob blwyddyn.  
 
Daeth yr Arweinydd i'r casgliad y byddai'r Cyngor yn parhau i fuddsoddi yn y 
maes yma. 
 

4. Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol W. Hughes i 
Ddirprwy Arweinydd y Cyngor ac Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion 
Busnes y Cyngor, Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol M.Webber: 

 
“A oes modd i'r Dirprwy Arweinydd roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am 
brentisiaethau a rhaglen raddedigion y Cyngor?” 

Ymateb gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol M. Webber: 
 

Dywedodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd fod y broses recriwtio Prentisiaethau a 
Graddedigion ar gyfer dechrau ym mis Medi 2023 newydd ddod i ben. 
Cadarnhaodd fod y Cyngor wedi derbyn ychydig dros 700 o geisiadau am 9 
swydd Raddedig a 49 o gyfleoedd Prentisiaeth, sy’n dangos bod y Cyngor yn 
parhau i fod yn gyflogwr deniadol. Mae trigolion yn amlwg yn ein hystyried yn 
sefydliad da ar gyfer datblygu eu gyrfaoedd. 

 
Dywedodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd y bydd cyfweliadau'n cael eu cynnal dros y 
ddau fis nesaf, gyda disgwyl i'r staff newydd ddechrau ar 4 Medi 2023. 
Ychwanegodd mai ymrwymiad y Weinyddiaeth yma yw darparu 150 o swyddi 
pellach i brentisiaid a graddedigion yn ystod tymor y Cyngor yma. Mae'r nifer a 
dderbynnir eleni yn adeiladu ar y gwaith rhagorol a wnaed eisoes dros y 
blynyddoedd i ddarparu swyddi o ansawdd da, sy'n talu'n dda i'n trigolion. 

 
Eglurodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd fod ymrwymiad yn nhymor diwethaf y Cyngor i 
greu 150 o swyddi i brentisiaid a graddedigion. Rhwng 2018 a 2022, crëwyd 
cyfanswm o 256 o swyddi o fewn yr Awdurdod, sy’n golygu bod y Cyngor wedi 

Tudalen 9



 

rhagori ar ei ymrwymiad. At hynny, ers 2012 pan ddechreuodd y cynllun, mae 
cyfanswm o 324 o brentisiaethau a 125 o swyddi i raddedigion wedi’u creu. 

 
Dywedodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd fod Rhaglen Brentisiaethau’r Cyngor yn cael ei 
pharchu’n eang ac wedi’i chydnabod am y cyfleoedd rhagorol y mae’n eu 
darparu. Cafodd y Cyngor ei goroni’n Facro Gyflogwr y Flwyddyn yng Ngwobrau 
Prentisiaethau Cymru yn 2018 a 2021. Mae'r Cyngor ar hyn o bryd yn cefnogi 
Trivallis gyda'i gynllun prentisiaeth ac wedi cefnogi Cynghorau Pen-y-bont ar 
Ogwr a Merthyr yn y gorffennol.  

 
I gloi, dywedodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd fod Swyddogion y Cyngor wedi mynychu 
nifer o gyfarfodydd a chynadleddau i siarad am y rhaglen brentisiaeth ac roedd 
yn falch o gadarnhau bod cynllun Prentisiaeth RhCT yn cael ei adnabod fel 
rhaglen flaenllaw yng Nghymru.  

 
Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiwn ategol. 

5. Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol S.Powderhill i'r Aelod 
o'r Cabinet ar faterion yr Amgylchedd a Hamdden, Cynghorydd y 
Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Crimmings: 

 
“A oes modd i'r Aelod o'r Cabinet roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y gwaith i 
wella Parc Coffa Ynysangharad?” 

Ymateb gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Crimmings: 
 

Eglurodd y Cynghorydd Crimmings fod gwaith ar y rownd ddiweddaraf o 
welliannau mawr i Barc Coffa Ynysangharad wedi mynd rhagddo’n dda, ac y 
bydd yn cael ei gwblhau’n fuan. Mae’r gwaith yn cael ei gefnogi gan becyn 
buddsoddi sylweddol o £1.9 miliwn gan Gronfa Dreftadaeth y Loteri 
Genedlaethol, cronfa Trawsnewid Trefi Llywodraeth Cymru, a chyfraniadau'r 
Cyngor. Ychwanegodd fod y gwaith o adeiladu canolfan newydd Calon Taf ar fin 
cael ei gwblhau, gyda dim ond ambell ddarn o waith gorffenedig i'w wneud. Y 
nod yw agor y Ganolfan yn ei chyfanrwydd ym mis Gorffennaf. 

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Crimmings y bydd y Ganolfan yn darparu gofod 
dosbarth pwrpasol, gardd awyr agored gyda gwelyau blodau uchel, a thŷ gwydr. 
Y bwriad yw y bydd yn ganolbwynt cymunedol a fydd yn annog trigolion i ddysgu 
ac ymgysylltu gyda'i gilydd. Ychwanegodd fod yr hen floc toiledau segur yn cael 
ei adfer a'i drawsnewid yn gyfleuster lles i staff gwasanaeth y Parciau, a bod y 
gwaith bron wedi'i gwblhau, gyda'r Contractwr ar hyn o bryd yn rendro tu allan yr 
adeilad.  Mae staff y Parciau wedi symud eu holl offer i'r cyfleuster newydd.  

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Crimmings fod y Safle Seindorf a'r ardal gyfagos 
wedi'u hadnewyddu'n llawn, a bod gwaith plannu yn mynd rhagddo ar hyn o 
bryd.  Mae'r dyluniad llinell amser ar gyfer llawr y Safle Seindorf bron wedi'i 
orffen, a bydd y nodwedd hon yn cael ei chwblhau dros yr ychydig wythnosau 
nesaf. Ychwanegodd fod gwaith yn parhau ar adfer ardal yr Ardd Isel - mae'r 
waliau perimedr a'r gwaith atgyweirio llwybrau troed bron wedi'u cwblhau, ac 
mae'r meinciau newydd hefyd wedi cyrraedd.  Disgwylir i'r gwaith plannu 

Tudalen 10



 

ddechrau'n fuan.  

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Crimmings wrth yr Aelodau fod y Cydlynydd Prosiect 
yn hwyluso cyflwyno cyrsiau a gweithgareddau yn y parc a hefyd yn paratoi ar 
gyfer cynllunio a gweithredu prosiect canmlwyddiant y Parc. Mae disgwyl i hwn 
gael ei gynnal ddydd Sul, 6 Awst, ar y cyd ag achlysur Cegaid o Fwyd Cymru. 
Bydd y dathliad canmlwyddiant yn cynnwys cerddoriaeth fyw o'r safle seindorf, 
teithiau cerdded hanesyddol, a gweithgareddau cyfeillgar i'r teulu oll.  Mae’n 
argoeli i fod yn achlysur cyffrous i’r gymuned i nodi canmlwyddiant y Parc. 

Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiwn ategol. 

6. Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol R. Williams i Arweinydd 
y Cyngor, Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan OBE: 

 
“Yng ngoleuni’r diffyg cyllid sy’n wynebu cynghorau ledled Cymru ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn nesaf, a all yr Arweinydd roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am drafodaethau 
gydag Arweinwyr Cynghorau eraill a Llywodraeth Cymru?” 

Ymateb gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan OBE: 
 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod trafodaethau rhwng Llywodraeth Cymru ac 
Arweinwyr Cynghorau yn cael eu cynnal yn wythnosol, lle mae'r Arweinwyr yn 
parhau i alw am fuddsoddiad pellach a mwy o ddyraniadau gan Lywodraeth 
Cymru. Ychwanegodd fod y rhagolygon ariannu ar gyfer gwasanaethau 
cyhoeddus dros y tair blynedd nesaf yn ymddangos yn anodd, ac yn seiliedig ar 
yr adolygiad cynhwysfawr o wariant tair blynedd a gynhaliwyd gan Lywodraeth y 
DU, mae'r awdurdod lleol ar hyn o bryd yn edrych i gael codiad o 3.1%. Byddai 
hyn yn gadael y Cyngor yn brin o arian ar gyfer cynnal gwasanaethau y flwyddyn 
nesaf. 
 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod y darlun yn debyg ledled Cymru gyda llawer o 
awdurdodau lleol yn adrodd am sefyllfa waeth nag yn RhCT. Mae'r Cyngor wedi 
llwyddo i fantoli ei gyllideb eleni drwy flaenoriaethu'n briodol ar gyfer Ysgolion a 
Gofal Cymdeithasol a gwneud penderfyniadau anodd. Ychwanegodd fod 
pwysau ar wasanaethau o ganlyniad i'r cynnydd pellach posib mewn cyfraddau 
llog a fydd yn effeithio ar fenthyca a marchnadoedd. Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod 
cyfarfodydd rheolaidd yn cael eu cynnal gyda'r gweinidog cyllid i drafod y 
rhagolygon. 
 
Siaradodd yr Arweinydd am yr amwysedd ynghylch sut y bydd Llywodraeth y DU 
yn talu am ddyfarniad cyflog y GIG yn Lloegr a sut y bydd y diffyg eglurder yn 
effeithio ar y swm canlyniadol i Gymru. Ychwanegodd nad yw hyn yn ffordd o 
redeg gwasanaethau cyhoeddus a'i fod yn gobeithio y bydd y blynyddoedd nesaf 
yn gwella, ond sicrhaodd y Cyngor y bydd yn parhau i lobïo Llywodraeth San 
Steffan. Cyfeiriodd at werth pob awdurdod lleol a dywedodd ei fod yn gobeithio 
am newid gan na all gwasanaethau cyhoeddus weithredu’n effeithiol heb arian 
digonol. 

 
Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiwn ategol oherwydd bod yr amser a neilltuwyd 
wedi dod i ben. 
 

17   Gwrthsefyll Llifogydd  
 

 

Tudalen 11



 

  Cyflwynodd Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Rheng Flaen yr adroddiad (a 
ategwyd gan gyflwyniad Power Point) gyda'r diben o roi'r wybodaeth 
ddiweddaraf am gamau gweithredu'r Cyngor i liniaru'r perygl o lifogydd ers 
Storm Dennis, ynghyd â throsolwg o'r gwaith a wnaed i adnewyddu ac 
uwchraddio'r isadeiledd cyhoeddus yr effeithiwyd arno gan lifogydd. Dywedodd y 
Cyfarwyddwr fod yr adroddiad yn croesgyfeirio adroddiadau ac ymrwymiadau 
blaenorol yn dilyn y storm ac yn nodi rhaglen waith, sydd wedi'i chynnwys yn yr 
atodiadau i'r adroddiad, yn dilyn y stormydd ym mis Chwefror 2020 a adawodd 
dros 1,500 eiddo dan ddŵr. 
 
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr fod y Cyngor wedi ymchwilio i'r llifogydd ac wedi llunio 
cyfanswm o bedwar ar bymtheg o Adroddiadau Adran 19. Cyfeiriodd at y gwaith 
sydd wedi'i wneud mewn ymateb i'r dinistr a achoswyd gan Storm Dennis yn 
2020 a'r meysydd gwariant cyfalaf gyda grantiau ac ymrwymiadau gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru, ynghyd â bron i £3 miliwn o gyllid y Cyngor ei hun. 
 
Eglurodd y Cyfarwyddwr fod y rhaglen gyfalaf pedair blynedd, a fydd yn dod i 
ben yn y flwyddyn ariannol hon, yn cynnwys cyfanswm o tua £84 miliwn, sy'n 
cynnwys £42 miliwn ar gyfer gwaith uwchraddio ac atgyweirio uniongyrchol, £20 
miliwn ar gyfer gwaith diogelwch tomennydd glo, £14 miliwn yn ymwneud â 
rheoli perygl llifogydd a £4.75 miliwn ar gyfer priffyrdd a heolydd.  
 
Cyfeiriodd y Cyfarwyddwr at Atodiad A sy’n rhoi trosolwg o’r camau gweithredu a 
adroddwyd i’r Cabinet ym mis Rhagfyr 2020, yn benodol y rheiny sy'n ymwneud 
â Gwasanaethau Rheng Flaen, megis cynyddu ei gapasiti mewnol ar lefel 
weithredol a rheoli a chynnal y rhwydwaith o asedau draenio, gan ddatblygu, 
codi ymwybyddiaeth o ran llifogydd, a chamau gorfodi yn ogystal â datblygu 
strategaeth perygl llifogydd trwy gyfres o ymgynghoriadau, a fydd yn cael eu 
hystyried gan Bwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu'r Cyngor a'r Cabinet. 
 
Parhaodd Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Rheng Flaen â’i ddiweddariad ar yr 
isadeiledd a pheryglon llifogydd drwy gyfres o ddelweddau ar nifer o sleidiau 
Power Point o dan y penawdau canlynol, a oedd yn dangos faint o gynlluniau 
sydd ar y gweill ar draws y fwrdeistref sirol:  
 
 Digwyddiadau Storm Chwefror 2020 
 Safleoedd derbyn 
 Cam 3A Draenio a Chlirio 
 FAS - Lôn y Parc – Cyn-adeiladu/Ar ôl adeiladu 
 FAS Teras Bronallt 
 Treorci Rhan 1a – Heol Tyle Du 
 FAS Teras y Waun 
 Heol Cefnpennar – Leinin Cwlfer Mewnol 
 Leinin a Chwlfer Newydd - Pentre 
 Cilfach Heol Pentre  
 Uwchraddiad Cwlfer Teras Tynycoed 
 A4059 – Trawsgludiad Newtown 
 Cwlfer newydd ar Ffordd y Rhigos 
 Nant y Frwd – Stryd Allen, Aberpennar, Atgyweirio ac Uwchraddio 

Argyfwng  
 Arllwysfa Teras Granville 
 Basn malurion Teras Granville 
 Teras Campbell - Cilfach 
 Cwm-bach – Cilfach Heol y Gamlas 
 Bryn Ifor - cilfach cwlfer 

 

Tudalen 12



 

 Stryd Kingcraft - Cilfach 
 Rhes Painter – Gwelliannau Cilfach 
 Cwlfer y Dramffordd 
 Gorsaf Bwmpio Glenboi 
 Gwaith Strwythurol – Pont Castle Inn 
 Trin Ymyl yr Afon - Castle Inn 
 Heol Berw – (Pont Wen) Pontypridd 
 Cam 2 Mur Afon Blaen-cwm 
 Pont Droed Parc Ynysangharad 
 Trwsio Ymyl Allfa Cwlfer Tyn-y-bryn 
 Llwybr Cymunedol Ynys-hir 
 Wal Afon Heol Pontypridd – Porth 
 Wal Afon Stryd y Groes – Ynys-hir 
 Pont Droed Maes-y-Ffynnon 
 Arglawdd Heol Llwyncelyn 
 Trwsio Ymyl yr Afon ger Pont Cwm Clydach 
 Pont Nant Clydach – Ymyl Ynysybwl 
 Stryd Siôn, Pontypridd 
 Pont Tramffordd Pen-y-darren, Aberdâr 
 Pont Parc Gelligaled, Ystrad 
 Tirlithriad Mynydd Maerdy 

 
 
Yn dilyn y cymhorthion gweledol, pwysleisiodd Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau 
Rheng Flaen bwysigrwydd parhau â momentwm y gyfres o waith ar draws 
RhCT, gan mai'r awdurdod lleol sy'n cynrychioli'r risg uchaf o lifogydd dŵr wyneb 
gyda'i dopograffeg a'i ddaearyddiaeth unigryw. 
 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth fanwl ar raddfa’r gwaith sydd wedi’i wneud ac sy’n parhau i 
gael ei wneud ledled y fwrdeistref sirol, canmolodd yr Arweinydd Gyfarwyddwr y 
Gwasanaethau Rheng Flaen a’r carfanau perthnasol (yn enwedig carfan y 
Pennaeth Rheoli Perygl Llifogydd a Phrosiectau Strategol) sydd wedi bod yn 
ymwneud yn helaeth â chyflwyno rhaglenni i fynd i’r afael ag effeithiau ffisegol 
Storm Dennis ar isadeiledd cyhoeddus a lliniaru perygl llifogydd. 
 
Yn dilyn y drafodaeth, roedd yr Arweinydd, Arweinwyr/Dirprwyon y Grwpiau a’r 
Llywydd yn dymuno cofnodi eu diolch i Gyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Rheng 
Flaen, Mr Roger Waters, a fyddai’n ymddeol yn fuan. Talwyd teyrnged i’w 
ymrwymiad, ei ymroddiad a’i waith caled yn ystod ei yrfa hir yn RhCT a 
dymunodd pob un ohonynt ymddeoliad hir a hapus iddo. 
 
Dywedodd y Llywydd y gallai unrhyw gwestiynau sydd heb eu hateb gael eu 
cyfeirio at Gyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Rheng Flaen drwy fewnflwch Uned 
Busnes y Cyngor. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad a'r cyflwyniad. 
 

18   Rhaglen Waith y Cyngor 2023/24  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu Raglen Waith ddrafft ar y rhestr arfaethedig o faterion sydd angen 
eu hystyried gan y Cyngor ar gyfer Blwyddyn y Cyngor 2023-2024.  
Ychwanegodd fod dyddiadau ychwanegol ar ben yr hyn a gyhoeddwyd yn y 
Cyfarfod Cyffredinol Blynyddol bellach wedi eu hychwanegu at y rhaglen waith. 
 

 

Tudalen 13



 

Yn ystod y cyfnod a amlinellwyd, dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y 
gallai'r rhaglen waith newid i adlewyrchu gofynion adrodd ychwanegol 
neu unrhyw newidiadau deddfwriaethol neu fusnes arall a allai ddeillio o 
ystyriaethau pwyllgorau, megis argymhellion Craffu neu'r Pwyllgor Penodiadau. 
Ychwanegodd y caiff unrhyw newidiadau i fusnes yn cael ei gytuno gan y 
Swyddog Priodol gyda chytundeb terfynol gan y Llywydd. Lle bo modd, bydd 
Arweinwyr Grwpiau hefyd yn cael gwybod am unrhyw newidiadau yn ystod 
Blwyddyn y Cyngor. 
 
I gloi, ac ar ôl trafod yr adroddiad, dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth  
y byddai'r eitemau yn yr adran 'Amrywiol' ar raglen waith y Cyngor yn cael eu 
dyrannu yn ystod y flwyddyn (yn amodol ar gytundeb). Bydd yr Aelodau cael eu 
hysbysu am hyn gan ddiweddariadau rheolaidd ym mhob cyfarfod o'r Cyngor. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo’r Rhaglen Waith ar gyfer Blwyddyn y Cyngor 
2023-2024 ac unrhyw ddiweddariadau priodol pellach gan y Cyfarwyddwr 
Gwasanaeth, Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu. 
 

19   MECANWAITH RHOI GWYBOD AM RYBUDD O GYNNIG  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth, Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu adroddiad a oedd yn gofyn i'r Cyngor ystyried y cynigion ffurfiol  
ar gyfer cofnodi ac adrodd ar ganlyniad ac effaith   
mabwysiadu a/neu gyfeirio Rhybudd o Gynnig, yn dilyn pleidlais gan y Cyngor. 
 
Yng nghyfarfod y Cyngor a gynhaliwyd ar 29 Mawrth 2023, cefnogodd yr 
Aelodau'r cynnig a gyflwynwyd gan y Cynghorwyr D Grehan ac A Rogers mewn 
perthynas ag ymestyn y mecanwaith adrodd presennol. Cyfeiriodd y 
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth at y trefniadau presennol sydd ar waith i gofnodi 
canlyniadau cynigion a fabwysiadwyd gan y Cyngor a lle bo'n briodol, y rheini a 
gyfeiriwyd at bwyllgor arall. Yn achos atgyfeiriad i bwyllgor Craffu, mae'r 
canlyniad ar hyn o bryd yn cael ei gyfeirio'n ôl i'r Cyngor mewn adroddiad 
sylweddol i hysbysu'r Aelodau o ganlyniad y cynnig gwreiddiol. 
 
Amlinellodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y cynigion ar gyfer y materion hynny 
sydd angen gohebiaeth allanol, a chynigir eu bod yn dilyn yr un trefniadau â'r 
materion mewnol hynny, a byddai'r canlyniadau'n cael eu cofnodi a'u cyhoeddi 
ar dudalennau gwe'r Cyngor. Ychwanegodd fod y mater hwn wedi'i drafod yn 
ddiweddar gan y Pwyllgor Cyfansoddiad a phenderfynodd yr Aelodau gytuno ar 
y cynigion. 
 
Ar ôl trafod yr adroddiad PENDERFYNWYD i nodi'r gefnogaeth a 
darperir gan Bwyllgor Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor o ran y trefniadau 
adolygu. 
 

 

20   Sefydlu Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus ar gyfer Cwm Taf Morgannwg-
Trefniadau Trosolwg A Chraffu ar y Cyd  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth, Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu yr adroddiad a oedd yn gofyn i'r Cyngor gymeradwyo'r trefniadau 
newydd ar gyfer Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cwm Taf Morgannwg, yn 
dilyn y newid i un Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus (BGC) ar gyfer Cwm Taf 
Morgannwg sydd bellach yn cynnwys Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar 
Ogwr yn ogystal â Chynghorau Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf a Merthyr 
Tudful. 

 

Tudalen 14



 

 
Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth wybod am y trefniadau cyfredol ar gyfer 
y  Cydbwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu rhwng Cynghorau RhCT a Merthyr Tudful, 
sy'n craffu ar waith y Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus a’i bartneriaid,  
yn unol â'r gofyniad statudol a nodir yn  Neddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol  
(Cymru), 2015 a chanllawiau statudol cysylltiedig. Ychwanegodd 
y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth, yn dilyn nifer o drafodaethau rhwng y tair unedol  
awdurdodau, fod y cylch gorchwyl arfaethedig a chyfansoddiad y pwyllgor  
wedi'u cytuno a'u hystyried, ac wedi'u nodi yn yr adroddiad.  
Bwriad hyn yw adeiladu ar y trefniadau cyfredol o ran craffu ar y cyd. 
 
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y byddai'r Cydbwyllgor Trosolwg a 
Chraffu newydd yn cynnwys pum Aelod o bob Awdurdod Lleol yn ogystal â'r  
aelodau cyfetholedig lle bo’n briodol. Bydd y rhain yn cynnwys cynrychiolwyr 
sy'n ddinasyddion,  
cynrychiolwyr o Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru, y Bwrdd Iechyd a   
Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub De Cymru. Ychwanegodd y gofynnir hefyd i 
awdurdodau lleol enwebu cynrychiolydd dirprwyol, a fydd yn adlewyrchu 
cydbwysedd gwleidyddol y Cynghorau. Yn unol â'r trefniadau blaenorol ar y cyd, 
bydd y Cadeirydd yn cael ei benodi gan y Pwyllgor gydag Is-Gadeirydd yn cael 
ei enwebu o Awdurdod Lleol arall. 
 
Soniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth mai'r cynnig yw y bydd  
Rhondda Cynon Taf yn parhau i roi cymorth i'r Cydbwyllgor Trosolwg a  
Chraffu ar gyfer y ddwy flynedd nesaf, gyda chyfle i'r awdurdodau lleol eraill i   
adolygu'r trefniant hwn ar ddiwedd y cyfnod o ddwy flynedd. 
 
I gloi, dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth fod y cynigion wedi'u  
hystyried gan y BGC, ac roedd y Bwrdd yn fodlon i'r  
Cynghorau fabwysiadu hyn. Bydd Cynghorau  
Merthyr a Phen-y-bont ar Ogwr hefyd yn ystyried adroddiadau tebyg.  
 
Ar ôl trafod yr adroddiad, PENDERFYNWYD: 
 

1. Cytuno i greu Cydbwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu yn cynnwys Aelodau 
etholedig o Gynghorau Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf, Merthyr 
Tudful a Phen-y-bont ar Ogwr i graffu ar Fwrdd Gwasanaethau 
Cyhoeddus Cwm Taf Morgannwg; 
 

2. Cymeradwyo Cylch Gorchwyl Drafft Cydbwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu 
Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cwm Taf Morgannwg, fel y nodir yn 
Atodiad 1, a gwneud unrhyw sylwadau pellach y teimlir eu bod yn briodol; 
 

3. Pennu aelodau Statudol y BGC (anweithredol) a ‘chyfranogwyr wedi’u 
gwahodd’ i wasanaethu fel aelodau cyfetholedig ar Gydbwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Chraffu BGC Cwm Taf fel yr amlygwyd yn adran 6 o’r 
adroddiad; 
 

4. Cytuno y dylid bwrw ymlaen â threfniadau penodi’r Cadeirydd a’r Is-
Gadeirydd, a amlygwyd yn adran 7 o’r adroddiad, gan ddechrau o 
ddechrau Blwyddyn y Cyngor 2023/24; 
 

5. Cytuno bod Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf yn darparu’r 
trefniadau cymorth a gweinyddol, a amlygwyd yn adran 8 o’r adroddiad, 
am gyfnod o 2 flynedd, gan ddechrau o ddechrau Blwyddyn y Cyngor 

Tudalen 15



 

2023/24 cyn adolygu’r trefniadau ar ddiwedd y cyfnod yma. 
 

6. Cytuno y dylid darparu hyfforddiant i bob Aelod o Gydbwyllgor Trosolwg 
a Chraffu BGC Cwm Taf Morgannwg i'w cynorthwyo i gyflawni eu rôl 
newydd; a 
 

7. Enwebu’r 5 Aelod Etholedig a ganlyn, 4 (Llafur), 1 (Plaid Cymru) ac 1 
dirprwy aelod ychwanegol (Llafur), yn unol â threfniadau cydbwysedd 
gwleidyddol y Cyngor:  
 
Cynghorwyr y Fwrdeistref Sirol D R Bevan, B Stephens, J Bonetto, M 
Ashford, a K Morgan (a'r Cynghorydd Sheryl Evans fel dirprwy aelod). 

 
21   Adroddiad Blynyddol 2022/2023  

 
 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth, Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu ei adroddiad a oedd yn cyflwyno Adroddiad Blynyddol y Pwyllgor 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar gyfer Blwyddyn y Cyngor 2022/23, gyda chyfle 
i'r Cadeirydd a'r Is-Gadeirydd gyfrannu at fusnes y pwyllgor. Ychwanegodd fod 
meysydd allweddol i'w hystyried yn yr adroddiad yn cynnwys datblygiad 
Aelodau, Gwasanaethau Aelodau a chefnogaeth i swyddogaethau democrataidd 
anweithredol y Cyngor ar gyfer y flwyddyn.  
 
Yn ei rôl fel Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd roedd yn dymuno cofnodi ei 
ddiolch i Bwyllgor y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd am y gefnogaeth barhaus yr 
oedd ef a’r garfan Gwasanaethau Democrataidd wedi’i dderbyn. 
 
Derbyniodd yr aelodau anerchiad gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol W. Jones 
a Chynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol M. Webber, Cadeirydd ac Is-Gadeirydd y 
Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd, i gyflwyno'r adroddiad blynyddol ar gyfer 
Blwyddyn y Cyngor 2022/2023.  
 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth, PENDERFYNWYD nodi cynnwys Adroddiad Blynyddol 
Pwyllgor y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar gyfer Blwyddyn y Cyngor 2022/23. 
 

 

22   Rhybudd o Gynnig  
 

 

  Trafod Rhybudd o Gynnig sydd wedi’i gyflwyno yn enwau Cynghorwyr y 
Fwrdeistref Sirol S Trask a K Johnson: 
 
Mae unigrwydd ac ynysigrwydd cymdeithasol yn cael effaith fawr ar iechyd 
meddwl pobl o bob oed, dyma broblem sy'n dod i'r amlwg yn fwy aml ers 
pandemig coronafeirws.   Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi sefydlu cronfa tair 
blynedd gwerth £500,000 bob blwyddyn er mwyn helpu i fynd i'r afael â'r 
broblem yma ym mhob rhan o Gymru.  Hyd yn hyn, dim ond £22,727 sydd wedi 
cael ei ddyrannu i ardal Rhondda Cynon Taf yn ystod y 2 flynedd ddiwethaf, 
mae hyn yn cyfateb i 9c fesul person yn RhCT. Mae CBSRhCT wedi dyrannu'r 
swm bach yma i grwpiau lleol yn rhan o'i Gronfa Rhwydweithiau Cymdogaeth. 
Rydyn ni'n canmol gwaith y grwpiau cymunedol bach yma ond rydyn ni o'r farn 
nad yw'r lefel cyllid presennol gan Lywodraeth Cymru'n ddigonol er mwyn cael 
effaith eang ar drigolion.  
 
Bydd y pecyn cyllid 3 blynedd gwreiddiol yn dod i ben yn dilyn blwyddyn ariannol 
2023/2024. 
  

  

Tudalen 16



 

Felly, rydyn ni'n cynnig bod: 
  

• Y Cyngor yma'n nodi bod unigrwydd ac ynysigrwydd cymdeithasol yn 
cael effaith niweidiol ar iechyd meddwl nifer o drigolion RhCT, a dydy 
cyllid Llywodraeth Cymru ddim yn ddigon i allu gwneud gwahaniaeth. 
 

• Y Cyngor yma’n galw ar yr Arweinydd i ysgrifennu at Eluned Morgan AS 
yn gofyn bod lefel y cyllid yn cynyddu eleni fel bod modd gwneud 
gwahaniaeth go iawn i fywydau’r trigolion hynny yn RhCT a fydd yn elwa 
o'r cyllid. 

 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth, PENDERFYNWYD mabwysiadu'r Rhybudd o Gynnig. 
 

 
 

 
 

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 6.35 pm Y Cynghorydd G Hughes 
Cadeirydd. 

 

Tudalen 17



tudalen wag



 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL 
 

12 JULY 2023 
 

MEMBERS QUESTIONS ON NOTICE 
 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATION. 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To present the order of questions in respect of the Members Questions on Notice, 

following the amendment to the process agreed at the Council AGM 2019.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

It is recommended that Members: 
 

2.1 Receive the Questions and any supplementary questions proposed, as in 
accordance with the running order advised upon in 4.3 of the report, which should 
not exceed a 20-minute time period. 
 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

3.1 As agreed at the Council AGM on the 15th May, 2019, Members agreed to amend 
Council Procedure Rule 9.2 in respect of Members Questions on Notice. A further 
amendment was made to Council Procedure Rule 9.2 at the Council AGM on the 
26th May 2021 in respect of supplementary questions following expiry of the 20 
minute time duration. Council AGM 2021 

 
4. MEMBERS QUESTION ON NOTICE 
 
4.1 The closing date for receipt of Members Questions on Notice to the Council 

Business Unit for the Council meeting on the 12th July 2023 was 5pm on the 29th 
June 2023. 

 
4.2 Twenty-five questions were received and put forward to the Council Ballot held 

on the 3rd July 2023, to determine the running order of the questions at the 
Council Meeting.  

 
4.3 The results of the ballot are outlined below, however since undertaking the 

ballot, the Proper Officer received notification from Councillor L. Addiscott 
advising that she would like to withdraw her question, which was drawn at 4. 
The revised order of questions is listed below: 

 

Tudalen 19

Agendwm 5

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2019/05/15/Reports/Item7TheCouncilsConstitutionProposedAmendmentsAndAncillaryMatters.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2021/05/26/Reports/AGMItem5Thecouncilsconstitutionproposedamendmentsandancillarymatters.pdf


Number Corresponding Question 

1 Question from County Borough Councillor J. Brencher to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Will the Leader update on the commitment to fund 10 PCSOs in RCT 

and provide an overview of how the Community Wardens service is 

benefitting our communities?” 

2 Question from County Borough Councillor D. Parkin to the Cabinet 
Member for Environment and Leisure, County Borough Councillor 
A. Crimmings: 
 
“Will the Cabinet Member please provide an update on the progress of 

play area improvements across the County Borough?” 

3 Question from County Borough Councillor S. Emanuel to the 

Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 

 

“Can the Leader provide an update on the progress of the South Wales 

Metro?” 

4 Question from County Borough Councillor A. J. Dennis to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“What support and signposting services are available to residents in 
regards to the cost of living crisis?” 

 

5 Question from County Borough Councillor S. Morgans to the 
Cabinet Member for Education, Youth Participation and Welsh 
Language, County Borough Councillor R. Lewis: 
 
“Following the granting of planning approval, can the Cabinet Member 

outline the next steps for the development of a brand-new school in 

Ferndale for YGG Llyn-Y-Forwyn?” 

 

6 Question from County Borough Councillor D.R. Bevan to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Will the Leader update on the progress of the Tylorstown tip works?” 

 

7 Question from County Borough Councillor W. Lewis to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“How is the Council working with and supporting local food banks through 
the effects of the Cost-of-Living crisis?” 

 

Tudalen 20



8 Question from County Borough Councillor M. Maohoub to the 

Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 

 

“Can the Leader provide an update on the preparations that the Council 
has undertaken in readiness for the Welsh Government’s 20mph rollout?” 

 

9 Question from County Borough Councillor T. Williams to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Could the Leader provide Councillors with an update on the Shared 

Prosperity Fund Community Fund?” 

 

10 Question from County Borough Councillor C. Middle to the Leader 

of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 

 

“What progress is the Council making in achieving its commitment to be 

carbon neutral by 2030?” 

11 Question from County Borough Councillor G. O. Jones to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“We have heard in recent months that the combined impacts of both 
Brexit and the war in Ukraine are having a profound effect on our 
construction industry.  What does this mean for the Council and how can 
we mitigate these impacts?” 

 

12 Question from County Borough Councillor P Binning to the 
Cabinet Member for Education, Youth Participation and Welsh 
Language, County Borough Councillor R Lewis: 
 
“The Welsh-language primary school in my ward, YGGG Llantrisant, 
cannot recruit Teaching Assistants due to the lack of any interest of 
suitable, Welsh-speaking applicants. They have been trying for a year 
and there are other schools in the Borough in the same position. Can 
the Member please let us know if there are any plans to address this 
situation?” 

 

13 Question from County Borough Councillor K. Morgan to the 

Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 

 

“Should passenger trains be reinstated to Hirwaun and Rhigos, where 
would the stations for both villages be located?” 

 

14 
Question from County Borough Councillor N. H. Morgan to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 

 
“Will the Leader provide an update on how the Council is progressing its 
work to upgrade and improve drainage on its highway network?” 

Tudalen 21



15 Question from County Borough Councillor D. Williams to the 
Cabinet Member for Climate Change and Corporate Services, 
County Borough Councillor T. Leyshon: 
 
“Would the Cabinet Member provide a further update on the progress of 

EV charging point rollouts in RCT?” 

 

16 
Question from County Borough Councillor J. Smith to the Leader of 
the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“With the introduction of the Social Partnership and Procurement Bill in 
Wales, can the Leader please outline what action RCT are taking to 
ensure compliance with the legislation?” 

17 Question from County Borough Councillor H. Gronow to the Cabinet 
Member for Environment and Leisure, County Borough Councillor 
A. Crimmings:  
 
“Could the relevant Cabinet Member please give us an update on fly 
tipping across the county borough?” 

 

18 Question from County Borough Councillor J. Bonetto to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Leader please give a roundup on the Winter Welcome Centre 
scheme in RCT and outline what support the Council can offer residents 
for the winter ahead?” 
 

19 Question from County Borough Councillor S. Bradwick to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Leader make a statement on bus services in RCT and outline 

the latest position on providing support to providers?” 

 

20 Question from County Borough Councillor J. Edwards to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Would the Leader update on the progress of the Welsh Government 

funded walking and cycling route along the river through the Rhondda 

Fach?” 

 

21 Question from County Borough Councillor C. Preedy to the Cabinet 
Member for Environment and Leisure, County Borough Councillor 
A. Crimmings: 
 
“Can the Cabinet Member please give an update on the usage of the 
National Lido of Wales’ and any information on how long the summer 
season will be this year?” 
 

Tudalen 22



 
4.4       At the Council meeting a maximum of 20 minutes shall be allowed for Questions 

on Notice. Any questions that are not dealt with in this time limit shall fall. Any 
questions on notice not answered will need to be resubmitted to the Proper Officer 
for the next full Council meeting in accordance with these rules. 

 
 
  
 5. CONSULTATION / INVOLVEMENT 
 
5.1 The amendments to the Council Procedure Rule in respect of Members 

Questions was considered and agreed at the Council’s AGM 2019 and AGM 
2021, following consultation with the Constitution Committee. 

 
6. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 The amendment to the Council procedure rule taken forward at the Council AGM, 

allows the opportunity for more Members to ask a question at Council 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications aligned to this report. 
 
8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 

22 Question from County Borough Councillor C Lisles to the Cabinet 
Member for Environment & Leisure, Council County Borough 
Councillor A Crimmings: 
 
“The Cwm Taf Morgannwg Wellbeing plan suggests that at present, we 
are using our resources in an unsustainable way, and this is 
contributing to the climate and nature emergencies. The document 
states that we already have good rates of recycling but there is more we 
must do to reduce the amount of waste we produce. This Council has 
three excellent reuse shops, or Sheds at Llantrisant, Aberdare and 
Treherbert. What plans are there to roll this model out further across the 
County and to introduce reuse shops back into the town centres as 
previously found in Pontypridd?” 
 

23 Question from County Borough Councillor M. Powell to the Leader 

of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 

 
"Could the Cabinet portfolio holder for highways say what measures or 
proposals the RCT Highways department are considering to alleviate 
the dire traffic congestion problems that the Pontypridd Town centre 
has been enduring for many, many years please?" 
 

24 Question from County Borough Councillor E. L. Dunning to the 
Cabinet Member for Education, Youth Participation and Welsh 
Language, County Borough Councillor R. Lewis:  
 
“Will the Cabinet Member please make a statement on outreach work 
and detached youth service provision in Rhondda Cynon Taf, particularly 
in the Ystrad area?” 

 

Tudalen 23



 
8.1 The report has been prepared in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9.2. 
 
9. LINKS TO THE COUNCILS CORPORATE PLAN / OTHER CORPORATE 

PRIORITIES. 
 

9.1 The opportunity for Members to propose questions at Council meetings 
allows Members to receive information which potentially detail the Council 
priorities. It also embraces the Future Generations Act as all work and 
decisions taken by Council seek to improve the social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being of the County Borough.  

 
10. CONCLUSION 
 
10.1 Detailing the procedure for Members Questions on Notice assists in 

transparency for both Members and for public engagement. 
 
Other Information:- 
 
Relevant Scrutiny Committee – Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Tudalen 24



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

AS AMENDED BY 
 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL 
 

12 JULY 2023 
 

 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATION. 
 

 
 
 

Item:  MEMBERS QUESTIONS ON NOTICE 
 

 

 
Background Papers 

 
      
 

 
Council AGM 2019. 
 
Council AGM 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 25

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2019/05/15/Reports/Item7TheCouncilsConstitutionProposedAmendmentsAndAncillaryMatters.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2021/05/26/Reports/AGMItem5Thecouncilsconstitutionproposedamendmentsandancillarymatters.pdf


tudalen wag



   

 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023 / 2024 
 

COUNCIL 
 

12th JULY 2023 
 
  

2022/23 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 
 
 
REPORT OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE & GROUP DIRECTOR - 
FINANCE, DIGITAL & FRONTLINE SERVICES 
AUTHOR: Barrie Davies (01443) 424026 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.1 This report constitutes the statutory requirement to provide Members with 

information on: - 
 

• the Council’s Treasury Management activity during 2022/23; and 

• the actual Prudential and Treasury Indicators for 2022/23. 
 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 It is recommended that Members: 

a) note the content of the report; and  
b) note the funding arrangements for the Sustainable 

Communities for Learning programme as set out at section 12. 
 

 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION  

 
3.1 To report to Council the Annual Treasury Management Review in line with 

the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management.  
 

Tudalen 27

Agendwm 6



   

 
4.0 INTRODUCTION  
 
4.1 Treasury Management is defined as: 

“The management of a local authority’s cash flows, its borrowings and its 
investments, the management of the associated risks, and the pursuit of the 
optimum performance or return consistent with those risks”. 
 

4.2 This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance 
in Local Authorities. The Council is required to comply with both Codes 
through Regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003. 

 
4.3 The primary requirements of the Codes are as follows: 

 

• Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy. 

• Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices, which 
set out the manner in which the Council will seek to achieve stated 
policies and objectives. 

• Approval by Council (by 31st March) of:  
o A Treasury Management Strategy Report including Treasury 

Indicators and an Investment Strategy for the year ahead; and   
o A Capital Strategy Report (including Prudential Indicators) to 

support the Council’s strategic and financial planning arrangements. 

• Council approval of a Mid-Year Treasury Management Stewardship 
Report and an Annual Treasury Management Review Report for the 
previous year. 

• Effective scrutiny of the Treasury Management function. 
 

4.4  Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council complies with these 
requirements and supplements this by including information on treasury 
activities and prudential indicators in the quarterly Council performance 
reports to Members.   

 
4.5 During 2022/23, the Governance and Audit Committee undertook scrutiny 

of the Treasury Management function, including treasury / capital strategy 
and annual / mid-year performance reports.  
                

4.6  This annual report will cover the following areas of treasury activity during 
2022/23: 

• Treasury Management advisors; 

• Economic background; 

• Borrowing strategy; 

• Borrowing activity and results; 

• Estimated and actual treasury position and prudential and treasury 
indicators; 

• Investment strategy; and  

• Investment activity and results. 
 

Tudalen 28



   

4.7  It should be noted that the accounting practice to be followed by the Council 
requires financial instruments in the statutory accounts (debt, investments, 
etc.) to be measured in a method compliant with International Financial 
Reporting Standards. The figures in this report are based on the principal 
amounts borrowed and invested and so may differ from those in the 
Council’s Statement of Accounts. 

 
 
5.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT ADVISORS 

 
5.1 The Council appointed Arlingclose as its Treasury Management Advisors 

from 1st April 2019 for the 3 year period up to 31st March 2022, with the 
option to extend for up to 2 years. Following a review of the service provision, 
the option to extend for a further two years has been agreed. 

 
5.2 Since March 2020, the service provided has adapted with strategy meetings 

taking place virtually and technical updates being carried out via webinars. 
This practice has continued effectively post pandemic. The Council will 
continue to monitor the advisor’s performance. If any adverse performance 
or contractual issues arise, Members will be advised accordingly.   

 
5.3 The Council recognises that although information and advice is provided via 

the contract, responsibility for Treasury Management decisions remains with 
the Council. 
 
 

6.0  ECONOMIC BACKGROUND 
 
6.1  General Economic Background  
 
6.1.1  The UK economic backdrop during 2022/23 was one of high energy and 

commodity prices and inflation that in turn impacted on household budgets 

and spending. The conflict in Ukraine was a key factor in contributing to the 

UK’s economic position and relatively weak outlook, and more widely also 

contributed to keeping global inflation above central bank targets.  

6.1.2 Central Bank actions remained consistent with combatting inflation. The 

Bank of England, US Federal Reserve, and European Central Bank all 

increased interest rates over the period, taking into account the potential for 

economic slowdowns in these regions. 

 6.1.3  Starting the financial year at 5.5%, the annual CPI measure of UK inflation 
rose to 10.1% in July 2022 and then 11.1% in October 2022. Inflation 
remained high in subsequent months and appeared to be past the peak, 
albeit, remained at 10.1% in March 2023. During the last quarter of the 
financial year, food and housing costs were some of the largest upward 
contributors to the annual rate.  

 

Tudalen 29



   

6.1.4 The unemployment rate eased from 3.8% at the beginning of the year to 

3.7% toward the end of the financial year.   

 

6.1.5 Earnings were robust throughout the year, with earnings growth in 

December 2022 to February 2023 at 5.7% for both total pay (including 

bonuses) and 6.5% for regular pay. Once adjusted for inflation, both 

measures were negative for that period. 

6.1.6 The Bank of England official Bank Rate was 4.25% as at March 2023, up 

from 0.75% at March 2022.  The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) have 

increased the Bank Rate at each meeting during the year.  The February 

2023 Bank of England Monetary Policy Report noted that inflationary 

pressures remain elevated with growth stronger than was expected.  

6.1.7 In the financial markets uncertainty continued to be a key driver of market 

sentiment.  Bond yields remained relatively volatile due to concerns over 

elevated inflation, higher interest rates, the risk of the UK entering a 

recession and how long the Bank of England would continue to tighten 

monetary policy. Towards the end of the period, the collapse of Silicon Valley 

Bank in the US and purchase of Credit Suisse by UBS caused further 

volatility. 

6.1.8 The Council continued to maintain a low-risk strategy throughout the year to 

ensure exposure to risk of any capital loss was minimised. 

 
 
6.2 Short term investment rates 
 
6.2.1 The Council’s investment income is subject to changes in short term interest 

rates. The level of the Bank Rate is one of the main determinants of the rate 
of interest the Council receives on its short-term investments. The latest 
(June 2023) forward looking estimate of the Bank Rate (currently 5%), 
provided by our Treasury Management advisors, is for the rate to rise to 
5.5% in the autumn and start reducing in quarter 2 of 2024 before falling to 
a low of around 3% by mid-2025. 

 
 
6.3 Longer term interest rates 
 
6.3.1 The majority of the Council’s borrowing is from the PWLB (Public Works 

Loan Board). Long-term borrowing rates are influenced by gilt yields which 
are driven by inflation and demand/supply considerations.  

 
6.3.2 During August 2012, HM Treasury introduced “the certainty rate”, whereby 

local authorities are able to access borrowing at 0.2% cheaper than 
published PWLB rates. In order to access the discounted rate, authorities 

Tudalen 30



   

were required to provide Welsh Government (and onward, the Debt 
Management Office) with an indication of their potential borrowing 
requirements for the next 3 years. 

 
6.3.3 PWLB loans are no longer available to Councils planning to acquire 

investment assets primarily for yield or solely for exploiting commercial 
opportunities. 

 
6.3.4 PWLB maturity loan rates during 2022/23 were as follows (these are the 

“certainty rates”): 
 

 5 years 10 years 20 years 50 years 

Average 3.62% 3.76% 4.09% 3.74% 

Highest 5.44% 5.45% 5.87% 5.51% 

Lowest 2.18% 2.36% 2.55% 2.25% 

  
 
7.0  BORROWING STRATEGY  
 
7.1  The borrowing strategy for 2022/23, as included in the 2022/23 Treasury 

Management Strategy and approved by Council on 9th March 2022, stated 
that the borrowing requirement to fund the 2022/23 Capital Programme was 
£18.4m. In line with the capital programme, the borrowing requirement 
decreased to £15.6m during the year largely due to the re-profiling of the 
Sustainable Communities for Learning Programme (formerly 21st Century 
Schools schemes) and slippage in other capital schemes. It was also 
reported that the Council’s policy will continue to maximise “internal 
borrowing”, run down cash balances and forego interest earned. This also 
minimises counterparty risk (risk that an investment may become 
irrecoverable). 
 

7.2  The Strategy also reported that the Section 151 Officer, under delegated 
powers, would take the most appropriate form of borrowing depending upon 
the prevailing interest rates at the time, taking into account advice provided 
by our advisors and an assessment of risk.  
 

7.3  Affordability and the cost of carry remain important influences on the 
Council’s borrowing strategy. No new long or short term borrowing was 
taken during the year.  

 
7.4  The 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy also reported that the Council 

has previously taken advantage of debt rescheduling opportunities, for 
example, to generate savings at minimum risk, and that the Section 151 
Officer would monitor prevailing rates for any opportunities during the year 
based upon information provided by the Council’s Treasury advisors. PWLB 
loan redemption rates have reduced the attractiveness of early repayments 
associated with rescheduling and as a result no debt rescheduling took place 
during 2022/23.  

Tudalen 31



   

 
 
8.0  BORROWING ACTIVITY AND RESULTS  

 
8.1  A summary of the Council’s borrowing activity (excluding Finance Leases) 

is set out in the table below:  
 

 
Opening 
Balance 
01/04/22 

Movement 
Closing 
Balance 

31/03/2023 

Average 
Debt  

  Total 
Interest 

Weighted 
Average 
Interest 

 
£M £M £M £M £M % 

PWLB* 219.307 (10.966) 208.341 213.894 6.797 3.18 

Banks 
LOBO** 

31.000 
 31.000 31.000 1.395 4.50 

Banks  
Fixed Term  

54.500 
 54.500 54.500 2.725 5.00 

Local Auths 
5.000 

(5.000) 0.000 0.425 0.001 0.15 

Other*** 
82.400 

 
82.400 

 
82.400 0.00 0.00 

Total 
392.207 

(15.966) 376.241 382.219 10.918 2.86**** 

 
* The movements in PWLB debt include the repayment of instalments of existing Equal 
Instalment of Principal (EIP) loans. 
** A “LOBO” loan is one where the lender has options to vary the interest rate. If the lender 
chooses to exercise that option, the borrower has an option to repay. 
*** “Other” relates to Welsh Government (WG) repayable funding for investment in transport 
(rail) infrastructure works.  
**** 3.64% excluding WG repayable funding 

 
8.2 The average interest rate of debt as at 31st March 2023 was 2.87% (3.68% 

excluding WG repayable funding).  
 

8.3  Short term borrowing of £5M at the 31st March 2022 was in place to meet 
day-to-day cash-flow requirements at a rate of 0.15% and was repaid 1st 
May 2022.   
 

8.4 At the end of the year there was no variance reported in the Council’s Net 
Capital Financing Budget of £21.308M.  

  
8.5 There were no opportunities to further reduce the cost of our borrowing via 

rescheduling during the year.  
 
 
9.0 ESTIMATED AND ACTUAL TREASURY POSITION AND PRUDENTIAL 

AND TREASURY INDICATORS 
 
9.1  During the financial year 2022/23, the Council operated within its limits set 

out in the ‘Capital Strategy Report Incorporating Prudential Indicators’ and 

Tudalen 32



   

‘Treasury Management Strategy’, both of which were approved by Council 
on 9th March 2022. Details of limits and actual performance are as follows:  

 

 

 
 

  
 
 
£ 

 
2022/23  
Actual 

£ 

 
Capital Expenditure 2022/23 

 
 

 
135.095M 

 

Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR) as at 31st March 2023  

 
 

503.255M 
 

 Limit / Indicator 
 

2022/23  
Limit / Indicator 

 
2022/23 
Actual 

Authorised Limit (£)  
(Limit beyond which borrowing 
is prohibited) 

 
612.400M 

 

392.660M 
(at highest point in 

year) 
 
 

376.696M 
 (at year end) 

Operational Boundary (£)  
(Indicator to ensure Authorised 
Limit not breached) 

 

455.400M 
 

External Debt (£) 
Other Long Term Liabilities 
Sub total 
Other: Finance Lease 
Borrowing + Other Long Term 
Liabilities  

440.242M 
0.200M 

440.442M 
2.258M 

442.700M 

376.242M 
0.072M 

376.314M 
0.382M 

376.696M 

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net 
Revenue Stream 

4.76% 4.60% 

Ratio of Net Income from 
Commercial and Service 
Investments to Net Revenue 
Stream 

0.28% 0.35% 

Long Term Treasury 
Management Investments 
(greater than 1 year) (£) 

25M 2.1M  

 
LOBO Limit 
 

£50M / 20% of debt 
portfolio 

£31M / 8% of debt 
portfolio 

Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate 
Debt 

Under 12 mths  0-70%   
12 mths – 2 yrs  0-70% 

2-5 years  0-60% 
5-10 years  0-70% 

10-20 years  0-90% 
20-30 years  0-90% 
30-40 years  0-90% 
40-50 years  0-90%  

Under 12 mths  33% 
12 mths – 2 yrs    3% 

2-5 years    9% 
5-10 years  10% 

10-20 years    2% 
20-30 years  10% 
30-40 years  33% 
40-50 years    0% 

Tudalen 33



   

9.2 The indicators and limits have been updated in line with Council approval of 
9th March 2022 detailing the funding arrangements for Transport (Rail) 
Infrastructure works and as reported in the Treasury Management mid-year 
review. 

 
 
10.0 INVESTMENT STRATEGY  
 
10.1  The Council manages its investments in-house, investing during 2022/23 in 

line with the lender criteria as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy 
approved by Council on the 9th March 2022. Investment policy is governed 
by Welsh Government guidance. 

 
10.2 The Council’s temporary cash flows are currently being invested in the 

 Debt  Management Account Deposit Facility and other Government 
 backed public sector bodies. The Council supplements this strategy 
 with lending to organisations subject to Section 151 officer determination, 
 following appropriate due diligence and subject to appropriate and 
 acceptable security arrangements being put in place. This low-risk 
strategy was determined balancing risk and return. It is acknowledged that 
low risk investment strategies result in lower investment returns. 

 
10.3  During the year, the Council has complied with the approved 2022/23 

Treasury Management Strategy and there have been no liquidity difficulties. 
 
 
11.0 INVESTMENT ACTIVITY AND RESULTS 
 
11.1 The following table shows the overall result of the investment activities 

undertaken by the Council:     
 

 Interest 
Received 

Average 
Cash 

Balance 

Return on 
Investments 

Benchmark 
Return* 

 £M £M % % 

Cash Balances 1.597 86.965 1.84 2.38 

 
* The benchmark return for Local Authority internally managed funds is the 
average 7-day money market rate.     
 

11.2  The Economic Background section of this report set out the continuing 
challenging economic conditions during this period. As a result of these 
conditions and our low-risk strategy, interest rates on investments have 
remained relatively low, albeit, have increased in the latter part of the 
financial year.  

11.3  The average return on investments has slightly under-performed the 
benchmark return over the year. 

Tudalen 34



   

11.4 The £2.1m for “funds invested for greater than 1 year” represents a loan to 
Cynon Taf Community Housing Group (£2.2m outstanding, £0.1m of which 
to be repaid within 12 months).   

11.5 For measuring the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk, the following table 
shows the revenue impact of a 1% rise or fall in interest rates: 

 
 

Interest Rate Risk  Impact 
£M 

One year revenue impact of a 1% 
rise/fall in interest rates 

0.831 

 

11.6  The Council also holds non-specified investments in Cynon Valley Waste 
Disposal Company Ltd, trading as Amgen Cymru Ltd and Amgen Rhondda 
Ltd. These are shown in the Council’s draft balance sheet as at 31st March 
2023 as £3.045m, under “Investments in Subsidiaries”. 

 
11.7    The Council also holds non-financial investments.  

 

• Non-financial commercial investment in Ty Dysgu, Cefn Coed 
Business Park, Nantgarw. The building and site has a fair value of 
£2.980m, with an annual rental of £322k.  This asset was reclassified 
as an investment property on the balance sheet following a change in 
use of the building. 

• The Council has investments it categorises as non-financial and other 
investments relevant to Council functions. These buildings have a fair 
value of £22.2m, with an annual rental of £1.7m. They relate to: 

o 50-53 Taff St, Pontypridd;  

o Unit 1 Cambrian Industrial Estate, Clydach Vale;  

o Rhos Surgery, Mountain Ash; 

o Coed Ely Business Units;  

o Robertstown Units; 

o Llys Cadwyn, Pontypridd; 

o 103-110 Taff Street, Pontypridd, and; 

o 13-17 Sardis Road. 

 

12.0 FUNDING OF PROJECTS SUPPORTED BY THE SUSTAINABLE 
COMMUNITIES FOR LEARNING PROGRAMME (FORMERLY, 21ST 
CENTURY SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES PROGRAMME) 

 

12.1 This Council continues to successfully deliver new, improved and modern 
schools to make a significant improvement to the learning environment for 
our young people. 

Tudalen 35



   

12.2 On the 4th October 2021, Cabinet considered a report which detailed a 
significant increase in the approved Strategic Outline Programme (SOP) for 
Band B of the programme from £167M to £252M.  The individual school 
projects were reported as part of that update, which are being funded by a 
combination of WG Grant Funding (at 65%) and the WG Mutual Investment 
Model (MIM) Funding (at 81%, subsequently updated to 83.66%).  The 
Council is also responsible for funding fit out costs at 35% for the MIM 
projects.  The Council’s contributions are funded using prudential borrowing 
and revenue funding respectively. The Council’s capital envelope has 
subsequently been increased by £40.5M.   

 

12.3 The individual schemes continue to evolve through the Welsh Government’s 
five case business model and approval process, with procurement 
processes running alongside to enable the delivery of timetabled on-site 
development. 

12.4 Whilst absolute costs are not known until the completion of procurement 
processes and WG approvals, the overall envelope has previously been 
agreed by WG and accordingly the Council’s contributions in line with the 
agreed envelope likewise need to be secured to avoid unnecessary delays 
to the programme. 

12.5  The Council’s contributions to the respective funding packages are and will 
continue to be built into the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan and 
Capital Programme accordingly. On the 6th July 2022, via the 2021/22 
Annual Treasury Management Review report, Council agreed the overall 
level of contribution of £43.2M borrowing to fund the full programme in line 
with the detail set out above and up to and within the original overall 
envelope. Set against this, current borrowing amounts to £30.0M. 

 

13  EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS / SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY  
 
13.1  The report provides an overview of the Council’s Treasury Management 

activities during 2022/23 in line with the Strategy reports approved by 
Council in March 2022. As a result, no Equality Impact Assessment is 
required for the purposes of this report.  

 
 
14.0 WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1  There are no Welsh language implications as a result of the 

recommendations in this report. 
 
 
15.0 CONSULTATION  
 
15.1  Following consideration by Council, this report will be subject to review by 

the Council’s Governance and Audit Committee.  
 
 

Tudalen 36



   

16.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)  
 
16.1 The financial results / implications of the Council’s Treasury Management 

arrangements in 2022/23 have been incorporated into quarterly 
Performance Reports during the year and also reported to Council on 23rd  
November 2022 as part of the 2022/23 Mid-Year Treasury Management 
Stewardship Report.  

 
 
17.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 
 

17.1 The report ensures the Council complies with its legal duty under the Local 
Government Act 2003 and in doing so is in line with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management and the CIPFA Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities.  

 
 
18.0 LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-

BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT  
 
18.1   This report evidences the progress made in delivering the Council’s 

Corporate Plan – ‘Making a Difference’ in particular through supporting the 
‘Living Within Our Means’ theme by pursuing optimum treasury 
management performance or return at the same time as managing 
associated risk.  

 
18.2  The report also supports the Well-being of Future Generations Act in 

particular ‘a globally responsible Wales’ through responsible management 
and investment of the Council’s resources.  
 
 

19.0  CONCLUSION 
 
19.1   The 2022/23 financial year has continued to be challenging in relation to 

Treasury Management and this report highlights for Members that all related 
activities have operated effectively and within budgetary and prudential 
limits.   

  

Tudalen 37



   

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 

AS AMENDED BY 
 
 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

COUNCIL 12th JULY 2023  
 
 

REPORT OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE & GROUP DIRECTOR - 
FINANCE, DIGITAL & FRONTLINE SERVICES 

 
 

Item: 2022/23 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW  
 
 

Background Papers  
 

• 9th March 2022 Council meeting – Report: Treasury Management Strategy 

Incorporating Investment Strategy, Treasury Management Indicators and 

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement for 2022/23.  

Report.pdf (moderngov.co.uk)  

 

• 9th March 2022 Council meeting – Report: 2022/23 Capital Strategy Report 

Incorporating Prudential Indicators.  

Report.pdf (moderngov.co.uk) 

 

• 23rd November 2022 Council meeting – Report: 2022/23 Mid-Year Treasury 

Management Stewardship Report.  

Report.pdf (moderngov.co.uk) 

 
 

Officer to contact: Barrie Davies (Deputy Chief Executive & Group Director - 
Finance, Digital & Frontline Services)  

 
 

******************** 

Tudalen 38

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s34286/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s34291/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s38236/Report.pdf?LLL=0


 

 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023 
 

COUNCIL 
 

12TH JULY 2023 
 

REVISED LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (RLDP) 2022 – 2037. UPDATE ON 
NATIONAL AND REGIONAL PLANNING MATTERS AND APPROVAL FOR A 

DELIVERY AGREEMENT AND TIMETABLE AMENDMENT FOR THE CONTINUED 
PREPARATION OF THE RLDP. 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PROSPERITY AND DEVELOPMENT 

 
 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 This report sets out ongoing national and regional planning matters that are 

having an influence over the preparation of the Revised Local Development Plan 
2022 - 2037 (RLDP). 

 
1.2 In light of these matters, the report seeks Council approval to make an 

amendment to the official RLDP Delivery Agreement, specifically its timetable. 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 It is recommended that Council: 
 
2.1 Acknowledge the matters, as set out, that are affecting the preparation of the 

RLDP in accordance with its approved timetable.  
 
2.2 Approve a proposed amendment to the RLDP Delivery Agreement timetable to 

incorporate an extension period for its preparation. This is set out in the following 
report in section 5 and in the proposed new Delivery Agreement which is 
attached as Appendix 1.   

 
2.3 Subject to the above, seek necessary Welsh Government agreement to the 

Delivery Agreement changes.  
 
2.4 Authorise the Director of Prosperity & Development to make minor changes to 

the timetable in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Development and 

Tudalen 39

Agendwm 7



 

 

Prosperity. To request that the RLDP Steering Group are sighted upon any such 
amendments made by the Director of Prosperity & Development.  

 
 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Preparation of the RLDP has continued positively in the past year since it began 

in April 2022. Considerable evidence preparation and gathering, public and 
internal engagement and continued assessment of up to 300 proposed 
development sites has taken place.  

 
3.2 Further analysis of the most up to date Issues and Objectives for the RLDP to 

address/achieve has been undertaken and finalised. Options for the appropriate 
levels of development growth, alongside options for where this will happen, have 
been formally prepared. 

 
3.3 As Members may recall, the current Delivery Agreement (DA), and the timetable 

set out within it for the preparation of the RLDP, indicated that the first formal 
consultation on the Preferred Strategy should be beginning in June or July this 
year 

 
3.4 However, a number of factors have arisen whereby it was considered necessary 

to re-evaluate how this could be achieved. (as raised in the most recent RLDP 
Members Steering Group) 

 
3.5 Firstly, there are several ongoing matters and proposed changes to national and 

regional planning policy and guidance and other matters, that have impacted 
upon our RLDP preparation and resulting in delays.  

3.6 There are then more general and internal considerations that have arisen that 
need to be addressed, which have been mostly unforeseen.  

3.7 Accordingly it has become necessary to seek to extend the agreed timetable for 
the preparation of the RLDP. The statutory Local Development Plan regulations 
allow for an expected 3-month ‘slippage’ period to be added to the timetable at 
any necessary time. For the reasons set out in this report, it is considered that it 
is necessary to implement this period now; along with an additional 4 months 
extension to the overall timetable.  

 
3.8 Discussion with, and advice has been taken from, Welsh Government planning 

officers, indicating that an appropriate period should be considered for timetable 
extension to ensure that there is no further slippage further down the line of 
RLDP preparation.  

 
3.9 The table in section 5.2 indicates the proposed new timetable. Although this 

indicates a formal 6 weeks Preferred Strategy consultation to begin in January 
2024, (which we will be bound to), we will nevertheless aim for the November 
2023 Council for its approval. In doing so, the Strategy itself will be made public 
then and the instigation of the formal consultation exercise will follow as soon as 
possible following the Council decision. 

 

Tudalen 40



 

 

3.10 It is also noted that the proposed adoption of the RLDP would be set back to and 
estimated date of  May 2026. However, it should be acknowledged that the 
Council would approve the Deposit RLDP (the Revised LDP that the Council are 
approving the principle of), in February 2025, where it would then be published 
for wide public consultation.   

 
4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 This section of the report outlines the matters that are continuing to have an 
additional, and previously unforeseen effect on the preparation of the RLDP. 
Many of these are associated with ongoing changes at national and regional 
levels, in terms of planning policy, guidance, key information and collaborative 
working.  

4.2 Members will be aware that determining where growth in LDPs should be 
allocated is significantly influenced by national planning policies including Welsh 
Government’s ‘Town Centres First’ approach. Members may also be aware of 
the ongoing discussions taking place in respect of a new version of Technical 
Advice Note 15 (TAN 15) for Floodrisk which creates specific rules for the 
allocation of land in the RLDP and subsequent planning applications. Earlier 
draft versions issued by Welsh Government placed significant restrictions on 
development in flood zones and particularly for uses such as residential, health 
care and education. Whilst it is clearly important to prevent new development in 
flood plains, the early drafts also placed significant restrictions on development in 
our town centres as the majority of them are liable to flooding, being situated 
alongside rivers. Positive discussions between Council Planning and Flood risk 
practitioners and Welsh Government have taken place around how the 
document can be presented in a way that appropriate town centre regeneration 
can still take place and a new version of the TAN is expected in the New Year. 
Although we can now make fair assumptions against this expected version, our 
ability to make progress on growth options has until now been compromised as 
clearly the Council is supportive of including policies in the new plan that 
promote new development and regeneration in our town centres. 

4.3 More recently, there have been proposed changes to Planning Policy Wales in 
relation to ecology and biodiversity. This seeks to increase the requirement for 
ecological enhancement in the planning process. Whilst the Council is clearly 
committed to promoting biodiversity and ecological enhancements, such 
requirements still impact on how we assess which sites can and should be 
allocated in the LDP and until we see the final version of the changes, we are left 
with levels of uncertainty in how we fully incorporate it into the LDP preparation 
process. 

4.4 Other matters that remain unresolved include: 

• the need to work with Councils across CCR to understand the need for 
regional growth and how the LDP fits into that picture 

• incremental release of the 2021 Census information 

• clarity on the planning implications of Welsh Government’s Roads 
Review and what this means for strategic development in the north of the 
Cynon Valley and Llanilid in the south 

Tudalen 41



 

 

4.5 Evidence gathered to date has indicated that around 8,500 new dwellings will 
need to be delivered over the plan period to meet the identified housing need. 
Existing planning permissions will contribute a lot, although we will need to 
identify several new sites in the right locations and of the necessary scale. 
Finding enough development sites that can meet the ever-increasing policy 
requirements set against the context described above of an uncertain and 
changing policy position requires a very comprehensive, ongoing and time 
consuming, assessment approach.   

 
5. Proposed Delivery Agreement Timetable Amendment 
 
5.1 Given the above factors, and overall scale of work required to be undertaken, we 

are not in a position to prepare and put out our Preferred Strategy to consultation 
by the end of July this year. Work has not sufficiently progressed on the strategy 
itself nor all associated documents and tasks. This would require a period for an 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal on the main document and all associated 
evidence base documents. This would then all be subject to additional 
administrative processes prior to statutory consultation.  

 
5.2 Accordingly, we need to amend our Delivery Agreement timetable to incorporate 

an extension period of approximately 7 months overall . The following table sets 
out the proposed amendments to the timetable. It is noted that the initial change 
would see the Preferred Strategy consultation stage pushed back to January 
2024, hoping that all matters can be resolved appropriately, and to allow for 
opportunities for Council decision making. For information, the previously agreed 
dates have been shown, and crossed out, with the proposed new dates below 
them. 

 
 

Key Stage  Date  

Preparation of the Preferred 
Strategy  

From April 2022  

Consultation on the Preferred 
Strategy  

June/July 2023   
January/February 2024 

Preparation of the Deposit Revised 
LDP  

From August 2023  
March 2024  

Consultation on the Deposit 
Revised LDP 

July/August 2024 
 
January/February 2025  

Submit Revised LDP to Welsh 
Government 

November 2024 
 
June 2025 

Independent Examination April/May 2025 
 
November/December 2025 

Adoption October 2025 
 
May 2026 

Tudalen 42



 

 

 

 
 
6 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS / SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY 
 
6.1 The RLDP is subject to a bespoke and overarching Integrated Sustainability 

Appraisal (ISA). This ISA will assess each and every stage of the preparation of 
the LDP. There are multiple legislative facets to this, including an Equalities 
Impact Assessment. 

 
7. WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 Another key element of the ISA is to undertake a Welsh Language Impact 

Assessment and at each stage of the LDP.  
 
8. CONSULTATION  / INVOLVEMENT 
 
8.1 There has been informal consultation with Welsh Government on the proposed 

amendments to the Timetable, although they cannot be definitive with their 
approval of them until RCT have approved them ourselves.  

 
9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
9.1 In general, the financial implication associated with this report and its proposals 

remain in line with those agreed at the outset of RLDP preparation in April 2022. 
It is not considered that an extension of the timetable of preparation of the RLDP 
would incur any significant additional financial implications that aren’t budgeted 
for.  

 
 
10. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  
 
10.1 The new LDP will be prepared in accordance with The Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act (2004), the Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) 
(Wales) Regulations 2005 (as amended 2015), Planning Policy Wales 2021, the 
Planning (Wales) Act 2015 and the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA), 
Sustainability Appraisal (SA) and Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) 
regulations.  

 
 
11. LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-BEING 

OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT. 

 
How the subject of the report will contribute to the delivery of the Council’s 
Corporate Priorities? 

 
11.1 The production of a Local Development Plan will help to deliver the Council’s 

three main corporate priorities of building a strong economy, promoting 
independence and positive lives for everyone and creating neighbourhoods 
where people are proud to live and work.  The production of this land-use plan 

Tudalen 43



 

 

will help to stimulate the local economy through market and social house 
building, as well as providing for employment and retail development across the 
County Borough.  Working together to shape our communities will instil a sense 
of pride and allow people to live and work independently, wherever they so 
choose.  The LDP will also help to deliver the transport infrastructure that keeps 
Rhondda Cynon Taf working and moving, in a sustainable way that benefits 
current and future generations. 
 
How the Sustainable Development principle, i.e. the five ways of working 
has been considered? 
 

11.2 The Local Development Plan will be a key project demonstrating the 5 ways of 
working in action: 
 

• Integration - the preparation of the LDP will be bring together all land use 
planning issues across the County Borough, involving our partners, 
residents, visitors, employers and service providers in the formulation of 
the Plan.  

 

• Collaboration - the LDP will be a key collaboration project for the region 
enabling stakeholders including residents to work together to form a Plan 
for the County Borough. 

 

• Involvement - preparation of the LDP will provide numerous opportunities 
to engage with our residents and customers, including the business 
community and ensuring that we are listening to a wide range of views to 
inform the plan and decision making process. 

 

• Prevention - the LDP provides an opportunity to understand the root 
causes of issues and preventing them by being proactive in our thinking 
and understanding the need to tackle problems at source for example by 
undertaking needs assessments to inform our priorities. 

 

• Long-term - the LDP will be all about planning for the future and taking a 
strategic approach to ensure the County Borough is sustainable and that 
we understand the future need and demand for sustainable development 
in the region and how that is best met. 

 
How the subject of the report seeks to maximise the Council’s contribution 
to seven national well-being goals? 
 

11.3 The LDP will contribute to the seven well-being goals by working together with 
other public services and third sector organisations to improve the well-being of 
everybody in Wales. This new approach seeks to improve public services in a 
sustainable way, for the benefit of all.  The LDP will help to ensure: 
 

• A Prosperous Wales - the LDP will promote a productive, creative and low-
carbon society that recognises the limits of our resources and global 
environment, by ensuring that our finite resources are used efficiently and 
proportionately.  It will also help to develop a skilled, well-educated population to 

Tudalen 44



 

 

work within an economy that generates wealth and provides employment 
opportunities for all. 
 

• A Resilient Wales - the LDP will help to ensure that the region maintains and 
enhances a bio-diverse natural environment with healthy, functioning 
ecosystems that support social, economic and ecological resilience with the 
ability to adapt to change.   
 

• A Healthier Wales - the LDP aims to help build a society in which people’s 
mental and physical well-being is maximised through access to green space, and 
helps to foster an understanding of choices and behaviours that benefit future 
health. 
 

• A More Equal Wales - the LDP will seek to enable people to fulfil their potential 
no matter what their background or circumstances.  It also aims to help 
communities effectively tackle the loneliness and isolation that can often exist 
within many of them. 
 

• A Wales of Cohesive Communities - the LDP, via the place-making principle, will 
help to foster attractive, safe, viable and well-connected communities that 
improve the well-being of all residents and visitors. 
 

• A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language - the LDP will support 
a society that promotes and protects our culture, heritage and Welsh language, 
whilst encouraging people to participate in the arts, sport and recreation. 
 

• A Globally Responsible Wales - the LDP will contribute towards Wales being a 
nation which, when doing anything to improve our economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being; will take account of whether doing such a 
thing makes a positive contribution to our global well-being. 

 
Any other national strategies the subject of the report is seeking to 
address. 

 
11.4 The Local Development Plan will need to be in general conformity with the aims 

and objectives of Future Wales – The National Plan, which sits above the LDP in 
the development plan hierarchy within Wales. 

 
 
 
 
12. CONCLUSION 
 
12.1 To conclude, it is requested that Members acknowledge the matters that are 

affecting the preparation of the RLDP in accordance with its approved timetable, 
as set out in the report above.  

 
12.2 It is then recommended that Members approve a proposed amendment to the 

RLDP Delivery Agreement timetable to incorporate an extension period for its 

Tudalen 45



 

 

preparation. This is set out above in section 5 of the report and in the proposed 
new Delivery Agreement which is attached as Appendix 1.   

 
12.3 Subject to the above, it is then requested that we seek necessary Welsh 

Government approval of these Delivery Agreement changes.  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 46



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 

AS AMENDED BY 

 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

COUNCIL 

 

12th JULY 2023 

REVISED LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (RLDP) 2022 – 2037. UPDATE ON 
NATIONAL AND REGIONAL PLANNING MATTERS AND APPROVAL FOR A 

DELIVERY AGREEMENT AND TIMETABLE AMENDMENT FOR THE CONTINUED 
PREPARATION OF THE RLDP. 

 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PROSPERITY AND DEVELOPMENT 

Tudalen 47



tudalen wag



Appendix 1 

 

 

 

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough 

Council 

 

Revised Local Development Plan 2022 

– 2037 

 

Delivery Agreement 

 

July 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 49



 

 

 

 

 

CONTENTS 

1. INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................. 1 

2. THE TIMETABLE ................................................................................................. 8 

3. COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT SCHEME (CIS) ................................................ 10 

4. CONSULTATION METHODOLOGY AND TECHNIQUES ................................ 16 

5. TIMETABLE AND PROPOSED METHODS OF ENGAGEMENT ...................... 24 

 

 

APPENDICES 

1.  CONTACT DETAILS         41 

2. LIST OF CONSULTATION BODIES      42 

3.  RISK MANAGEMENT        54 

4.  PROFILE AND CHARACTERISTICS OF THE LOCAL POPULATION 56 

5.  WELSH INDEX OF MULTIPLE DEPRIVATION     64 

6.  GLOSSARY OF TERMS        67 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 50



3 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

 

Tudalen 51



1 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1. The Local Development Plan 

 

1.1.1. The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that Local Authorities 

prepare a Local Development Plan (LDP) for the Local Authority area. The 

document provides the development strategy and policy framework for the specified 

plan period.  It is an important land use planning document, which will guide and 

control development, providing the basis of how planning applications are 

determined.  Once adopted, the LDP provides certainty to the communities of the 

County Borough regarding where development will be located over the plan period.  

The LDP will also ensure that the principles of place making and sustainability are 

at the heart of the plan-making process, reflecting the Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  

 

1.1.2. The Council has prepared a Review Report in which the progress of the existing 

LDP has been considered. The Review Report concluded that a revised LDP was 

required. This was approved by Council in July 2020. The Council is now preparing 

a Revised LDP which will cover the plan period 2022-2037. The first stage of this is 

to prepare a Delivery Agreement in line with Regulation 9 of the LDP (Wales) 

Regulations 2005. The existing LDP 2006-2021 will continue to be the mechanism 

for determining planning applications. 

 

1.1.3. This Delivery Agreement has been prepared during the worldwide COVID-19 

pandemic. The Council will adhere to the Government Regulations regarding 

COVID-19; this includes social distancing and seeking innovative methods to 

consult during this time. Should additional opportunities arise during the plan 

preparation process especially where restrictions continue to be lifted, the Council 

will endeavour to respond to these.   

 

1.2. What is a Delivery Agreement? 

 

1.2.1. A Delivery Agreement (DA) is a project management tool that must consist of two 

parts, the Timetable and the Community Involvement Scheme (CIS).  The purpose 

of the DA is to establish the Local Planning Authorities (LPA) early and full 

engagement and involvement in the preparation of the LDP.  The Delivery 

Agreement must be produced prior to the formal preparation of the LDP, and forms 

an important and legal part of the process for the preparation of the Plan. Once 

approved the Delivery Agreement commits the LPA to produce or revise its plan in 

line with the timescale and community engagement processes.  

 

1.2.2. The DA is comprised of the following sections: 

Section A – The Project Management Timetable for the Revised LDP:  The 

timetable details the stages in the preparation of the LDP and how the plan-making 

process will be project managed.  It sets out in a realistic manner what the Authority 

Tudalen 52



2 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

can do in the timescale and with the budgetary and staffing resources available, as 

well as the corporate framework in which the plan will be prepared.  The timetable 

provides a clear indication of when each stage of the plan preparation process will 

take place.  

Section B – The Community Involvement Scheme:  The Community Involvement 

Scheme (CIS) sets out the LPAs principles, strategy and mechanisms for early and 

continuous community stakeholder involvement in the preparation of the LDP.  The 

purpose of the CIS is to show how, who, and when the LPA will seek the views of 

its stakeholders including its communities, as the LDP progresses.  The CIS is 

written to maximise collaboration between the Council and its stakeholders, in doing 

so it will discharge its duty under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act. 

1.2.3. A glossary of terms can be found at Appendix 6. 

 

1.3. Stages in the Preparation of the Delivery Agreement 

 

1.3.1. The   preparation of the Delivery Agreement requires a number of steps that 

are set out below, along with their timescales: 

• Preparation of the Delivery Agreement (DA) document including the timetable 

and the Community Involvement Scheme. (December 2021) 

• Political reporting to Cabinet to seek approval of and to consult on the DA 

(January 2022) 

• Consultation of the DA (February 2022). 

• Amendments to the DA post consultation and preparation of the initial final 

document. (February 2022). 

• Political reporting of the DA and approval by resolution of the Council (March 

2022).  

• Submission of the DA to the Welsh Government for approval (March 2022) 

• Publication of the approved DA and making the document available for public 

inspection and official start of the LDP process (April 2022) 

• Review the DA on a regular basis. 

- Amendment to DA and timetable (July 2023) 

 

1.4. Preparation of a Revised LDP 

 

1.4.1. In preparation of the Revised LDP, the Council will aim to achieve the following key 

outcomes; 

 

• Support sustainable development and quality places based around the National 

Sustainable Placemaking Outcomes, aligned with national policy (set out in 

Tudalen 53



3 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

PPW) integrated with an SA/SEA/HRA, including Welsh language and the 

requirements of the WBFGA 2015. 

 

• Be based on and underpinned by early, effective and meaningful community 

involvement in order to understand and consider a wide range of views, with 

the aim of building a broad consensus on the spatial strategy, policies and 

proposals. 

 

• Be based on a robust understanding of the role and function of an area(s) 

including the functional linkages to areas beyond administrative boundaries. 

 

• Be distinctive by having plans setting out clearly how their area will develop and 

change, giving certainty for communities, developers and business. 

 

• Be resilient to climate change (using the latest UK Climate Projections, flood 

risk and vulnerability assessment data) and support the transition to a low 

carbon society in line with the latest carbon reduction targets and budgets as 

set out in the Environment (Wales) Act (Part 2). The principles of Placemaking, 

the Sustainable Transport Hierarchy and the Energy Hierarchy as set out in 

PPW must be adhered to. 

 

• Ensure the sustainable management of natural resources in accordance with 

the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 and other relevant legislation. 

 

• Deliver what is intended through deliverable and viable plans, taking into 

account necessary infrastructure requirements, financial viability and other 

market factors 

 

• Be proactive and responsive with plans, kept up-to-date and flexible to 

accommodate change. 

 

(Welsh Government, Development Plans Manual, Edition 3, March 2020) 

 

1.4.2. Preparation of the Revised LDP will include consideration of a host of guidance, 

policy and legislation emanating from the European, national, regional and local 

level.  The Revised LDP will also be guided by the aims and objectives set forth in 

the Cwm Taf Well-being Plan 2018-2023 entitled Our Cwm Taf.  These are centred 

around having thriving communities, healthy people and a strong economy, with the 

cross cutting objective of tackling loneliness and isolation.  The revised plan will 

also be influenced by the cultural, economic, environmental and social well-being 

goals and objectives within Our Cwm Taf, where they relate to land-use planning. 

 

1.5. Sustainability Appraisal incorporating Strategic Environmental Assessment 

(SA/SEA) 

 

Tudalen 54



4 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

1.5.1. The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (s.62) requires the LPA to 

undertake a Sustainability Appraisal (SA) of its Revised LDP and report the findings 

as an integral part of the plan-making process. Policies in the plan are required to 

address those aspects of sustainable development that can be addressed through 

the land-use planning system. Consideration of social, economic and cultural 

implications should be fully considered.  

 

1.5.2. In addition to this, Local Authorities are required to comply with European Union 

Directive 2001/42/EC and the Environmental Assessments of Plans and 

Programmes (Wales) Regulation, which require the formal Strategic Environmental 

Assessment (SEA) of the LDP.  The scope of the SEA is limited to environmental 

effects. 

 

1.5.3. Both first generation and Revised LDPs have to be subject to an SEA.  It is 

considered by the Welsh Government that an appropriate way of undertaking the 

Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) is to incorporate it into the SA.  The SA 

incorporating SEA is a statutory requirement in the preparation of a Revised LDP, 

to fully assess the social, environmental and economic implications of the Plan’s 

strategy and associated policies.  The process ensures that LDP policies reflect the 

principles of sustainable development, whilst taking full account of any significant 

effects of the Plan on the environment.  
 

1.5.4. The SA process should be fully integrated into the LDP process and reflected in the 

timetable alongside each stage of the plan preparation process.  There are 

elements of the SA/SEA process, which requires that specific work is undertaken 

and this needs to be clearly identifiable within the process.  These will be reflected 

in the timetable and engagement plan.  

 

1.5.5. There are 5 main stages in the SA/SEA process. These are set out below: 

• Stage A – Scoping.  This establishes the baseline evidence and sets the context 

and objectives. 

• Stage B – Appraisal of Alternatives.  Developing and refining options and 

assessing effects. 

• Stage C – Assessment of the Deposit Plan and preparation of SA Report 

• Stage D – Examination and Adoption 

• Stage E – Monitoring.  Monitoring the significant effects of implementing the 

development plan.  

(Welsh Government, Development Plans Manual, Edition 3, March 2020) 
 

1.6. Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) 

 

1.6.1. A Habitats Regulation Assessment is a legal requirement under the Conservation 

of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (the ‘Habitats Regulations’).  The Local 

Authority must undertake a Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA) in order to 

Tudalen 55



5 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

assess if the polices and proposals in the LDP will have any significant effect on the 

integrity of European designated sites.  

 

1.6.2. The HRA will not be integrated with the SA due to different legislative requirements.  

Engagement and consultation with Natural Resources Wales (NRW) will be 

undertaken throughout the HRA process.  

 

1.7. Evidence Base 

 

1.7.1. With the production of a Revised LDP, there will be a corresponding need to update 

or renew a number of studies/documents contained within the current LDP evidence 

base, which underpins the plan.  In line with previous AMRs, all contextual, policy 

and legislative changes that have occurred since the adoption of the LDP will also 

need to be given due consideration, as part of the evidence base updates.  The list 

below illustrates those areas of evidence base documents that are likely to be 

required, as part of the LDP full revisions process: 

• Population Data and Housing Forecasts 

• Local Housing Market Assessment (LHMA) 

• Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Needs Assessment 

• Urban Capacity Study 

• Settlement Boundary Review 

• Sustainable Settlement Hierarchy 

• Employment Land Review 

• Retail Study Update 

• Green Infrastructure Assessment  

• Assessment of Environmental Constraints 

• Public Open Space Assessment 

• Renewable Energy Assessment 

• Transport Assessment 

• Landscape 

 

1.7.2. The list is not definitive nor exhaustive, as the need for additional evidence may 

present itself throughout the plan-making process.   

 

1.7.3. Given that a number of local authorities within South East Wales are currently 

progressing revised plans, the Council will endeavour to explore possibilities for the 

joint commissioning of evidence base documents.    

 

 

1.8. The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 

 

1.8.1. The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act received Royal Assent in April 

2015.  The Act requires public bodies to think about the long-term impact of their 

decisions, to work more effectively with people, communities and each other, and 

to prevent persistent problems such as poverty, health inequalities and climate 

Tudalen 56



6 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

change.  The Act sets seven well-being goals, which it requires public bodies to 

achieve.  These are: 

• A prosperous Wales 

• A resilient Wales 

• A healthier Wales 

• A more equal Wales 

• A Wales of cohesive communities 

• A Wales of vibrant and thriving Welsh Language 

• A globally responsible Wales 
 

1.8.2. It must be demonstrated that the LDP contributes to all of these goals, with the 

production of the SA alongside the plan providing an understanding of how this 

contribution can be maximised.  
 

1.8.3. The Act also identifies 5 ways of working, which the LPA is required to demonstrate, 

these are ‘long-term’, ‘involvement’, ‘integration’, ‘prevention’ and ‘collaboration’.    
 

1.8.4. As a requirement of the Act, a Local Well-being Plan must also be produced; 

Rhondda Cynon Taf has the Cwm Taf Well-being Plan, 2018-2023, which has been 

summarised above.  
 

1.8.5. Both the WBFGA and the Local Well-being Plan will be given full consideration 

through the plan preparation process, including when undertaking engagement. 

 

1.8.6. Future Wales: The National Plan 2040 

 

1.8.7. Future Wales: The National Plan 2040 is the National development plan for Wales. 

It is the highest level development plan in Wales and the LDP will need to accord 

with the plan and reflect its aims and objectives. 

 

 

1.9. Tests of Soundness 
 

1.9.1. The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that a LDP is subject to 

an independent examination, to ensure that the Plan is ‘sound’.  The Revised LDP 

will be submitted to the Welsh Government, who will appoint an independent 

Inspector to examine the Plan.  The Inspector will determine whether the Plan has 

been produced in accordance with the legal and regulatory requirements and 

whether it conforms to the Community Involvement Scheme.   
 

1.9.2. The Inspector will further assess whether the Plan meets the preparation 

requirements and the three soundness tests, which are: 
 

• Does the plan fit? – Is it consistent with all other plans? 

• Is the plan appropriate? – Does the plan address the issues of the area? 

Tudalen 57



7 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

• Will the plan deliver? – Will the plan be effective? 

 
1.9.3. There is a fundamental need for a strong evidence base and consultation process.  

It is also essential to demonstrate the rationale behind the Plan’s policies and to 

assess the outcomes.  The conclusions drawn by the Inspector in the final report 

will be binding on the LPA.  Unless the Welsh Government intervene, the LPA must 

accept the changes and accordingly seek to adopt the Revised Plan at full Council.  

Tudalen 58



Timetable 

8 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

2. THE TIMETABLE 

 

2.1. Introduction 

 

2.1.1. The Timetable is a crucial element of plan preparation.  It ensures that the plan is 

produced efficiently and in a structured way 

 

2.1.2. There are two stages to the timetable, those that are definitive and those that are 

indicative.  Definitive stages are those up to and including the statutory deposit 

period.  These stages of the process are under the direct control of the Council and 

therefore the timetable is as realistic as possible.  This part of the timetable is firmer 

as the project management of the process can be monitored and controlled more 

carefully.   

 

2.1.3. Indicative stages are the stages beyond the statutory deposit period.  The Council 

has less control over the later stages of the process, as they are dependent on 

many factors such as the number of representations that need to be handled and 

the availability of the Planning and Environment Decisions Wales (PEDW).  The 

indicative stages of the timetable will be subject to review as the LDP progresses, 

and the Council will endeavour to liaise with PEDW, informing them about the 

progress of the plan as it moves forward.  

Table 1 – Key Stages in the preparation of a Revised LDP 

 

Key Stage  Date  

Preparation of the Pre-Deposit 
Stage of the Revised LDP including 
the Preferred Strategy  

From April 2022  

Consultation on the Preferred 
Strategy  

January/February 2024 

Preparation of the Deposit Revised 
LDP  

March 2024  

Consultation on the Deposit Revised 
LDP 

 
January/February 2025  

Submit Revised LDP to Welsh 
Government 

 
June 2025 

Independent Examination  
November/December 2025 

Adoption May 2026 

 

Further details on the projected timescales for plan preparation are set out in Table 2 

in section 5 below. 

 

2.2. Management of the LDP Process 

Tudalen 59



Timetable 

9 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

 

2.2.1. The Director of Prosperity and Development will hold overall responsibility for the 

delivery of the LDP.  On a day-to-day basis, the Development Services Manager, 

(Planning Policy Team) will be responsible for the management of the process 

under the Head of Planning.  The Planning Policy Team will be responsible for the 

preparation and production of the Revised LDP, with Member engagement and 

reporting at the relevant stages. 

 

Resources and Budget 

 

2.2.2. There is a sufficient budget set in place to enable the production of the Plan against 

the proposed timetable. The continued annual budget would also allow scope for 

shortfalls in estimated costs and unseen costs that may arise during the long 

production period of the Plan. Further monitoring will be undertaken to assess 

expenditure against budget as the RLDP progresses 

 

2.2.3. In terms of staff resources, there is an appropriate team of officers in the Council’s 

Strategic Planning Section dedicated to Revised LDP preparation. In addition, a 

range of other officers in Prosperity and Development, as well as in other Service 

Areas will also be involved in various aspects of Revised Plan preparation. Where 

necessary, the Council will employ consultants to undertake appropriate work and 

advise on the key stages of preparing the RLDP. 

 

Risk Assessment  

 

2.2.4. The Council considers that its timetable is realistic and deliverable, however the 

timescales involved are nevertheless challenging. There is inevitably some element 

of risk that cannot be foreseen, which could witness the plan deviate from the 

timetable. More detail relating to risk and potential mitigation is outlined at Appendix 

3. 

Tudalen 60



Community Involvement Scheme 

10 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

3. COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT SCHEME (CIS) 

 

3.1. Introduction 

 

3.1.1. The Community Involvement Scheme (CIS) specifies how the LPA intends to 

proactively engage with and involve local communities/stakeholders in plan 

preparation, as part of the Revised LDP.  The CIS provides information to interested 

parties on how the Council intends to consult with interested parties and provides 

information and certainty on when and how people can have their say throughout 

the LDP process.  

 

3.1.2. Rhondda Cynon Taf firmly believes that community and stakeholder engagement 

in the plan-making process is fundamental to the success of the Revised LDP.  

Community involvement will be the cornerstone in addressing any contentious 

issues that arise as part of the process, in addition to assisting with mediation.  Such 

engagement will also serve to highlight the shared goals and aspirations for the 

County Borough and expose those areas of common ground upon which 

consensus can be built. 

 

3.1.3. The Development Plans Manual, Edition 3, states that when preparing the CIS 

LPAs should: 

 

• Create the conditions for early involvement and feedback at a stage 

when people can shape and influence the plan, based on the 5 ways 

of working, as set out in the WBFGA 2015 

• Encourage the commitment from all participants to an open and 

honest debate on realistic development alternatives in search of 

broad consensus 

• Recognise the need to adopt approaches/techniques for involving all 

elements of the community (age groups, local community action 

groups, hard to reach groups and protected characteristic groups) 

including business, which seeks to involve those not normally 

involved 

• A one size fits all approach will not be appropriate 

 

3.1.4    The LPA has prepared the Community Involvement Scheme during the COVID-19 

Pandemic. The Council will adhere to the latest Government guidelines and 

Regulations in terms of its consultation methods such as social distancing rules. 

The LPA will endeavour to engage the community in innovative ways and will keep 

the methods under review as the plan preparation is undertaken.  

The CIS has been written with regard to achieving these principles.   

 

 

Tudalen 61



Community Involvement Scheme 

11 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

3.2. Lessons Learnt from the Previous Plan  

 

3.2.1. During the preparation of the current LDP, various methods were employed to 

engage all interested parties.  Such methods included the provision of clearly written 

information, as well as the opportunity to discuss issues, in person, with Council 

officers.  It is considered that the previous methods of consultation were successful 

and did engage a wide range of individuals and organisations. This is evidenced by 

the amount of correspondence that the Council received during the process. 

 

3.2.2. Since the original CIS however there have been numerous changes, which may 

make the consultation and engagement process even more effective.  

 

3.2.3. The biggest change since the consultations on the previous plan, is the introduction 

of the Well Being of Future Generation (Wales) Act and the Cwm Taf Well-being 

Plan. Therefore the consultation approaches and methods used in the production 

of the new plan will be in conformity with these documents.   

 

3.2.4. Social media has grown exponentially since the previous plan along with the 

Council’s online presence generally, and the Council will investigate all 

opportunities for the use of this platform during the LDP process.  

 

3.2.5. The Council further recognises the importance of obtaining the views of the younger 

generation, as such the Council would like to ensure greater engagement in this 

regard.  This has been made easier since the previous plan with the formation of 

the RCT Youth Forum.  

 

3.2.6. Due to the current situation with COVID-19 some methods of involvement and 

consultation such as meetings in person and workshops may need greater 

consideration of how they will be organised, to ensure that Government COVID-19 

regulations are met. The Council will explore ways of doing this, and these methods 

will be reviewed as Government guidance changes. Along with this the use of online 

methods will be used where appropriate.   

 

3.2.7. During engagement events undertaken during 2021 the Council has successfully 

utilised video conferencing software such as Team and Zoom to undertake 

meetings, forums and other events. These methods have proven very successful 

and an efficient way of engaging a large number of people. The Council will continue 

to use these methods where appropriate.  

 

3.2.8. Along with providing information on the LDP website the Council will also utilise 

online methods of consultation such as the Let’s Talk page to engage as widely as 

possible.  

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 62



Community Involvement Scheme 

12 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

3.3. Principles of Engagement  

 

3.3.1. The Council is committed to ensuring meaningful community involvement, therefore 

the Council will ensure that the principles of engagement will conform to the 

following standards. 

 

3.3.2. Along with the principles of the Well-being Act, the principles of the Cwm Taf Well-

being Plan will also be reflected.  This document states: 

 

3.3.3. Rhondda Cynon Taf Council has endorsed the National Principles for Public  
Engagement in Wales.  The principles and standards have been developed and 
endorsed by the Welsh Government to make sure that participation happens in 
consistent and effective ways.   

 

1. Engagement is effectively designed to make a difference - Engagement 
gives a real chance to influence policy, service design and delivery from an 
early stage. 
 

2. Encourage and enable everyone affected to be involved, if they so 
choose - The people affected by an issue or change are included in 
opportunities to engage, as an individual or as part of a group or community, 
with their views both respected and valued. 

 
3. Engagement is planned and delivered in a timely and appropriate way 

- The engagement process is clear, communicated to everyone in a way 
that is easy to understand within a reasonable timescale, and the most 
suitable method(s) for those involved is are used. 
 

4. Work with relevant partner organisations - Organisations should 
communicate with each other and work together wherever possible to 
ensure that people’s time is used effectively and efficiently. 
 

5. The information provided will be jargon free, appropriate and 
understandable - People are well placed to take part in the engagement 
process, as they have easy access to relevant information that is tailored 
to meet their needs  
 

6. Make it easier for people to take part - People can engage easily as any 
barriers for different groups of people are identified and addressed. 
 

7. Enable people to take part effectively - Engagement processes should 
try to develop the skills, knowledge and confidence of all participants. 

 
8. Engagement is given the right resources and support to be effective -

Appropriate training, guidance and support are provided to enable all 
participants to effectively engage, including both community participants 
and staff. 

 

Tudalen 63



Community Involvement Scheme 

13 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

9. People are told of the impact of their contribution - Timely feedback is 
given to all participants about the views they express and the decisions or 
actions taken as a result; methods and forms of feedback should take 
account of participants’ preferences. 

 
10. Learn and share lessons to improve the process of engagement - 

People’s experience of the process should be monitored and evaluated, to 
measure its success in engaging people and the effectiveness of that 
participation.  Lessons should be shared and applied in future 
engagements. 

 

3.3.4. The Council is also developing Corporate Consultation Standards, which it will 
publish later in the year.  Consultation during the LDP will be consistent with said 
standards.  
 
 

3.4. Who should be Involved? 
 

3.4.1. The LPA is committed to engaging with any person or organisation who has an 
interest in shaping the future of Rhondda Cynon Taf.  The LDP, once adopted, will 
be used to guide development in the County Borough and will be a key decision 
making tool for the consideration of planning applications.  The Council therefore 
encourages anyone who wishes to express their views, to do so as part of the 
preparation of the LDP.  The Council will endeavour to ensure that the process is 
transparent, engaging and accessible to all.  
 

3.4.2. The legal requirements for community involvement and public participation for the 
LDP are set out in the Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) 
(Wales) Regulations 2005 (as amended 2015).  The Council intends to meet and 
where possible, exceed these requirements.  A list of Specific and General 
Consultation bodies is set out at Appendix 2. 

 

3.5. Equality 
 

3.5.1 We aim to treat everyone with dignity and respect, and to operate in an equitable 
manner.  The Council will make every effort to ensure that the plan preparation 
process is accessible to all.  The Council will engage as widely as possible with all 
sectors of the community to reflect people from a range of backgrounds and 
identities. Where due to current COVID-19 pandemic restrictions it is not possible 
to undertake all consultations in person the Council will seek other appropriate 
methods of engagement to ensure that all members of the community are fully 
engaged in the process. 
 

3.6. Hard to Reach Groups 
 

3.6.1. There are particular sections of the community that the Council wishes to ensure 
are involved in the LDP process, due to their specific needs and/or the fact that they 
have traditionally been under represented in the planning process. 
  

Tudalen 64



Community Involvement Scheme 

14 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

3.6.2. The Council will make every effort to ensure that hard to reach groups are included 
in the process.  Hard to reach groups include: 

• Young people; 

• People with disabilities;  

• The elderly; 

• Ethnic minorities;  

• Gypsies and Travellers;  

• People with learning difficulties;  

• Homeless people; and  

• Ex-offenders. 

 

3.6.3. Clearly, hard to reach groups are by definition hard to reach and it is not always 
possible to predict which groups will, in fact, prove difficult to consult with.  In order 
to ensure that the community involvement process is as all-inclusive as possible, 
the Council will monitor and review the statutory consultation periods throughout 
the process.  Where it is clear that groups have not been represented, the Council 
will seek to invite such groups into the process.  

 

3.6.4. The Council intends to work with its existing partners in the community and develop 
new partnerships where possible.  The preparation of the plan will be closely linked 
with the work undertaken on the Council’s Corporate Plan and Well-being Plan, and 
where possible, utilise the partnerships that have arisen as a direct result of these 
plans.  

 

3.7. Welsh Language 
 

3.7.1. The Welsh Language Standards were published by the Welsh Language 
Commissioner as a set of legally binding requirements that have applied from the 
30th March 2016.  The principal aim of the Welsh Language Standards is to ensure 
that Welsh is not treated less favourably than English, thus ensuring greater 
consistency in Welsh Language services.  The Standards therefore allow 
individuals to access services via the medium of Welsh, English or bilingually.  The 
Council published Strategaeth Hybu’s Gymraeg/Welsh Language Promotion 
Strategy in September 2016, which alongside the Standards, will be adhered to at 
each stage of the plan-making process.   
 

3.8. SA/SEA 
 

3.8.1. Although the SA/SEA approach should be integrated into the LDP preparation 
process, there are certain areas of work that need to be specifically prepared.  
Likewise, consultation on the SA/SEA process can be integrated with other LDP 
consultation periods however there are specific requirements for the involvement of 
certain consultation bodies.  
 

3.8.2. The SEA Regulations identifies the following bodies that require consultation: 

• Authorities with ‘environmental responsibility’, known as the Consultation 

Bodies.  In Wales these are Natural Resources Wales and CADW (SEA 

Regulation 14); 

Tudalen 65



Community Involvement Scheme 

15 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

• The Public (SEA Regulation 13 (2(b))); and  

• Other EU Member States where the plan is likely to have significant effects on 

the Country. 

 

Tudalen 66



Consultation Methodology and Techniques 

16 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

4. CONSULTATION METHODOLOGY AND TECHNIQUES 

 

4.1. Introduction 

 

4.1.1. The LPA will employ a number of consultation methods and techniques in order to 

facilitate community involvement throughout the plan-making process.  All methods 

utilised have been devised in order to ensure effectual, efficient and wide reaching 

participation.   

 

4.1.2. Whilst a number of different techniques will be used to involve the community as a 

whole, the Council will ensure the provision of clearly written information in 

accessible locations and ensure that there is the opportunity to discuss issues with 

members of staff. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic the Council will, where possible 

be available in person, subject to regulations set out by the Government such as 

social distancing. Where this is not possible the Council will seek alternative 

appropriate methods of engagement such as being available on the telephone and 

online, to ensure that the community can effectively engage with us in the process.  

 

4.1.3. During engagement events undertaken during 2021 the Council has successfully 

utilised video conferencing software such as Team and Zoom to undertake 

meetings, forums and other events. These methods have proven very successful 

and an efficient way of engaging a large number of people. The Council will continue 

to use these methods where appropriate.  

 

4.1.4. Along with providing information on the LDP website the Council will also utilise 

online methods of consultation such as the Let’s Talk page to engage as widely as 

possible.  

 

 

4.1.5. Listed below are some of the techniques that will be used to consult on the stages 

of the plan. 

 

4.2. STEERING GROUPS  

 

4.2.1. The LPA will host a number of discussion groups, focus groups and workshop 

sessions in a bid to maximise engagement and ensure a community-led approach, 

as far as possible.  The input of other groups and organisations will also be key to 

the success of the Revised LDP and the same techniques will be employed to 

secure their input.   

 

4.3. LDP Member Steering Group  

 

4.3.1. The Council will establish a Member Steering Group, in order to guide the 

formulation of the Revised LDP. This will be made up of a number of appropriate 

members. 

 

Tudalen 67



Consultation Methodology and Techniques 

17 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

4.4. LDP Officer Steering Group  

 

4.4.1 In order to ensure that the Revised LDP is sustainable and deliverable, the Council 

will establish a LDP Officer Steering Group.  The Group will consist of Council 

Officers with responsibility for areas including Planning, Highways, Engineering, 

Drainage and Flood Management, Biodiversity, Economic Development, Housing, 

Education and Public Health, although this list is not exhaustive.  It is anticipated 

that a series of sub-groups will be created beneath the umbrella of the Steering 

Group, to assist in key areas of policy development.   

 

 

4.5. Developer Forum 

 

4.5.1. The LPA will also draw on the knowledge and expertise of those organisations 

involved in its unique Developer Forum.  The Developer Forum was established in 

2012, post adoption of the current LDP, to provide innovative solutions to 

overcoming barriers to housing delivery.  Membership of the Forum comprises 

representatives of volume and local house builders (operating within RCT); the 

Home Builders Federations; Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) (operating within 

RCT); National Financial Institutions; the Federation of Master Builders; and 

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council.  The LPA will work with the Forum 

to establish any obstacles to development that have previously been encountered 

and analyse any issues that emerge, to assist in the plan-making process, in 

relation to the Revised LDP.   

 

4.6. LDP Forum 

 

4.6.1. The Council is committed to working in partnership with the community as a whole 

throughout the plan making process.  For this reason, it is proposed to establish an 

LDP Forum to assist in and inform the development plan process.  The Forum will 

play an important role in ensuring that the LDP reflects the development needs and 

aspirations of Rhondda Cynon Taf.  

 

4.6.2. It is anticipated that the role of the Forum will be two-fold.  Firstly, it will serve as a 

mechanism for discussion, which will allow open dialogue to take place between 

stakeholders on key issues of policy.  Secondly, it will act as a control group for the 

various stakeholders in the development plan process.  This Forum will be identified 

on a focus basis, incorporating further Council Members, Council groups, Specific 

and General Consultation bodies.  

 

4.7. SA/SEA Working Group 

 

4.7.1. The Council will set up a SA/SEA working group to help guide and inform the 

SA/SEA process.  

 

4.8. Social Media and online presence  

Tudalen 68



Consultation Methodology and Techniques 

18 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

 

4.8.1. Social Media presents an opportunity to reach a large number of people in an 

efficient manner.  The Council will use its existing social media platform and other 

online platforms where appropriate to advertise news and stages of the plan.  The 

use of social media will be in line with the Council’s social media policy. The Council 

however will not accept formal consultation representations made through certain 

social media platforms which will be made clear on that particular social media 

platform when this restriction applies. 

 

 

 

 

4.9. Website  

 

4.9.1. The Council’s website will be one of the main sources of information and utilised for 

consultation throughout the plan process.  It will be updated with information about 

each stage of the plan-making process, as well as hosting all the documents 

prepared and contain contact information for the Planning Policy Team.  The 

website will also host consultation stages of the plan and include information such 

as how to make a representation and provide the relevant forms needed to do so.  

The website will be kept up to date throughout the plan process.  

 

4.9.2. During engagement events undertaken during 2021 the Council has successfully 

utilised video conferencing software such as Team and Zoom to undertake 

meetings, forums and other events. These methods have proven very successful 

and an efficient way of engaging a large number of people. The Council will continue 

to use these methods where appropriate.  

 

4.9.3. Along with providing information on the LDP website the Council will also utilise 

online methods of consultation such as the Let’s Talk page to engage as widely as 

possible.  

  

 

4.10. Drop-in sessions during consultation periods 

 

4.10.1. The LDP team will endeavour to be as accessible as possible during the LDP 

process.  In order to assist in this, various drop-in sessions will be held during 

consultation periods of the LDP where they can accord with up to date Government 

guidance on COVID-19. It will be ensured that these will be in accessible locations 

and at convenient times.   

 

4.11. Written Information  

 

4.11.1. The Council will produce clearly written information throughout the process. The 

Council will also translate these documents in line with the Welsh Language 

Standards.  Requests for these documents in different formats should be made to 

Tudalen 69



Consultation Methodology and Techniques 

19 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

the Council in writing.  The Council will endeavour to make the written information 

as accessible as possible.  

The Council will prepare Easy Read versions of the main RLDP stage consultation 

documents. 

 

4.12. Document Availability (Deposit Locations) 

 

4.12.1. During the various stages of plan preparation, electronic documents associated with 

the LDP full revision process will be available on the Council’s website.  Electronic 

representations forms will also be available on the website, at the relevant stages 

of consultation.  Additionally, copies of these documents will be available at main 

Council offices and libraries; at the time of writing these are: 

 

• Sardis House, Sardis Road, Pontypridd, CF37 1DU. 

• Pontypridd One 4 All Centre and Library 1 Llys Cadwyn, Taff St, Pontypridd 

CF37 4TH 

• Aberdare One4All Centre and Library, Green Street, Aberdare, CF44 7AG. 

• Porth One4All Centre, and Library Porth Plaza, Pontypridd Road, Porth, CF39 

9PG. 

• Mountain Ash One4All Centre and Library Oxford Street, Mountain Ash, CF45 

3HD 

• Treorchy One4All Centre and Library Station Road, Treorchy, CF62 6NN 

• Abercynon Library, Ynysmeurig Road, Abercynon, CF45 4SU. 

• Church Village Library, Garth Olwg Community Campus, off St Illtyd’s Road, 

Church Village, Pontypridd, CF38 1RQ. 

• Ferndale Library, The Hwb, North Road, Ferndale, CF43 4PS. 

• Hirwaun Library, High Street, Hirwaun, CF44 9SW. 

• Llantrisant Community Library, Llantrisant Leisure Centre, Southgate Park, 

Llantrisant, CF72 8DJ. 

• Pontyclun Library, Heol-y-Felin, Pontyclun, CF72 9BE. 

• Rhydyfelin Library, Library Court, Poplar Road, Rhydyfelin, CF37 5LR. 

• Tonypandy Library. De Winton Street, Tonypandy, CF40 2QZ. 

• Mobile Library 

 

4.12.2 The Council will keep these locations up to date on its website. Please note 

appointments might be needed to view documents due to Covid restrictions. 

 

4.12.3 Principal Office 

4.12.4 The Teams Principal office is located in Sardis House Pontypridd. At the start 

of the pandemic the LDP team began working from home. Homeworking is likely to 

continue and therefore appointments will need to be made to view documents or to 

meet with the LDP team in person. To make an appointment please call or email the 

team. 

Tudalen 70



Consultation Methodology and Techniques 

20 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

 

 

4.13. Direct Correspondence 

 

4.13.1. Anybody who has an interest in Rhondda Cynon Taf and the LDP can and should 

be involved in the LDP process.  The Council will host a consultation database, 

which will hold the contact details of any individual or organisation who wishes to 

be kept informed of the plan process.  During the various stages of the process, the 

Council will make direct contact with individuals and organisations via email or 

letter.  The Council will endeavour to reduce the amount of paper used during the 

LDP process and therefore will, where possible, require an email address from 

participants.  It is however understood that not everyone has an email address and 

therefore these individuals will be written to via post.  

 

4.14. Availability of the LDP Team  

 

4.14.1. The LDP team will endeavour to be as accessible as possible throughout the LDP 

process.  The team has a direct email address and telephone number.  The team 

can be contacted during office hours, which are between 9.00am-5.00pm Monday 

to Friday (excluding bank holidays).  

 

4.14.2. The Council will also endeavour to meet with community groups and/or residents 

as appropriate and where possible.  

 

4.14.3. Contact details for the team are included at Appendix 1. 

 

4.14.4. Set out above are the main consultation and engagement techniques that will be 

employed by the Council during the plan-making process.  There will however 

inevitably be opportunities that arise during the LDP process to engage further with 

the public, especially as COVID-19 restrictions are gradually lifted.  The Council will 

explore any opportunity to do so.  

 

4.15. Interacting with the Council/Expectations of Consultees 

 

4.15.1. For comments and/or representations to be made on the Revised LDP, it is 

essential that they are submitted during the specified timescales, to allow the LPA 

to give them due consideration.  The timetable of relevant stages is set out earlier 

in the Delivery Agreement, which provides a guideline with regard to when 

involvement is sought.  This will allow all views expressed to be considered and 

ultimately inform the plan-making process, where appropriate.  

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 71



Consultation Methodology and Techniques 

21 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

4.16. Representation forms  

 

4.16.1. A standard representation form will be made available by the Council during 

consultation periods.  The completion of key sections of this will be required to make 

a valid representation.  

 

4.16.2. Should any personal details change from the point of initial contact, it is advisable 

to inform the LPA to ensure that you continue to remain informed of the Plan’s 

progress.  Additionally, the Council acknowledges that a change in land ownership 

details of Candidate Sites could occur during the process.  Consequently, it is 

imperative that any such changes are communicated to the LPA, as a matter of 

urgency. 

 

4.17. Consensus Building 

 

4.17.1. The LPA will ensure that consensus is built via the engagement and consultation 

techniques referenced in the Community Involvement Scheme.  In order to build a 

consensus, it is essential that stakeholders and all other interested parties are kept 

fully informed and engaged throughout the full revision procedure.  This will be of 

particular importance at the outset of the process.  It is however acknowledged that 

on occasion, consensus will not be achievable and a difference of opinion between 

various parties will prevail.  As such, a clearly defined audit trail of decisions will be 

maintained, thus ensuring transparency in the decision making process.   

 

4.18. Handling of Representations and Other Data  

 

4.18.1. Representations which are received in the prescribed timescales will be handled in 

the following manner: 

• Representation logged and given a representation number;  

• Confirmation sent to representor in receipt of the representation;  

• Representation and details of representor logged; 

• All valid representations considered and responses formulated; and   

• Local Authority’s responses to representations recorded and published in 

accordance with the Regulations.  

 

4.19. Data Protection 

 

4.19.1. All personal information and data will be handled in line with the agreed Prosperity 

and Development Departments data protection and privacy policies.  

 

To learn more about how your personal information will be used, please visit the 

Council’s data protection pages at www.rctcbc.gov.uk/dataprotection. 

 

4.20. Late Representations 

 

Tudalen 72



Consultation Methodology and Techniques 

22 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

4.20.1. For representations to be considered, the consultation responses for the specific 

stage will be required within a precise period.  Late comments/representations will 

not be logged as valid if they fail to comply with the published timescales.   

 

4.20.2. There may be extenuating circumstances in which a representation is submitted 

late, it will however be at the discretion of the LPA with regard to whether such 

comments/representations are accepted.  The LPA faces a challenging timetable in 

the production of a revised plan; therefore, late representations have the potential 

to cause further and unnecessary delays, which would not be acceptable. 

 

4.21. Monitoring and Review of the Delivery Agreement  

 

4.21.1. It is proposed to monitor and review the effectiveness of the Delivery Agreement at 

each stage of the Local Development Plan preparation process.  This will establish 

whether the LPA is meeting its objectives in terms of public engagement in the 

process, and whether or not the timescales, as indicated, are being met. This will 

be of particular importance during this time due to COVID-19 restrictions and the 

evolving nature of the situation. Where there is opportunity to improve the methods 

of engagement we will seek to do so. However any significant amendments to the 

community involvement scheme and any changes to the timetable will require 

formal Council and Welsh Government approval.  

 

4.21.2. An updated timetable will be submitted to the Welsh Government, following the 

Deposit stage.  This will provide the opportunity to specify a refined timescale for 

the ‘indicative’ stages of the timetable, once further details are known.   

 

 

4.22. Monitoring and Review of the LDP  

 

4.22.1. The Council will produce an Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) each year following 

the date of adoption, which will assess how effectively the policies and proposals of 

the plan are performing and highlight any need for modifications.  The monitoring 

report will also include references to new or updated National Planning Guidance 

and any other relevant information.  Once produced, the monitoring report will be 

made available to the public to view on the Council’s website.  

 

4.22.2. Following the adoption of the LDP, it is intended that the plan will be reviewed on a 

four-yearly cycle.  A review of the SA/SEA baseline information and trends will also 

take place and feed into the revision.  

 

4.23. Supplementary Planning Guidance  

 

4.23.1. The Revised LDP will contain sufficient policies and proposals to provide the basis 

for determining planning applications.  The selective use of SPG will be utilised as 

a means of setting out more detailed thematic policies or site-specific guidance on 

the way in which the LDP policies will be applied.  SPG does not form part of the 

Tudalen 73



Consultation Methodology and Techniques 

23 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

development plan but will be derived from policies contained within the plan, thus 

ensuring consistency in the policies/proposals that it supplements. 

 

4.23.2. Following the adoption of RCTs current LDP, a number of SPG were produced to 

provide support to existing LDP policy.  These were: 

• Design and Place-making (March 2011) 

• Design and Place-making: Access, Circulation and Parking (March 2011) 

• The Historic Environment (March 2011) 

• Design in Town Centres (March 2011) 

• A Design Guide for Householder Development (March 2011) 

• Affordable Housing (March 2011) 

• Nature Conservation (March 2011) 

• Planning Obligations (March 2011) 

• Planning Obligations (Revised) (December 2014) 

• Shopfront Design (October 2014) 

• Development of Flats (June 2015) 

• Employment Skills (June 2015) 

• Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) (May 2018) 

 

4.23.3. A review of all the existing SPG documents, including ones prepared more recently, 

will form part of the LDP full revision procedure, with amendment or revised likely 

in most instances. 

 

4.23.4. The Council will use SPG to cover detailed and numerical guidelines where it is 

considered that they may change during the lifetime of the plan.  This will ensure 

that the LDP does not become outdated in the short term and will assist with the 

flexibility of the plan.  Where SPG will aid the understanding of the LDP, it will be 

prepared and consulted on in parallel.  It will not however be possible to prepare all 

SPG in parallel and in these circumstances, SPG will be subject to a separate 

formal process of consultation and adoption.  A report of public consultation will be 

prepared in respect of each SPG document.  

 

4.23.5. SPG cannot be formally adopted until after the Inspector’s binding report has been 

received and it is clear that there will be no change in the policy approach.  

 

Tudalen 74



Timetable and Proposed Methods of Engagement 

24 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

5. TIMETABLE AND PROPOSED METHODS OF ENGAGEMENT 

 
The information below provides a detailed breakdown of the plan making process, up to and including the submission of the LDP to 
PEDW for examination.  It seeks to explain the purpose of the stage, who will be engaged and the Council's expectations of 
consultees. The subsequent stages in the process are not directly in the control of the Council and therefore may be subject to 
change. 
 
Table 2  
 

Stage in the LDP Preparation Process:  
Pre-Deposit Participation (Regulation 14) 
including preparation of the Preferred 
Strategy 

Timescale 
Who will be 

Involved 
Methods of 

Engagement  

Likely 
Outcomes & 

Reporting 
Mechanism 

Resources  

 
Preparation of detailed background papers of 
LDP topics 
 
Review evidence base  
 
Preparation of an Integrated Sustainability 
Appraisal (ISA) Scoping Report – this report 
will encompass:  Strategic Environmental 
Assessment (SEA) as well as the Wellbeing 
of future Generations Act, a Welsh language 
impact assessment, an Equalities Impact 
Assessment, a health impact assessment 
and the Environment Act.                                  
 
Preparation of Issues, Objectives, Vision and 
Aims 
 

 
April 2022- 
December 
2023 

 
RCT 
Steering 
Groups  
 
Specific 
Consultation 
Bodies  
 
General 
Consultation 
Bodies  
 
General 
Public 
 

 
Workshops  
 
Direct 
Correspondence 
via email/letter  
 
Online presence 
such as through 
the internet, social 
media platforms 
and video 
conferencing. 
 
 

 
Preparation of 
formal evidence 
base 
documents and 
reports on 
engagement. 
 
Pre-deposit 
proposals and 
papers 
approved by 
Council and 
approval for 
public 
consultation 
 
 

 
LDP 
Planning 
Policy Team  
 
Officer 
Steering 
Group 
 
Member 
Steering 
Group 
 
Consultants  
 
ICT  
 
Translation 

T
udalen 75



Timetable and Proposed Methods of Engagement 

25 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Preparation of strategy options and 
assessment of alternatives (Incorporating 
ISA requirements) 
 
Preparation of Spatial Strategy and Preferred 
Options document 
 
Preparation of the initial ISA Report   
                                   
Habitats Regulation Assessment preparation.  
 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

 
Call for Candidate Sites  

 
June 2022-
September 
2022 

 
RCT 
Steering 
Groups  
 
Specific 
Consultation 
Bodies  
 
General 
Consultation 
Bodies  
 
Other 
consultees  
  
Public 
Landowners  
 

 
Information made 
available on the 
Council’s Website 
with Press 
Release 
 
Corporate 
Facebook and 
Twitter Accounts 
and other 
appropriate social 
media platforms. 
 
 
Direct 
correspondence 
via email and 
letter 
 

 
Preparation of a 
Candidate Sites 
Register  

 
LDP 
Planning 
Policy Team  
 
ICT  
 
Marketing 
and press  
 
Translation  

T
udalen 76



Timetable and Proposed Methods of Engagement 

26 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

 

Any other 
interested 
party 
wishing to 
submit land 
to the 
process.  
 

 

Integrated SA/SEA      

 
5 week Statutory consultation on ISA 
Scoping report  

  
July/ August 
2022 

Statutory 
Consultation 
Bodies  
 
ISA 
working 
group 
 
 
 

Direct 
correspondence 
via email/ letter 
 
Workshop/meeting  
 
 

Consideration of 
representations 
on Draft ISA 
Scoping Report. 
 
Preparation of 
formal evidence 
base 
documents. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
LDP 
Planning 
Policy Team  
 
Consultation 
Bodies (ISA 
Working 
Group) 
 
SA/SEA 
consultants.  

T
udalen 77



Timetable and Proposed Methods of Engagement 

27 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

 

Stage in the LDP 
Preparation 
Process: Pre-
Deposit (Preferred 
Strategy) Public 
Consultation 
(Regulation 15 & 16) 

 

Timescale Who will be Involved Methods of Engagement Likely 
Outcomes & 

Reporting 
Mechanism 

Resources 

Consultation on Pre-
deposit Proposals 
and supporting 
documents including 
Preferred Strategy 
and the Candidate 
Sites Register 
  

 
January/February 
2024 
 
(for 6 weeks) 

RCT LDP Steering 
Groups  
 
Specific consultation 
bodies,  
 
General consultation 
bodies,  
 
Other consultation 
bodies 
 
ISA  Consultation 
bodies  
 
Any other interested 
party/general public. 
 
 

Direct Correspondence 
via email and letter 
 
Documents placed on the 
Councils website Online 
presence such as through 
the internet, social media 
platforms, video 
conferencing and video 
sharing. 
 
Copies of all relevant 
documents placed in 
deposit locations  
 
Drop in sessions/ 
exhibitions/meeting where 
appropriate  
 
Documents sent to 
Specific and General 
consultation bodies  
 

Preparation of 
formal evidence 
base documents 
 
Analyse and 
record 
representations 
received 
 
Details of 
responses 
received to be 
incorporated into 
a report of 
consultation 
(initial 
consultation 
report) 
 
Confirm/Amend 
Preferred 
Strategy. 
Approval of Pre-

LDP 
Planning 
Policy Team  
 
Elected 
Members  
 
ICT  
 
Translation 
team  
 
Events team  
 
Printing 
costs  
 
Marketing 
costs  

T
udalen 78



Timetable and Proposed Methods of Engagement 

28 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

 

Stage in the LDP 
Preparation 
Process: Pre-
Deposit (Preferred 
Strategy) Public 
Consultation 
(Regulation 15 & 16) 

 

Timescale Who will be Involved Methods of Engagement Likely 
Outcomes & 

Reporting 
Mechanism 

Resources 

Hard copies of the main 
documents placed in main 
Council offices and 
libraries (deposit 
locations) 
 
Social media posts  
 
 

deposit proposals 
for Deposit 
consultation.  
 

6 week consultation 
on the initial ISA 
Report 
  

January/February 
2024 

As above   As above  Analyse and 
record 
representations 
received 
 
Details of 
responses 
received to be 
incorporated into 
a report of 
consultation  
 
Amend/update 
ISA as necessary 

ISA  working 
group 
 
Consultants  
 
And as 
above 
 

T
udalen 79



Timetable and Proposed Methods of Engagement 

29 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

 

Stage in the LDP 
Preparation 
Process: Pre-
Deposit (Preferred 
Strategy) Public 
Consultation 
(Regulation 15 & 16) 

 

Timescale Who will be Involved Methods of Engagement Likely 
Outcomes & 

Reporting 
Mechanism 

Resources 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 80



Timetable and Proposed Methods of Engagement 

30 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Stage in the LDP 
Preparation 

Process: Preparation 
of Deposit Revised 

LDP 
(Regulation 16, 17, 

18 and 19) 

Timescale Who will be Involved 
Methods of 

Engagement 

Likely 
Outcomes & 

Reporting 
Mechanism 

Likely Resources 

Preparation of 
Deposit Revised LDP  
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 
2024- 
January 
2025 
 

LDP Planning Policy 
Team 
 
Officer Steering Group  
 
LDP Members 
Steering Group 
 
Developer Forum  
 
LDP Forum 

Meetings 
 
Workshop 
 
Video 
Conferencing 
 
Digital 
correspondence  

Appropriate 
contributions to 
the Deposit 
Revised LDP. 
 
 

LDP Planning Policy 
Team 
 
Officer Steering Group  
 
LDP Members Steering 
Group 
 
Developer Forum  
 
LDP Forum 

Preparation of the ISA 
report and the HRA 
for the Deposit 
Revised LDP.  

March 
2024- 
January 
2025 
 
 

LDP Planning Policy 
Team/ ISA 
Consultants 
 
Officer Steering Group  
 
LDP Members 
Steering Group 
 
LDP Forum 
 
ISA Working Group 
 

As above Appropriate 
contributions to 
the Deposit 
Revised LDP. 

LDP Planning Policy 
Team/ ISA Consultants 
 
Officer Steering Group 
 
LDP Members Steering 
Group 
 
LDP Forum 
 
ISA Working Group 
 

 

T
udalen 81



Timetable and Proposed Methods of Engagement 

31 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Stage in the LDP 
Preparation 
Process: Statutory 
Deposit of 
Proposals 
(Regulation 17, 18 
and 19) 

Timescale Who will be 
Involved 

Methods of 
Engagement 

Likely 
Outcomes & 
Reporting 
Mechanism 

Likely Resources 

Statutory 
consultation of the 
Deposit Draft LDP 
and supporting 
documents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
January/February 
2025 
 
 
(for 6 weeks) 

RCT Steering 
Groups 
 
Specific consultation 
bodies, General 
consultation bodies, 
Other consultation 
bodies 
 
ISA Consultation 
bodies  
 
Any other interested 
party including 
general public. 
 

Direct 
correspondence 
via email and 
letter 
 
Documents made 
available at 
deposit locations  
 
All relevant 
documents 
published on the 
Councils Website 
with press 
release. Online 
presence such as 
through the 
internet, social 
media platforms, 
video 
conferencing and 
video sharing. 
 
Documents sent 
to Specific and 

 
Details of 
responses 
incorporated into 
a Report of 
Consultation.  
 
Copies of 
representations 
placed in deposit 
locations and on 
website 
 
 
 

LDP Planning Policy 
team  
 
Internal consultees  
 
ICT  
 
Marketing and events  
 
Printing costs  

T
udalen 82



Timetable and Proposed Methods of Engagement 

32 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

General 
consultation 
bodies  
 
Corporate 
Facebook and 
twitter 
 
Drop in sessions/ 
exhibitions/ 
meetings as 
appropriate   
 
Site notices for 
site specific 
allocations 

Statutory 
Consultation on the 
Deposit stage ISA 
report and the HRA.   

 
January/February 
2025 
 

As above  As above  As above As above  

T
udalen 83



Timetable and Proposed Methods of Engagement 

33 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Stage in the LDP 
Preparation 

Process: 
Submission of 

LDP for 
Examination 
(Regulation 

18,19,22) 

Timescale Who will be Involved 
Methods of 

Engagement 

Likely 
Outcomes & 

Reporting 
Mechanism 

Resources 

Consider 
representations 
received and 
update 
consultation report   
 
Update the ISA if 
necessary  
 
Notify all relevant 
parties of 
submission  
 
Submit the Deposit 
Draft LDP, ISA and 
HRA and other 
relevant 
documents to 
Welsh 
Government   
 
 

Indicative 
date:  
 
 
June 2025 
 
 
(Actual 
dates to be 
agreed 
with 
PEDW  

Welsh Government  
 
Planning and Environment Decisions 
Wales 
 
RCT Steering Groups 
 
Specific consultation bodies  
 
General consultation bodies  
 
Other consultation bodies  
 
SA Consultation Bodies  
 
Those persons who have requested 
notification when the LDP is submitted  
 
Any other interested party. 
 
  

Direct 
correspondence  
via email and 
letter 
 
Information/ 
statement 
provided on the 
Council’s 
website of 
submission 
along with 
relevant 
documents 
 
Hard copies of 
main relevant 
documents 
available at 
deposit 
locations   
 
 

Updated 
Consultation 
report  
 
Updated ISA if 
necessary 
 
Report of 
Consultation 
reported to 
Council on 
Deposit plan 
and any 
focussed 
changes sought 
 
Submission of 
Deposit LDP 
and supporting 
documents to 
Welsh 
Government 

LDP Planning 
Policy Team  
 
 
Printing costs  
 

T
udalen 84



Timetable and Proposed Methods of Engagement 

34 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

 

Stage in the 
LDP 

Preparation 
Process: 

Independent 
Examination 
(Regulation 

23) 

Timescale Who will be Involved 
Methods of 

Engagement 

Likely 
Outcomes & 

Reporting 
Mechanism 

Resources 

Notification of 
independent 
examination in 
line with 
regulation 23 

Indicative date:   
 
 
September 2025 
 
 
(at least 6 weeks prior to 
the start of the 
Examination) 
 
(Actual to be agreed with  
PEDW) 

RCT Steering Groups  
 
Specific consultation 
bodies 
 
General consultation 
bodies 
 
Other consultation bodies 
 
Those persons who have 
made valid representations 
  
Planning and Environment 
Decisions Wales 
 
Programme Officer  
  
Any other interested 
parties  
 
 

Formal 
notification 
given by direct 
correspondence 
and information 
provided on the 
Council’s 
website 
 
Notification of 
those who have 
made a valid 
representation 

N/A LDP Planning 
Policy Team  
 
Consultants 

T
udalen 85



Timetable and Proposed Methods of Engagement 

35 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Stage in the 
LDP 

Preparation 
Process: 

Independent 
Examination 
(Regulation 

23) 

Timescale Who will be Involved 
Methods of 

Engagement 

Likely 
Outcomes & 

Reporting 
Mechanism 

Resources 

Independent 
Examination  

Indicative date:  
 
 
November/December 
2025 
 
(Actual to be agreed by 
PEDW) 

All those interested 
individuals and 
organisations that have 
made representations at 
the Deposit Stage of the 
Plan  
 
Planning and Environment 
Decisions Wales 
 
 
  

Round Table 
discussions  
 
Formal written 
and oral 
submission 

Inspectors 
report  

Programme 
officer 
 
Cost of 
examination  
 
 
Administrative 
costs  
 

T
udalen 86



Timetable and Proposed Methods of Engagement 

36 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

 

Stage in the 
LDP 

Preparation 
Process: 

Receipt of the 
Inspectors 

Report 
(Regulation 24) 

Timescale Who will be Involved 
Methods of 

Engagement 

Likely 
Outcomes & 

Reporting 
Mechanism 

Resources 

Receipt of 
Inspectors 
report  

Indicative date:  
 
April 2026 
 
(Actual to be agreed 
with PEDW) 

Any persons who has asked 
to be notified. 
 
RCT Steering Groups  

Inspectors 
report made 
available on the 
Councils 
website 
 
Copies of the 
report made 
available in 
deposit 
locations 
 
Press release  
 
Corporate 
Facebook and 
twitter 

Advise Council 
of receipt of 
Inspectors 
report  

Cost of printing 

 

 

 

T
udalen 87



Timetable and Proposed Methods of Engagement 

37 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Stage in the 
LDP 

Preparation 
Process: 
Adoption 

(Regulation 
25) 

Timescale Who will be Involved 
Methods of 

Engagement 

Likely Outcomes 
& Reporting 
Mechanism 

Resources 

Formally adopt 
the LDP as the 
Development 
Plan for the 
County 
Borough within 
8 weeks of 
receipt of 
Inspectors 
Report 

 
May 2026 
 
 

Those who have asked to be 
notified  
 
Cabinet  
 
Council 

LDP, adoption 
statement and 
the Integrated 
Sustainability 
Appraisal report 
to be published 
on the 
Council’s 
website 
 
Documents 
available in 
deposit 
locations 
 
Adoption 
statement sent  
to those who 
have asked to 
be notified 
 
Press release  
 

Full Council prior 
to final adoption 

Costs of 
printing 
 
Marketing  

T
udalen 88



Timetable and Proposed Methods of Engagement 

38 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Stage in the 
LDP 

Preparation 
Process: 
Adoption 

(Regulation 
25) 

Timescale Who will be Involved 
Methods of 

Engagement 

Likely Outcomes 
& Reporting 
Mechanism 

Resources 

Corporate 
Facebook and 
Twitter 

Formal 
publication of 
the ISA Report 
 

 
May 2026 
 

 As above  As above Cost of printing 

Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) 

Production of 
the Annual 
Monitoring 
Report 

 
31st October 2028 
and annually 
thereafter 

Any interested party Published on 
the Council’s 
Website  
 
Send to Welsh 
Government 

Cabinet/Delegated 
Cabinet Member  

Staff 
 
Translation  
 
ICT 

T
udalen 89



Appendices 

39 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Appendix 1  

 

CONTACT DETAILS  

 

The Planning Policy Team can be contacted using any of the following methods: 

 

Email:  LDP@rctcbc.gov.uk 

Post: 

Planning Policy Team 

Floor 2 

Sardis House 

Sardis Road 

Pontypridd 

Rhondda Cynon Taf 

CF37 1DU. 

Telephone:  01443 281129 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 90

mailto:LDP@rctcbc.gov.uk


Appendices 

40 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Appendix 2 – List of Consultation Bodies 

The Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulations 2005 
defines General Consultation Bodies and Specific Consultation Bodies as follows:- 
 

General Consultation Bodies are: Specific Consultation Bodies are:  
 

 
- voluntary bodies, some or all of whose 
activities benefit any part of the LPA's 
area; 
 
- bodies which represent the interests of 
different racial, ethnic or national groups 
in the LPA's area; 
 
- bodies which represent the interests of 
different religious groups in the LPA's 
area; 
 
- bodies which represent the interests of 
disabled persons in the LPA's area; 
 
- bodies which represent the interests of 
persons carrying out business in the 
LPA's area; and 
 
- bodies which represent the interests of 
Welsh culture in the LPA's area; 

 
- Natural Resources Wales 
- Network Rail Infrastructure Limited 
- insofar as the Secretary of State 
exercises functions previously 
exercisable by the Strategic Rail 
Authority, the Secretary of State, 
- the National Assembly, 
- a relevant authority any part of whose 
area is in or adjoins the area of the LPA, 
- any person 
(i) to whom the electronic 
communications code applies by virtue 
of a direction given under section 
106(3)(a) of the Communications Act 
2003, and 
 
(ii) who owns or controls electronic 
communications apparatus situated in 
any part of the area of the LPA (where 
known), 
 
- if it exercises functions in any part of the 
LPA's area— 
(i) a Local Health Board, 
(ii) a person to whom a licence has 
been granted under section 6(1)(b) or 
(c) of the Electricity Act 1989, 
(iii) a person to whom a licence has 
been granted under section 7(2) of 
the Gas Act 1986, 
(iv) a sewerage undertaker, 
(v) a water undertaker; 
 

 
The tables that follow comprise the Specific Consultation Bodies, UK Government, 
General Consultation Bodies and Other Consultees as required by LDP Wales. The 
tables also include parties who have either requested inclusion directly or been 
suggested as useful additions by third parties.  
 
The Council undertook targeted consultation on the Delivery Agreement with 
stakeholders. Suggestions made for additional consultees have been added to this list 
following the consultation.  

Tudalen 91



Appendices 

41 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

 
These groups will play an important role in the development of the LDP and the Council 
will ensure that they are kept involved throughout the process. 
 
It must be stressed that this list is not exhaustive or exclusive. The Council welcomes 
all suggestions, either directly from organisations themselves or individuals, on any 
interest group, organisation or body who may wish to be included on the database. It 
is anticipated that the list will grow continuously throughout the development of the 
LDP. 
 
The Council maintains an LDP Consultation Database, which includes interested 
parties. The Council is happy to include any individual who wishes to be kept abreast 
of the LDP process. 
 
Should any party/individual wish to be removed from the LDP databases, they should 
contact the Development Planning Team directly. 
 
At stages of plan preparation, the Council will consult with those consultation bodies 

listed below: 

Specific Consultation Bodies: 

Specific Consultation Bodies (including UK Government Departments) 

British Telecom 

CADW 

Cwm Taf University Health Board 

Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 

Department for Transport 

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water 

Glamorgan-Gwent Archaeological Trust 

Home Office 

Ministry of Defence 

National Gird Company plc 

National Grid Wireless 

Natural Resources Wales 

Network Rail Infrastructure Limited 

Office of the Secretary of State for Wales 

Telecommunications Operators (inclusive of EE, Vodafone, O2, Three, Tesco 
Mobile, NTL, Open reach and Virgin Media) 

Transco 

Wales and West Utilities 

Welsh Government (inclusive of the Planning Division) 

Welsh Water  

Western Power Distribution  

 

South East Wales and Other Local Authorities and Bodies 

Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Bridgend County Borough Council 

Tudalen 92



Appendices 

42 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Caerphilly County Borough Council 

Cardiff Capital Region  

Cardiff Capital Region Strategic Planning Panel (when established) 

City of Cardiff Council 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

Monmouthshire County Borough Council 

Neath Port Talbot 

Newport City Council 

Powys County Council 

Torfaen County Borough Council 

Vale of Glamorgan  

 

Town and Community Councils in Rhondda Cynon Taf 

Gilfach Goch Community Council 

Hirwaun and Penderyn Community Council 

Llanharan Community Council 

Llanharry Community Council 

Llantrisant Community Council 

Llantwit Fardre Community Council 

Pontyclun Community Council 

Pontypridd Town Council 

Rhigos Community Council 

Taffs Well and Nantgarw Community Council 

Tonyrefail Community Council 

Ynysybwl and Coed y Cwm Community Council 

 

Community Councils in Adjoining Authorities 

Aber Valley Community Council 

Blaengwrach Community Council 

Coychurch Higher Community Council 

Glyn Neath Town Council 

Llanfrynach Community Council 

Llangan Community Council 

Nelson Community Council 

Ogmore Valley Community Council 

Pencoed Town Council 

Pendoylan Community Council 

Penllyn Community Council 

Pentyrch Community Council 

Penyrheol, Trecenydd and Energlyn Community Council 

Peterston-Super-Ely Community Council 

Tongwynlais Community Council 

Welsh St Donats Community Council 

Ystradfellte and Pontneddfechan Community Council 

 

 

Tudalen 93



Appendices 

43 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

 

General Consultation Bodies: 

General Consultees – Voluntary Organisations in RCT 

Age Connects Morgannwg 

Canolfan Maerdy 

Citizen’s Advice Rhondda Cynon Taff 

Council for Wales of Voluntary Youth Services – Fernhill Youth Project 

Groundwork Trust 

Home Start Rhondda Cynon Taff 

Interlink RCT 

Penywaun Building Communities Trust 

TraVol Community Transport 

Valleys Kids/Plant y Cymoedd 

Wales Council for Voluntary Action (WCVA) 

Wales Federation of YFC 

Women’s Aid RCT 

 

General Consultees – Ethnic Minority Groups 

Friends, Families and Travellers 

Gypsies and Travellers Wales 

Showmen’s Guild of Great Britain (Wales and Northern Ireland) 

The Equality and Human Rights Commission 

The Gypsy Council 

The National Federation of Gypsy Liaison Groups (Wales) 

Traveller Law Reform Project 

Travelling Ahead 

VALREC (Valleys Race Equality Council) 

 

General Consultees – Religious Organisations 

Cardiff Buddhist Centre 

Catholic Church in England and Wales 

Evangelical Movement of Wales 

Kingdom Hall of Jehovah’s Witnesses, Miskin, Pontyclun 

Mountain Ash Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses 

Muslim Council for Wales 

Pontypridd Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses 

Presbyterian Church of Wales 

Representative Body of the Church in Wales 

Rhondda Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses 

South Wales Baptist Association 

St Elvan’s Church Aberdare 

St Fagan’s Church 

The Apostolic Church, UK 

The Islamic Centre, Aberdare 

The Salvation Army 

Trealaw Quakers 

Tudalen 94



Appendices 

44 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

UK Islamic Mission 

United Reform Church 

Wales Synod – The Methodist Church in Wales 

 

 

General Consultees – Disability Groups 

Accessible Wales 

British Deaf Association (Wales) 

Disability Arts Cymru 

Disability Law Service 

Disability Resource Centre 

Disability Rights Commission Wales 

Disability Sport Wales 

Disability Wales 

Disabled Persons Transport Advisory Committee 

Guide Dogs for the Blind (including Guide Dogs Cymru) 

Learning Disability Wales 

Mencap Cymru 

MS Society Cymru 

National Federation of the Blind 

Partially Sighted Society 

Rhondda Cynon Taff Access Group 

Rhondda Cynon Taf People First 

Royal National Institute for the Blind (RNIB Cymru) 

Sense Cymru 

Wales Council for Deaf People 

Wales Council of the Blind 

Whizz-Kidz 

 

General Consultees – Arts and Culture 

Arts Connect 

Arts Factory 

Colliseum Theatre 

Colstars Theatre Company 

Cymdeithas yr Iaith 

LMT Academy of Performing Arts 

Menter Iaith 

Model House, Llantrisant 

Muni Arts Centre 

National Centre for Learning Welsh 

Rhondda Cynon Taff Community Arts 

Rhondda Theatre Group 

Showcase Sioegerdd 

Spectacle Theatre Ltd 

Stagecoach Performing Arts, Pontypridd 

Stardreams Musical Theatre Company 

Tudalen 95



Appendices 

45 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Theatres Trust 

Urdd Gobaith Cymru 

  

 

 

 

Other Consultation Bodies: 

Other Consultees as Stated in the LDP Manual  

Airport Operators- Cardiff Airport  Freight Transport Association 

British Aggregates Association  Gypsy and Travellers Law Reform 
Coalition  

British Geological Survey  Gypsy Council 

Canal and River Trust Health and Safety Executive  

CBI Home Builders Federation 

Centre for Ecology and Hydrology  Institution of Civil Engineers 

Chambers of commerce  Local community, conservation and 
amenity groups and Civic Societies- see 
separate list below. 

Chartered Institute of Housing  Local Transport operators – See 
separate list below  

Chartered Institute of Waste 
Management 

Mineral Products Association Wales  

Civil Aviation Authority  National Farmers Union of Wales 

Coal Authority  National Grid 

Commission for Racial Equality  One Voice Wales  

Country Land and Business Association  Planning Aid Wales  

Crown Estate Office  Police  

Design Commission for Wales  Post Office Property Holdings 

Disability Rights Commission  Public Health Wales  

Disability Wales  Rail Freight Group 

Disabled Persons Transport Advisory 
Committee 

Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors 

Electricity, Gas and 
Telecommunications Companies – see 
separate list below 

RTPI Cymru 

Environmental groups at a national and 
regional level –See separate list below  

Sports Council for Wales  

Environmental Services Agency 
(Waste) 

Train Operating Companies-  See 
separate list below 

Equality and Human Rights 
Commission 

Wales Council for Voluntary Action  

Farmers Union of Wales Wales Environmental Link  

Federation of Small Businesses  Welsh Environmental Services 
Association  

Fields in Trust Welsh Language Commissioner  

Fire and Rescue Services  Welsh Water DWR Cymru  

Tudalen 96



Appendices 

46 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Welsh Ambulance Service 
South Wales Fire and Rescue Service  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 97



Appendices 

47 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

 

Commercial  

Aberdare BID Institute of Directors, Wales 

Aberdare Chamber of Trade  

Business in Focus Pontypridd BID 

Business Wales (South Wales Regional 
Centre) 

Retail consortium 

Campaign for Real Ale (Camra) South Wales Chamber of Commerce 

Chamber of Commerce Town Centre Forums 

Federation of Small Businesses, Wales Treforest Growth 

 

Environmental Groups – Local, National and Regional  

Campaign for the Protection of Rural 
Wales (CPRW) 

The National Allotment Society 

Centre for Ecology and Hydrology, 
Natural Environment Research Council 

The National Trust 

Coed Cymru, Welsh Woodlands and 
Timber 

The Open Spaces Society 

Friends of the Earth (Cymru) The Wildlife Trust of South and West 
Wales (Glamorgan) 

Glamorgan Bird Club Wales Environment Link 

Glamorgan Gwent Archaeological Trust Welsh Environmental Services 
Association 

Just Mammals Consultancy Welsh Historic Gardens Trust 

RSPB Cymru Wildfowl and Wetlands Trust 

 

 

Local Community, Conservation Groups and Civic Societies  

Action for Hirwaun Pontypridd Historical Society 

Cynon Valley History Society Pontypridd YMCA 

Cynon Valley Ramblers Rhondda Civic Society 

Glamorgan Family History Society Taff Ely Ramblers 

Glamorgan Fungus Group Valleys Steps 

Hirwaun Historical Society  

Local Transport Providers including Rail 

Bus Users UK Network Rail 

Cardiff Bus Company New Adventure Travel 

Edwards Coaches  Stagecoach South Wales 

First Call Travel Thomas of Rhondda 

First Cymru Buses Transport for Wales 

Globe Coaches Traveline Cymru 

Great Western Railway TraVol Community Transport 

Harris Coaches Veolia Transport (including Bebb Travel 
& Pullman Coaches) 

Keolis Amey Village & Valleys Community Transport 

N.A.T Group (South Wales)  

Tudalen 98



Appendices 

48 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Hirwaun YMCA  

Llantrisant and District Local History 
Society 

 

Mountain Ash YMCA  

Pontypridd and District Art Society  

 

Electricity, Gas and Telecommunications 

Arbed Am Byth Ofgem 

British Gas (Transco) (Wales) SSE (Scottish and Southern Energy) 

Celtic Energy Western Power Distribution 

Mobile UK  

 

Education  

Cardiff University University of Glamorgan 

Coleg Morgannwg University of South Wales  

Coleg Y Cymoedd  WEA Cymru (Adult Learning Wales) 

 

Housing Associations  

Cynon Taf Housing Association  Rhondda Housing Association  

Hafod Housing Association Trivallis Housing Association 

Linc Cymru Wales & West Housing Association 

Newydd Housing Association Welsh Federation of Housing 
Associations 

Pobl Group/ Seren Housing   

 

Elderly Persons Organisations 

Age Alliance Wales Care & Repair Cymru 

Age Connects Wales Older People’s Commissioner for Wales 

Age Cymru  

 

Ex-Offender Groups  

Apex charitable trust  Trailblazers 

Nacro  Unlock 

Probation service Women in Prison 

Rhondda Cynon Taf Youth Offending 
team  

Working Chance 

SOVA Working Links 

St Giles Trust YMCA 

Step Together  

 

Gypsy and Traveller Groups 

Cardiff Gypsy sites group The Gypsy and Traveller Law Reform 
Group 

Friends Families and Travellers Travelling Ahead 

Tudalen 99



Appendices 

49 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Gypsies and Travellers Wales Welsh Government Gypsy and Traveller 
Policy Officer 

Gypsy Council   

 

Homelessness Organisations 

Crisis Salvation Army 

Cymorth Cymru Shelter 

Emmaus South Wales Solar Cymru 

Huggard The Wallich 

Llamau YMCA 

 

 

House Builders  

ASD Build Jehu 

Atlantic Dwellings Kier Living 

Barratt Homes Leaders Romans Group 

Bellway Homes (Wales) Ltd Lewis Homes 

Bovis Homes Llanmoor Homes 

Charles Church (Wales) Lovells 

Davies Brothers (Wales) Limited Morganstone 

Davies Homes Persimmon Homes 

Delta Property Redrow Homes 

Edenstone Homes   

Enzo’s Homes Taylor Wimpey 

Federation of Master Builders Tirion Homes 

Harris Land and Development WDL Homes 

Home Builders Federation  

 

Planning Consultants and Land Agents  

Alan Stuckey Architects Lichfields 

Alder King  LRM Planning Ltd 

Amity Planning  Mango Planning 

Asbri Planning  Prospero Planning 

Barton Wilmore  RPS 

Boyer Planning  Savills  

Boyer Planning Stephen George architects  

Capita  Stephen Waldron Architects 

DPP Planning The Urbanists 

G Powys Jones Turley  

Geraint John Planning Ltd WPM Planning and Development  

Jenkins Best  WYG 

Knight Frank  

 

Political  

Assembly Member for Cynon  Member of Parliament for Pontypridd 

Tudalen 100



Appendices 

50 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Assembly Member for Ogmore Member of Parliament for Rhondda 

Assembly Member for Pontypridd Members of the European Parliament 

Assembly Member for Rhondda  Plaid Cymru 

Assembly Member for South Wales 
Central 

The Welsh Conservatives 

Assembly Member for South West 
Wales 

The Welsh Liberal Democrats 

Future Generations Commissioner for 
Wales 

UKIP Wales 

Member of Parliament for Cynon Wales Green Party 

Member of Parliament for Ogmore Welsh Labour Party 

 

 

Other Bodies   

Action on Hearing Loss New Horizons Mental Health and 
Emotional Wellbeing Resource Centre 

Active Travel Cymru NFU Cymru 

Active Wales NHS Wales Shared Services 
Partnership 

Addoldai Cymru (Welsh Religious 
Buildings Trust) 

Planning Aid Wales 

Arts Council for Wales PEDW 

British Aggregates Association Public Health Network Cymru 

British Astronomical Association 
(Campaign for Dark Skies) 

Ramblers Cymru 

British Red Cross Renewable Energy Association 

British Trust for Ornithology Road Haulage Association 

British Waterways Road Safety Wales 

Chartered Institute of Housing (Cymru) Royal Mail Property Holding 

Citizens Advice Bureau  Royal Society of Architects in Wales 

Community Land Advisory Service 
Cymru (CLAS) 

Society for the Protection of Ancient 
Buildings 

Confederation of Passenger Transport South East Wales Energy Agency 

Confederation of UK Coal Producers Sports Council for Wales 

Consumer Council for Wales  Sustrans Cymru 

 Tarian Group 

Crown Estates Commissioners TARMAC Ltd 

Cwm Taf Public Services Board The Civic Trust for Wales 

DB Cargo UK (formerly EWS) The Royal Mint 

Energy Savings Trust Wales Welsh Association of Motor Clubs 

Football Association of Wales Welsh Local Government Association 
(WLGA) 

Hanson Aggregates Welsh Rugby Union 

Living Streets (UK) Young Builders Trust, Building Futures 
(UK) Ltd 

National Federation for the Blind  

 

Tudalen 101



Appendices 

51 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Children and Young People 

Action for Children Save the Children Wales 

Barnardos Cymru Scouts Cymru 

Children in Wales The Arc Youth and Community Project 

Girl Guiding Cymru The National Library of Wales 

Ethnic Youth Support Team The Prince’s Trust in Wales 

Llwynypia Boys and Girls Club Ty Hafan 

National Youth Advocacy Service 
(NYAS) Cymru 

UpRising 

Noah’s Ark Charity Wales Voices for Care Cymru 

NSPCC Wales Young Wales 

Penygraig Boys and Girls Club Youth Cymru 

Play Wales Youth Hostel Association England and 
Wales 

Prince’s Trust   

 

Leisure and Tourism  

Ibis Travel Lodge 

 Valleys Regional Park 

Premier Inn Visit Wales 

Sport Wales Chwaraeon Cymru Wales Activity Tourism Organisation 

Tourism Wales Wales Tourism Alliance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 102



Appendices 

52 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Appendix 3 – Risk Management 

There are a few main likely outcomes of failing to proceed with LDP preparation as 
indicated: 
 
The Assembly Government has reserve powers in relation to plan preparation and 
adoption, which it can use when local planning authorities are clearly failing to 
progress plan preparation. 
 
Promoters of major development proposals may seek to pursue planning permission 
for their sites, in advance of consideration through the LDP and to the detriment of the 
proper long term planning of the Borough. 
 

Some of the main risks to the LDP not proceeding in accordance with the proposed 
timetable are included in the table below 
 

Risk Potential Risk  Mitigation 

The publication of revised 
planning guidance 
by the Assembly 
Government 

Changes needed to the 
content of the LDP  

Ensure that the WG 
legislative programme is 
followed through the plan 
preparation and that the 
LDP is in general 
conformity with WG policy.  
 
Liaise with WG colleagues 
throughout the LDP 
preparation process.  

A reduction in the 
resources and budget 
available for the project 

Timetable slippage Ensure there is corporate 
support for the delivery of 
the LDP.  
 
Consider additional 
resources available from 
the wider division 

Any inability of Service 
Areas to provide 
necessary input as 
required; 

Timetable slippage Liaise with colleagues 
throughout the plan 
process to keep them 
informed of when their 
input will be required to 
allow them to forward plan 

Unavailability of meetings 
and/or agenda time of 
Cabinet, Development 
Control Committees and 
Council, at the necessary 
times, to consider reports 
and approve necessary 
documents, or inability to 
agree plan proposals; 

Timetable slippage  Liaise with 
Cabinet/Council office to 
consider timescales and 
take account of this is the 
timetable.  
 
Ensure that the LDP is a 
Corporate priority.  

Tudalen 103



Appendices 

53 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Risk Potential Risk  Mitigation 

Inability of translators or 
printers to deliver 
documents, plans and 
publicity material in 
accordance with the 
approved programme; 

Timetable slippage Liaise with colleagues in 
translation early to ensure 
they can take account of 
the translation needs of 
the LDP in there forward 
planning.  
 
Consider additional 
resources and buy in 
where necessary  

The volume or 
significance of responses 
to consultations being so 
great as to require a 
longer period than 
projected to respond to 
their implications 

Extra time needed to 
process and respond to 
representations.  
 
Timetable slippage 

Early engagement and 
consultation with 
consultees to endeavour 
to build consensus.  
 
Consider bringing  
additional resources  

Political Change/ 
elections 

Time table slippage or 
abortive work 

Ensure that the Revised 
LDP is a Corporate priority  

The ability of statutory 
consultees to respond 
within a set timeframe 
given their resource 
constraints. 

Timetable slippage  Early engagement with 
the consultees to allow 
them to forward plan the 
periods when their input is 
required.  

Legal challenge  Adopted LDP may be 
subject to challenge in the 
courts and quashed  

Ensure that all the 
Regulations and 
legislation are adhered to.  

Further lockdown due to 
COVID-19 

Unable to progress with 
LDP preparation 

Limited mitigation. Staff 
are able to work from 
home in a reduced 
capacity, and online 
consultation would still be 
possible. This is still a 
considerable risk to fully 
accord with the timetable. 

Unable to fulfil the CIS 
due to COVID-19 
restrictions 

Non- compliance with the 
CIS  

Keep the DA under regular 
review and endeavour to 
adapt as necessary to 
ensure effective 
consultation 

 

  

Tudalen 104



Appendices 

54 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Appendix 4 – Profile and Characteristics of the Local Population 

Population 

Population  

Total 234,410 

Females 119,775 

Males 114,635 

 

Age Structure % 

Aged 0-4 6.16 

Aged 5-7 3.47 

Aged 8-9 2.13 

Aged 10-14 5.92 

Aged 15 1.20 

Aged 16-17 2.49 

Aged 18-19 2.65 

Aged 20-24 6.90 

Aged 25-29 6.32 

Aged 30-44 19.46 

Aged 45-59 19.57 

Aged 60-64 6.59 

Aged 65-74 9.38 

Aged 75-84 5.55 

Aged 85-89 1.44 

Aged 90+ 0.72 

 

Cultural 

Ethnicity % 

White (British) 96.29 

White (Irish) 0.248 

White Gypsy or Irish Traveller 0.022 

Other White 0.806 

Mixed (White and Black Caribbean) 0.234 

Mixed (White and Black African) 0.081 

Mixed (White and Asian) 0.179 

Other Mixed 0.146 

Asian/British Asian (Indian) 0.279 

Asian/British Asian (Pakistani) 0.113 

Asian/British Asian (Bangladeshi) 0.045 

Asian/British Asian (Chinese) 0.454 

Asian/British Asian (Other Asian) 0.399 

Black/African/Caribbean/Black British (African) 0.486 

Black/African/Caribbean/Black British (Caribbean) 0.042 

Black/African/Caribbean/Black British (Other Black) 0.029 

Other Ethnic Group (Arab) 0.068 

Any Other Ethnic Group 0.070 

Tudalen 105



Appendices 

55 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

 

Religion % 

Christian 50.50 

Muslim 0.45 

Buddhist 0.22 

Hindu 0.17 

Pagan 0.09 

Sikh 0.078 

Jewish 0.037 

Other Religion 0.27 

No Religion 40.76 

No Religion Stated 7.40 

 

Welsh Language 
Knowledge of Welsh (Aged 3+) 

% 

No skills in Welsh 80.4 

Can speak Welsh 12.3 

Can understand spoken Welsh only  4.2 

Other combinations of Welsh skills 3.3 

Can Speak Welsh (of the 12.3% who can speak Welsh) % 

Can speak Welsh but cannot read or write 1.64 

Can speak and read but cannot write Welsh 0.90 

Can speak, read and write Welsh  9.71 

 

Health 

Health Classification % 

Day-to-day activities limited a lot 14.46 

Day-to-day activities limited a little 11.38 

Day-to-day activities not limited 74.15 

Day-to-day activities limited a lot (Age 16-64) 6.86 

Day-to-day activities limited a little (Age 16-64) 6.21 

Day-to-day activities not limited (Age 16-64) 50.93 

 

General Health % 

Very good health 44.85 

Good health 29.66 

Fair Health 15.87 

Bad Health 7.42 

Very bad health 2.17 

 

Provision of Unpaid Care % 

Provides no unpaid care 87.35 

Provides 1 to 19 hours unpaid care a week 6.68 

Provides 20 to 49 hours unpaid care a week 1.95 

Provides 50 or more hours unpaid care a week 4.00 

Tudalen 106



Appendices 

56 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

 

Employment and the Economy 

Economic Activity (All Persons) % 

Economically active: Employee – Part-time 13.40 

Economically active: Employee – Full-time 35.58 

Economically active: Self-employed 6.41 

Economically active: Unemployed 4.71 

Economically active: Full-time student 3.08 

Economically inactive: Retired 16.03 

Economically inactive: Student (including full-time students) 5.76 

Economically inactive: Looking after home or family 4.07 

Economically inactive: Long-term sick or disabled 8.63 

Economically inactive: Other 2.29 

Unemployed: Age 16-24 1.64 

Unemployed: Age 50-74 0.68 

Unemployed: Never worked 0.85 

Long-term Unemployment 1.93 

 

Economic Activity (Females) % 

Economically active: Employee – Part-time 21.26 

Economically active: Employee – Full-time 27.78 

Economically active: Self-employed 2.95 

Economically active: Unemployed 3.36 

Economically active: Full-time student 3.34 

Economically inactive: Retired 17.78 

Economically inactive: Student (including full-time students) 5.45 

Economically inactive: Looking after home or family 6.98 

Economically inactive: Long-term sick or disabled 8.34 

Economically inactive: Other 2.71 

Unemployed: Age 16-24 1.11 

Unemployed: Age 50-74 0.38 

Unemployed: Never worked 0.66 

Long-term Unemployment 1.51 

 

Economic Activity (Males) % 

Economically active: Employee – Part-time 5.36 

Economically active: Employee – Full-time 43.56 

Economically active: Self-employed 9.95 

Economically active: Unemployed 6.08 

Economically active: Full-time student 2.81 

Economically inactive: Retired 14.24 

Economically inactive: Student (including full-time students) 6.07 

Economically inactive: Looking after home or family 1.08 

Economically inactive: Long-term sick or disabled 8.93 

Economically inactive: Other 1.86 

Unemployed: Age 16-24 2.17 

Tudalen 107



Appendices 

57 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Unemployed: Age 50-74 0.99 

Unemployed: Never worked 1.03 

Long-term Unemployment 2.37 

 

Economic Activity – Hours Worked % 

Part-time: 15 hours or less worked 8.25 

Part-time: 16-30 hours worked 20.87 

Full-time: 31-48 hours worked 61.46 

Full-time: 49 or more hours worked 9.41 

  

Males: Total 52.11 

Males: Part-time: 15 hours or less worked 2.53 

Males: Part-time: 16-30 hours worked 4.76 

Males: Full-time: 31-48 hours worked 37.20 

Males: Full-time: 49 or more hours worked 7.60 

  

Females: Total 47.89 

Females: Part-time: 15 hours or less worked 5.71 

Females: Part-time: 16-30 hours worked 16.11 

Females: Full-time: 31-48 hours worked 24.25 

Females: Full-time: 49 or more hours worked 1.81 

 

Economic Activity – Year Last Worked % 

In employment 57.73 

Not in employment: Total  42.27 

Last worked in 2011 1.05 

Last worked in 2010 4.20 

Last worked in 2009 2.78 

Last worked in 2008 2.14 

Last worked in 2007 1.61 

Last worked in 2006 1.49 

Last worked in 2001-2005 5.88 

Last worked before 2011 14.15 

Never worked 8.96 

 

Employment by Industry % 

Agriculture, forestry and fishing 0.22 

Mining and Quarrying 0.33 

Manufacturing 12.56 

Electricity, gas, steam and air conditioning supply 0.86 

Water supply, sewerage, waste management and remediation 
activities 

1.10 

Construction 10.38 

Wholesale and retail trade, repair of motor vehicles and motor 
cycles 

15.01 

Transport and storage 3.90 

Tudalen 108



Appendices 

58 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Accommodation and food service activities 5.00 

Information and communication 1.76 

Financial and insurance activities 2.97 

Real estate activities 1.12 

Professional, scientific and technical activities 3.33 

Administrative and support service activities 4.08 

Public administration and defence, compulsory social security 7.66 

Education 10.10 

Human health and social work activities 15.36 

Other 4.19 

 

Occupational Groups % 

Managers, Directors and Senior Officials 10.4 

Professional Occupations 16.2 

Associate Professional and Technical Occupations 11.3 

Administrative and Secretarial Occupations 9.0 

Skilled Trades Occupations 13.1 

Personal Service Occupations 10.7 

Sales and Customer Service Occupations 8.0 

Process Plant and Machine Operatives 9.2 

Elementary Occupations 11.4 

 

Education 

Education – Qualifications 
Highest Qualification Attained 

% 

No qualifications 31.77 

Level 1 qualifications (1-4 GCSEs or equivalent) 14.05 

Level 2 qualifications (5+ GCSEs or equivalent) 15.65 

Apprenticeship 3.53 

Level 3 qualifications (2+A-levels or equivalent) 11.42 

Level 4 qualifications and above (Degree level or above) 19.55 

Other qualifications (Vocational/work-related/foreign) 4.02 

 

Householder 

Household Space and Accommodation Type % 

Unshared dwelling 99.981 

Shared dwelling: Two household spaces 0.0085 

Shared dwelling: Three or more household spaces 0.0104 

  

Household spaces with at least one usual residents 94.637 

Household spaces with no usual residents 5.3623 

  

Whole house or bungalow: Detached 14.501 

Whole house or bungalow: Semi-detached 26.546 

Whole house or bungalow: Terraced (including end-terrace) 50.398 

Tudalen 109



Appendices 

59 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Flat, maisonette or apartment: Purpose-built block of flats 6.625 

Flat, maisonette or apartment: Part of converted/shared home 0.985 

Flat, maisonette or apartment: In commercial building  0.805 

Caravan or other mobile or temporary structure 0.137 

 

Tenure % 

Owned: Owned outright 36.46 

Owned: Owned with a mortgage or loan 34.54 

Shared ownership (part owned and part rented) 0.15 

Social rented: Rented from Council (Local Authority) 6.86 

Social rented: Other 6.86 

Private rented: Private landlord or letting agency 12.38 

Private rented: Other 1.27 

Living rent free 1.48 

 

Household Composition % 

One person household: Aged 65 and over 13.22 

One person household: Other 16.76 

One family only: All aged 65 and over 7.92 

One family only: Married or same-sex civil partnership couple: 
No children 

12.35 

One family only: Married or same-sex civil partnership couple: 
Dependent children 

13.77 

One family only: Married or same-sex civil partnership couple: 
All children non-dependent 

7.27 

One family only: Cohabiting couple: No children 4.10 

One family only: Cohabiting couple: Dependent children 5.19 

One family only: Cohabiting couple: All children non-dependent 0.62 

One family only: Lone parent: Dependent children 8.97 

One family only: Lone parent: All children non-dependent 4.12 

Other household types: With dependent children 2.12 

Other household types: All full-time students 0.74 

Other household types: All aged 65 and over 0.32 

Other household types: Other 2.53 

 

Household Size % 

1 person in household 29.98 

2 people in household 33.78 

3 people in household 17.26 

4 people in household 13.41 

5 people in household 4.12 

6 people in household 1.16 

7 people in household 0.19 

8 or more people in household 0.09 

 

 

Tudalen 110



Appendices 

60 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Number of Bedrooms % 

No bedrooms 0.18 

1 bedroom 5.25 

2 bedrooms 22.57 

3 bedrooms 56.38 

4 bedrooms 13.23 

5 or more bedrooms 2.39 

 

Household by Deprivation Dimensions % 

Household is not deprived in any dimension 37.71 

Household is deprived in 1 dimension 30.00 

Household is deprived in 2 dimensions 25.84 

Household is deprived in 3 dimensions 8.91 

Household is deprived in 4 dimensions 0.54 

*Note – A household is deprived in a dimension if they meet one or more of the 
following conditions: 

• Employment: where any member of a household, who is not a full-time 
student, is either unemployed or long-term sick. 

• Education: no person in the household has at least level 2 education and no 
person aged 16-18 is a full-time student. 

• Health and Disability: any person in the household has general health that is 
‘bad’ or ‘very bad’ or has a long-term health problem. 

• Housing: the household’s accommodation is either overcrowded, with an 
occupancy rating 1 or less, or is in a shared dwelling or has no central 
heating. 

 

Household Language % 

All people aged 16 and over in household have English or 
Welsh as a main language 

98.36 

At least one but not all people aged 16 and over in household 
have English or Welsh as a main language 

0.78 

No people aged 16 and over in the household but at least one 
person aged 3 to 15 has English or Welsh as a main language 

0.10 

No people in household have English or Welsh as a main 
language 

0.76 

 

Central Heating % 

No central heating 1.27 

Gas central heating 90.66 

Electric (including storage heaters) central heating 1.78 

Oil central heating 0.64 

Solid fuel (for example wood, coal) central heating 1.97 

Other central heating 0.66 

Two or more types of central heating 3.02 

 

 

Tudalen 111



Appendices 

61 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Transport 

Car or Van Availability % 

No cars or vans in household 27.07 

1 car or van in household 42.60 

2 cars or vans in household 23.40 

3 cars or vans in household 5.33 

4 or more cars or vans in household 1.60 

 

Travel to Work % 

Work mainly at or from home 1.61 

Train 2.43 

Bus, minibus or coach 2.32 

Taxi 0.17 

Motorcycle, scooter or moped 0.26 

Driving a car or van 40.70 

Passenger in a car or van 4.74 

Bicycle 0.26 

On foot 4.93 

Other method of travel to work 0.27 

Not in employment 42.27 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 112



Appendices 

62 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Appendix 5 - WELSH INDEX OF MULTIPLE DEPRIVATION 

WIMD Rank  Electoral Division SOA Lower Layer Name 

444  

Aberaman North 

Aberaman North 1 

243  Aberaman North 2 

841  Aberaman North 3 

413  

Aberaman South 

Aberaman South 1 

288  Aberaman South 2 

245  Aberaman South 3 

992  

Abercynon 

Abercynon 1 

33  Abercynon 2 

506  Abercynon 3 

1069  Abercynon 4 

923  

Aberdare East 

Aberdare East 1 

586  Aberdare East 2 

736  Aberdare East 3 

273  Aberdare East 4 

1366  

Aberdare West/Llwydcoed 

Aberdare West/Llwydcoed 1 

1166  Aberdare West/Llwydcoed 2 

432  Aberdare West/Llwydcoed 3 

451  Aberdare West/Llwydcoed 4 

576  Aberdare West/Llwydcoed 5 

1886  Aberdare West/Llwydcoed 6 

1460  

Beddau 

Beddau 1 

658  Beddau 2 

1753  Beddau 3 

1602  
Brynna 

Brynna 1 

1371  Brynna 2 

501  

Church Village 

Church Village 1 

1872 
 

 

 Church Village 2 
 
 
 

WIMD Rank  Electoral Division SOA Lower Layer Name 

1907  Church Village Church Village 3 

813  
Cilfynydd 

Cilfynydd 1 

737  Cilfynydd 2 

191  
Cwm Clydach 

Cwm Clydach 1 

551  Cwm Clydach 2 

695  

Cwmbach 

Cwmbach 1 

220  Cwmbach 2 

1537  Cwmbach 3 

742  

Cymmer 

Cymmer 1 

853  Cymmer 2 

96  Cymmer 3 

83  Cymmer 4 

680  

Ferndale 

Ferndale 1 

652  Ferndale 2 

471  Ferndale 3 

823  
Gilfach Goch 

Gilfach Goch 1 

175  Gilfach Goch 2 

51  
Glyncoch 

Glyncoch 1 

463  Glyncoch 2 

642  
Graig 

Graig 1 

268  Graig 2 

1130  
Hawthorn 

Hawthorn 1 

390  Hawthorn 2 

996  

Hirwaun 

Hirwaun 1 

691  Hirwaun 2 

176  Hirwaun 3 

657  
Llanharan 

Llanharan 1 

1609  Llanharan 2 

1649  
Llanharry 

Llanharry 1 

257  Llanharry 2 
 

 
 

 
 

T
udalen 113



Appendices 

63 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

WIMD Rank  Electoral Division SOA Lower Layer Name 

1744  

Llantrisant Town 

Llantrisant Town 1 

1812  Llantrisant Town 2 

1139  Llantrisant Town 3 

1736  

Llantwit Fardre 

Llantwit Fardre 1 

1879  Llantwit Fardre 2 

1712  Llantwit Fardre 3 

1670  Llantwit Fardre 4 

534  
Llwn-y-pia 

Llwyn-y-pia 1 

159  Llwyn-y-pia 2 

120  
Maerdy 

Maerdy 1 

52  Maerdy 2 

1015  
Mountain Ash East 

Mountain Ash East 1 

468  Mountain Ash East 2 

474  

Mountain Ash West 

Mountain Ash West 1 

136  Mountain Ash West 2 

359  Mountain Ash West 3 

6  

Penrhiwceiber 

Penrhiwceiber 1 

275  Penrhiwceiber 2 

429  Penrhiwceiber 3 

356  Penrhiwceiber 4 

579  

Pentre 

Pentre 1 

1451  Pentre 2 

141  Pentre 3 

493  Pentre 4 

262  

Pen-y-graig 

Pen-y-graig 1 

698  Pen-y-graig 2 

110  Pen-y-graig 3 

730  Pen-y-graig 4 

 

WIMD Rank  Electoral Division SOA Lower Layer Name 

101  
Pen-y-waun 

Pen-y-waun 1 

15  Pen-y-waun 2 

1755  

Pont-y-clun 

Pont-y-clun 1 

1904  Pont-y-clun 2 

1884  Pont-y-clun 3 

1171  Pont-y-clun 4 

1485  
Pontypridd Town 

Pontypridd Town 1 

994  Pontypridd Town 2 

752  

Porth 

Porth 1 

1280  Porth 2 

415  Porth 3 

539  Porth 4 

707  Rhigos Rhigos 

709  

Rhondda 

Rhondda 1 

480  Rhondda 2 

1297  Rhondda 3 

209  

Rhydfelen Central/llan 

Rhydfelen Central/llan 1 

26  Rhydfelen Central/llan 2 

145  Rhydfelen Central/llan 3 

1308  
Taffs Well 

Taffs Well 1 

1129  Taffs Well 2 

1497  
Talbot Green 

Talbot Green 1 

438  Talbot Green 2 

1518  

Ton-teg 

Ton-teg 1 

1651  Ton-teg 2 

1193  Ton-teg 3 

481  

Tonypandy 

Tonypandy 1 

611   
Tonypandy 2 
 

T
udalen 114



Appendices 

64 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

WIMD Rank  Electoral Division SOA Lower Layer Name 

637  

Tonyrefail East 

Tonyrefail East 1 

805  Tonyrefail East 2 

87  Tonyrefail East 3 

1641  Tonyrefail East 4 

577  

Tonyrefail West 

Tonyrefail West 1 

1723  Tonyrefail West 2 

185  Tonyrefail West 3 

920  Tonyrefail West 4 

682  

Trallwng 

Trallwng 1 

1423  Trallwng 2 

541  Trallwng 3 

554  

Trealaw 

Trealaw 1 

100  Trealaw 2 

306  Trealaw 3 

604  

Treforest 

Treforest 1 

839  Treforest 2 

937  Treforest 3 

487  

Treherbert 

Treherbert 1 

114  Treherbert 2 

248  Treherbert 3 

286  Treherbert 4 

869  

Treorchy 

Treorchy 1 

745  Treorchy 2 

410  Treorchy 3 

560  Treorchy 4 

860  Treorchy 5 

4  

Tylorstown 

Tylorstown 1 

198  Tylorstown 2 

107  Tylorstown 3 

WIMD Rank  Electoral Division SOA Lower Layer Name 

1625  

Tyn-y-nant 

Tyn-y-nant 1 

668  Tyn-y-nant 2 

149  Tyn-y-nant 3 

121  
Ynyshir 

Ynyshir 1 

791  Ynyshir 2 

344  

Ynysybwl 

Ynysybwl 1 

705  Ynysybwl 2 

1620  Ynysybwl 3 

639  

Ystrad 

Ystrad 1 

598  Ystrad 2 

403  Ystrad 3 

131  Ystrad 4 

T
udalen 115



Appendices 

65 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Appendix 6 - Glossary of Terms 

 

Term Definition 

Adopted Plan The final version of the Local Development Plan (LDP). 

Adoption The final stage of LDP plan-preparation, where the LDP 
becomes the statutory development plan for the area it 
covers. 

Annual Monitoring 
Report (AMR) 

The AMR is a yearly report that monitors and assesses the 
extent to which the strategy and associated policies within 
the LDP are being implemented.  The document is used to 
determine whether any revisions to the LDP are necessary. 

Baseline A description of the present state of an area that can be 
compared with future data. 

Candidate Site A site put forward for consideration within the LDP.  All 
candidate sites will be assessed against specific criteria to 
determine their suitability for inclusion within the Plan, as a 
potential allocation.  

Community People living in a defined geographical area, or who share 
other interests and therefore form communities of interest. 

Community 
Involvement 
Scheme (CIS) 

Sets out the project plan and policies of the LPA for 
involving local communities, including businesses, in the 
preparation of the LDPs.  The CIS is submitted to the Welsh 
Government for approval, as part of the Delivery 
Agreement. 

Consensus Building A process of dialogue with communities and other 
interested parties to understand relevant viewpoints and to 
seek agreement, where possible. 

Consultation A formal process in which comments are invited on a 
particular topic or draft document, usually within a specific 
period. 

Council The ‘Council’ in this instance is taken to mean Rhondda 
Cynon Taf County Borough Council. 

Delivery Agreement 
(DA) 

A document comprising the Local Planning Authority’s 
(LPA) timetable for the preparation of the LDP, together with 
its Community Involvement Scheme (CIS), submitted to the 
Welsh Government for agreement. 

Deposit A formal six week stage in the plan making process, 
whereby individuals/organisations can make 
representations on the LDP.  Representations pertaining to 
the ‘soundness’ of the plan can be examined by the 
independent Inspector. 

Deposit Plan This is a full draft of the LDP that undergoes a formal 
consultation period prior to it being submitted to the Welsh 
Government for public examination. 

Development 
Control Policies 

A suite of criteria-based policies, which will ensure that all 
development within the area meets the aims and objectives 
set out in the strategy. 

Tudalen 116



Appendices 

66 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Term Definition 

Duly Made Representations to the LDP, which are made in the correct 
manner and within the specified consultation period, will be 
considered ‘duly made’. 

Engagement A proactive process, that seeks to encourage the 
involvement and participation of the community and other 
interested parties in the decision making process. 

Evidence Base Reports, data and other information that provides the basis 
for plan preparation and the LDPs vision, objectives, 
policies and proposals, justifying the soundness of the 
policy approach of the LDP.  

Examination The examination in public of the Deposit LDP, Deposit 
representations, the report of consultation, the SA/SEA and 
the evidence base documents by the independent 
Inspector, appointed by the Welsh Government. 

Habitat Regulation 
Assessment (HRA) 

Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) relates to the 
assessment of the impacts of a plan (or project) against the 
nature conservation objectives of European designated 
sites for any likely significant effects.  HRA also ascertains 
whether the proposed plan would adversely affect the 
integrity of the site. 

Indicator A measure of variables over time, often used to measure 
progress in the achievement of objectives, targets and 
policies. 

Inspector’s Report The Report compiled by the Inspector at the conclusion of 
the LDP examination.  The Inspector’s Report, which is 
binding on the Council, contains recommendations on the 
content of the final LDP.  The Council must adopt the LDP 
in the manner directed by the Inspector. 

Involvement A generic term that relates to community involvement, 
which includes both participation and consultation 
techniques. 

Local Development 
Plan (LDP) 

The LDP is a land-use planning document that includes the 
vision, objectives, strategy, proposals, policies and 
allocations for key areas of change/protection.  Allocations, 
along with a number of other proposals are represented 
geographically on the LDP proposals map.  The LDP is a 
statutory development plan that all LPAs in Wales are 
required to produce. 

Local Planning 
Authority (LPA) 

The LPA is the planning authority responsible for the 
preparation of the LDP, i.e. County or County Borough 
Council or National Park Authority.  In this case, Rhondda 
Cynon Taf County Borough Council. 

Local Strategic 
Partnership 

A partnership of stakeholders that comprises service 
providers, private, community and voluntary sector 
companies/organisations, that work in partnership to 
identify and meet local needs in a holistic way, typically 
through producing and employing community strategies. 

Objective A statement of what is intended, specifying the desired 
direction of change in trends. 

Tudalen 117



Appendices 

67 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Term Definition 

Participation A process whereby stakeholders and the community can 
engage directly with the plan-making process, to guide 
decision-making. 

Planning and 
Environment 
Decisions Wales 
(PEDW) 

The Wales branch of PEDW is the independent body that 
will be responsible for the formal examination of the LDP. 

Planning Policy 
Wales (PPW) 

The document sets out the national planning policies for 
Wales, as produced by the Welsh Government. 

Pre-Deposit Stages of the preparation and consultation of the LDP 
before the Deposit Plan is finalised and approved by the 
Council. 

Preferred Strategy The preferred strategy sets out the broad, strategic direction 
for the LDP, inclusive of the preferred level of growth and 
the distribution for said growth, via the spatial strategy.  It 
also includes the vision and objectives of the LDP. 

Press Release Sent to the Welsh media, including newspapers, radio and 
television news stations, as appropriate.  Note:  Media may 
choose not to print or broadcast an item. 

Regulation The regulations that provide the framework for LDP plan 
preparation are set out in Welsh Statutory Instruments. 

Report of 
Consultation 

A consultation report is one of the documents that are 
required as part of the independent examination.  An ‘initial 
consultation report’ is also required at pre-deposit stage. 

Representations Comments received in relation to the LDP, either in support 
of, or in opposition to elements of its content. 

Review Report A document that provides an overview of those issues that 
have been considered as part of the full review process.  It 
identifies changes that are likely to be required to the LDP, 
based on evidence.  It further expresses the type of revision 
procedure to be followed in revising the LDP. 

Scoping A process of deciding the scope and level of detail of the 
Sustainability Appraisal (SA), including the sustainability 
effects and options that need to be considered, the 
assessment methods to be used and the structure and 
contents of the SA report. 

Soundness Tests For an LDP to be adopted, it must be determined to be 
‘sound’ by the independent Inspector.  The tests of 
soundness are set forth in PPW.  The three tests are 
consistency, coherence and effectiveness. 

Stakeholders Individuals whose interests are directly affected by the LDP 
(and/or SA/SEA) and whose involvement is generally 
through representative bodies. 

Strategic 
Environmental 
Assessment (SEA) 

Generic term used internationally to describe environmental 
assessment, as applied to policies, plans and programmes.  
The SEA Regulations require a formal environmental 
assessment of certain plans and programmes, including 
those in the field of planning and land use. 

Tudalen 118



Appendices 

68 | P a g e  
RCTCBC Revised Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 

Term Definition 

Strategic 
Development Plan 
(SDP) 

A Strategic Development Plan is a new plan in the 
development plan hierarchy in Wales, as introduced by the 
Planning (Wales) Act, 2015.  It is a tool for regional 
planning, covering cross-boundary issues, such as housing 
and transport. 

Submission When the LDP, Sustainability Appraisal Report and the 
Habitats Regulations Assessment are formally submitted to 
the Welsh Government for examination by the independent 
Inspector, appointed by the Welsh Government. 

Supplementary 
Planning Guidance 
(SPG) 

Provides more detailed and/or site specific guidance on the 
application of LDP policies by supplementing certain 
policies.  SPG does not form part of the development plan 
and is not subject to independent examination. 

Sustainability 
Appraisal (SA) 

Tool for appraising policies to ensure they reflect 
sustainable development objectives (i.e. economic, 
environmental and social factors).  Each LPA is required by 
S62 (6) of the 2004 Act to undertake sustainability appraisal 
of its LDP.  This form of sustainability appraisal fully 
incorporates the requirements of the SEA Directive and 
Regulations. 

Sustainability 
Appraisal Report 

A document required to be produced as part of the 
sustainability appraisal process to describe and appraise 
the likely significant effects on sustainability of 
implementing the LDP, which also meets the requirement 
for the Environmental Report under the SEA Regulations.  
S62 (6) of the 2004 Act requires each local planning 
authority to prepare a report of the findings of the 
sustainability appraisal of the LDP. 

Sustainable 
Development 

Development that meets the needs of the present without 
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their 
own needs.  (Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015). 

Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015 

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is 
legislation that requires public bodies, such as local 
authorities to put long-term sustainability at the forefront of 
their thinking to make a difference to lives of people in 
Wales.  Local authorities must work towards the seven well-
being goals and enact the five ways of working set out in 
the Act. 

Workshop Where members of the public have the opportunity to 
engage in group debates and practical exercises with a 
written or drawn ‘output’. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 119



tudalen wag



 

 

 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL 
 

12th JULY 2023  
 

CHANGES TO MEMBERSHIP  
 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATIONS.  
 

  
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To advise Members of the change to the Labour representation on the 

Alliance for the 2023/24 municipal year. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 To note that the Authority’s nominated representative on the Alliance 

going forward will be County Borough Councillor J Smith; and 
 

2.2 Subject to the agreement of 2.1, correspondence be sent to the 
Alliance advising them of the change to the Authority’s nominated 
representative. 
 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 The need to advise Members of the changes put forward by the Labour 

group in respect of the above-mentioned membership. 
 
4 CHANGES TO MEMBERSHIP 

 
4.1 In accordance with the decision taken (Minute No.9 of the Council 

meeting held on the 10th May 2023), I have received notification from 
the Labour Group of the following change to its membership: 
 

• A change to its membership on the Alliance, in that County 
Borough Councillor J Smith is to be nominated in place of 
County Borough Councillor D Parkin. 

 
5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Members are encouraged as part of the Local Government & Elections 

Act Wales, to promote diversity in representations, particularly when 
determining senior roles.  

 
6. CONSULTATION/INVOLVEMENT 

Tudalen 121

Agendwm 8

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=163&MId=50004600&Ver=4&LLL=0


 
 

 

 
6.1 There are no consultation implications aligned to this report. 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications aligned to this report. 
 
8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
8.1  As in accordance with the Council’s membership requirements – 

Council Constitution. 
 

9. LINKS TO THE COUNCILS CORPORATE PLAN / OTHER 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES. 

 
9.1 The Council’s Committees contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan 

objectives, therefore it is important to ensure the Committee 
membership to its Outside Bodies is complete and accurate. 

 
10 CONCLUSION 
 
10.1 To provide Members with information in respect of the Committee 

membership. 
 
Other Information:- 
 
Relevant Scrutiny Committee – Not applicable 

Tudalen 122



 
 

 

  
 
 
 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

AS AMENDED BY 
 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL 

 
12th JULY 2023 

 
 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATIONS  

 
 

CHANGE OFMEMBERSHIP  

Background Papers 

 
Freestanding Matter 

Tudalen 123



tudalen wag


	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion
	5 Cwestiynau gan yr Aelodau
	6 Adolygiad Blynyddol Cylch Rheoli’r Trysorlys 2022/23
	7 Cynllun Datblygu Lleol Diwygiedig 2022-2037. Y Diweddaraf Am Faterion Cynllunio Cenedlaethol a Rhanbarthol a Chymeradwyaeth Ar Gyfer Cytundeb Cyflawni a Diwygiad I'r Amserlen Ar Gyfer Gwaith Paratoi Parhaus Y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol Diwygiedig.
	Atodiad 1

	8 Newid Aelodaeth

